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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARB Ec E , VE D

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT Y 9
4
SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION 20 L

This Section must be completed for all projects. SES&%LTH;S&%{J!ES &
BOARD

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: U.S. Renal Care Bolingbrook Dialysis

Street Address: 396 Reminagton Blvd.

City and Zip Code: Bolingbrook 50440

County: Wili County Health Service Area IX Health Planning Area:

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220).

Exact Legal Name: USRC Bolingbrook LLC

Address: 2400 Pallas Pkwy #350, Plano, Texas 75093

Name of Registered Agent: C T Corporation System

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Stephen Pirri {President)

CEQ Address: 2400 Dallas Pkwy #350, Plano, Texas 75093

Telephone Number: 214.736.2700

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

O Non-profit Corporatian ] Partnership
(I} For-profit Carporation (H Govemmental
[xl Limited Liability Company (I} Sole Proprietorship [} Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Ilfinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each pariner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.
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Primary Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]

Name: Edward Clancy

Title:  Attorney

Company Name: Ungaretti & Harris LLP

Address: 70 W. Madison Suite 3500, Chicago lllinois 60602
Telephone Number: 312 977 4487

E-mail Address: eclancy@ uhlaw.com

Fax Number: 312.977.440Q5

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: wNA

Title:

Company Name:

Address:

Telephone Number:

E-mail Address:

Fax Number:




Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: USRC Afliance LLC

Address: 2400 Dallas Pkwy #350, Plano, Texas 75093

Name of Registered Agent: C T Corporation System

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Stephen Pimi {President)

CED Address: 2400 Dallas Pkwy #350, Plano, Texas 75093

Telephone Number: 214.736.2700

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

[ Non-profit Corporation O Partnership
] For-profit Corporation | Governmenial
] Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited lability companies must pravide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Parnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.
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Post Permit Contact

[Person to receive all correspondence subseguent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE
EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960
Name. Thomas L. Weinberg

Title:___Senior Vice President and Generat Counsel
Company Name: |) S Renal Care Inc

Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway. Suite 350 Plano, Texas 75093
Telephone Number: 214-736-2700

E-mail Address: Tweinberg@USRENALCARE.COM

Fax Number: 214-736-2701

Site Ownership

[Provide this information for each applicable site}

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner; PHT Bolingbrook MOB d/b/a Pariners Health Trust
Address of Site Owner: 2001 Ross Ave, Suite 3400, Dalias Texas 75201

Street Address or Legal Description of Site:
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statement, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

at‘testing to ownershlp, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease or a lease.

Operating Identity/Licensee

{Provide this information for each agplicable facility, and insert after this page ]
Exact Legal Name: USRC Bolingbrook LLC

Address. 2400 Dallas Pkwy #350, Plano, Texas 75093

O Non-profit Corporation O Parinership
] For-profit Corporation [ Governmental
[x] Limited Liability Company 1 Sole Proprietorship | Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited pariner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of
ownership
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_Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any
person or enlity who is relaled (as defined in Part 1130.140). if the related person or entity is participating
in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any

ﬁnanmal contrlbutmn
S B

APPLICA‘IION FORM
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Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
piease pravide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.qov or www.illincisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the
sHwww hisrb.illinois.gov).
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Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructicns.]

Provida documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.
7 =

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those apphcable - refer to Part 1110.40 and Part 1120.20(b)]

Part 1120 Applicability or Ciasslfication:

Part 1110 Classification: [Check one only.]

[0  Substantive 3 Part 1120 Not Applicable
[0 Category A Project

[XI  Non-substantive [X] Category B Project

O3 DHS or DVA Project
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2, Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is 1o be done in State Board
defined terms, NOT WHY il is being done, If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a legal
description of tha site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification as substantive or non-substantive.

USRC Belingbrook, LLC ("Applicant”) proposes to establish a 13 station in-center hemodialysis facility at
396 Remington Blvd. Bolingbrook, IL 50440. The facility will ulilize leased space at to be built out by Applicant.
The facility will provide both in-center hemodialysis and peritonea! dialysis for patients with End Stage Renal

Disease ("ESRD").
USRC Bolingbrook, LLC will be in HSA IX.

This project is "non-substantive" under Planning Board rule 1110.10(b} as it entails the establishment of an
In-Center Hemodialysis Center that will provide renal dialysis services.
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a
project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market ar dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project conlaing non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must
equal,

Project Costs and Sources of Funds
USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs
Site Survey and Soil Investigation
Site Preparation

Off Site Work

New Construction Contracts

Modernization Contracts * $216,570 $216,570
Contingencies

Architectural/Engineering Fees $42,000 $42,000

Consuiting and Other Fees

Movable or Other Equipment {not in construction
contracts) $70,157 $98 601 $168,758

Bond Issuance Expense {project relatad)

Net Interest Expense During Construction {project

related)

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment $1,957,457 $1,967,457

Other Costs To Be Capitalized $91,244 $91,244

f\cql;isin'on of Building or Other Property (excluding

and

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $2,387 428 $98,601 $2,486,029
SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Cash and Securities $2,387,428 $98,601 $2,486,029

Pledges

Gifts and Beguests

Bond Issues (project related)
Morigages

Leases {fair marke! vaiue)

Governmental Appropriations
Grants

Other Funds and Sources

UNDS

S

— Page §
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Related Project Costs

Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect 1o any land related to the project that
will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project (] Yes x] No
Purchase Price:  §
Fair Market Value: §

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service

[X] Yes O Ne

if yes, provide the doliar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (inciuding

operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target
utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit costis §  $2 398 439

Project Status and Completion Schedules
Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:

[ None or not applicable [x] Preliminary

L] _Schematics [ Final Working
Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): _8/1/2012

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part
1130.140):

[] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[ Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the

contingent “certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to
CON Contingencies

uance

State Agency Submittais

Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:

NiA [] Cancer Registry

N/A [] APORS

N/A D All formal dacument requesis such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reporis been
submitted

N/a (] All reports regarding outstanding permits

Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in tha application for permit being
deemed incomplete.

Page 6




ILLINGIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Cost Space Requirements

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlon

Provide in the following format, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type
of gross square footage, either DGSF or BGSF, must be identified. The sum of the department costs
MUST equal the total estimated project costs, Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
purpose. Include outside wali measurements plus the department's or area's portion of the surrounding
circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Gross Square Feet

Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square Feet

That Is:

Dept. f Area

Cost

Existing | Proposed

New
Const.

Modernized

Asls

Vacated
Space

REVIEWABLE

Medical Surgical

Intensive Care

Biagnostic
Radiclogy

MRI

Tetal Clinical

NON
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

TOTAL
e
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CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners {(or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o]

in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of _USRC Bolingbrook, LLC *
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or

her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

D Mg P

SIGNATURE / M SIGNATURE
Thomas L. Weinberg Stephen M. Pirri

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
Manager President and Manager
PRINTED TITLE

Notarization:
Subscribed and swom to before me
this 19th day of _May 2011

qu/)r? Ay M

Signature of Notary

PRINTED TITLE

Notarization:
Subscribed and swom to before me
this 19th_day of ___May 2011

Hoe Hodd

Signature of Notﬂwmuu
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

CERTIFICATION

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

authorized representative(s) are:

beneficiaries do not exist); and

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s} of the applicant entity. The

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

e —

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of USRC Alliance, LLC *
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the hest of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

Meghon [

SIGNATURE
Thomas L. Weinberg

SIGNATURE ¥
Stephen M. Pirri

PRINTED NAME

Manager

PRINTED NAME

President and Manager

PRINTED TITLE

Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to befere me
this 19th_day of _May 2011

w
[1:]
:3
\“\\mmm,,___ '
PY LAl L TS ..‘
.- [P ¥
it
i}
Fds O37:
'%’ o=
o Py
"' PP

&
&

I’,
-
-

-
=
=
-
=
-
=
-
=~
=
o
o

'ef & applicant

PRINTED TITLE

Notarization;
Subscribed and sworn to before me
this_19th dayof _ May 2011

Do Mook

Signature of Notary “\mmmm,,,
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLIC:F\'I'ION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlcn

SECTION Ill - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project
costs,

Criterion 1110.230 — Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives

READ THE REVIEVWY CRITERION and provide the following required information:
BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. Alisting of all health care facHities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification it
applicable.

2. A ceriified lisling of any adverse action taken against any facility owned andfor operated by the epplicant
during the three years prior to the filing of the application,

3. Authorization permitting HFSRE and DPH access to any documents necessary lo verify the information

" subrmifted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH cor other State agencles; the licansing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nalionally recognized accreditation
organizalions. Faiture to provide such authorization shatl constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

4. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prier applications may be utilized te fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest the infarmation has been previously provided, cite
tha project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have octurred regarding the
information tha! has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2, Define the plenning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

3. Idertily the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as epplicable and appropriate for the
project. [See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation |

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the praviously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-beirg.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modemization, describe the conditions being Upgraded if any. For faclity projects, include
statemerts of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records,
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ALTERNATIVES
1)

Identify ALL of the alternatives to the praposed project:

Alternatfive options must include:

A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;

B) Pursuing a joint venture of similar emengement with one or more praviders or
entities to meel all or a portion of the project's intendsd purposes; developing
alternative seftings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; .

C}) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and

D) Provide the reasons why the chosen altemative was selected.

2) Documentation shali consist of a comparison of the project to altemative options. The
comparison shall address issues of lotal costs, patient access, qualfity and financial
benefits in both the short term {within ane to three years after project completion) end long
term. This may vary by projedt or situalion. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED
THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS
REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, Including quantified outcome data that
verifies improved quality of care, as available.

Page 12
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SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHEDISHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:
SIZE OF PROJECT:

1, Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the praposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must b a namrative.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justity the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following::

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services pravided, justified by clinical or operafional
needs, as supported by published data or studies;

b. The existing facility's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an
architectural design that results in a size exceeding Ihe standards of Appendix B;

c. The project involves the conversion of exisfing space that results in excess square footage.

Provide a natrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table rmust be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterlon is applicable enly to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lli. Adm. Code 1100,

Document thatin the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed fhe

utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B, A narrative of the rationale that supports the profections must be
provided,

A tabte must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15,

UTILIZATION
DEPTY HISTORICAL PROJECTED STATE MET
SERVICE UTILIZATION UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)

(TREATMENTS)
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G. Criterio|

n 1110.1430 - In-Center Hemodialysis

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/ar modemize In-Center Hemodialysis
must submit the following infarmation:
2. indicate station capacity changes by Service: Indicate # of stations changed by
action{s).
# Exlsting # Proposed
Categary of Service Stations Stations
[x] In-Center Hemodialysis
3 READ the applicable review criteria ouflined below and submit the required
documentation for the criteria:
APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand | Modernize
1110,1430(b)(1} - Planning Area Need - 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1100 X
{forinula calculation)
1110.1430{L:)(2} - Planning Area Need - Servics to Planning Area X X
Residents
1110.1430{k)(3) - Planning Area Meed - Service Demand - X
Establishment of Category of Service
1110.1430{t){4} - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - X
Expansion of Existing Categery of Service
1110.1430{b)(5} - Planning Area Need - Service Accessibility X
1110.1430(c)}{1)- Unnecessary Duplication of Services X
1110.1430{c){2) - Maldistribution X
1110.1430(c)(3) - Impact of Project on Qther Area Providers X
1110,1430(d)}{1) - Deteriorated Facilities X
1110.1430(d}{2) - Documentation X
1110.1430(d}3)- Documentation Related to Cited Problems X
1110.1430{e)-  Staffing Availability X X
111014307 -  Support Services X X X
1110.1430(g)-  Minimum Number of Slations X
1110.1430¢h) -  Continuity of Care X
1110.1430() - Agsurances X X X

4. Projects

{for relocation of a fagility from one location in a planning area to angther in the
same planning area must address the requirements listed In subsection (a)(1) for the
“Establishment of Services or Facilities®, as well as the requirements in Section 1110.130 -
“Discontinuation” and subsection 1110.1430(i} - “Relocation of Facilities”.

Page 26
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicents responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's {the rating shall be aHinmed
within the latest 18 month period prior to the submittal of the application):

= Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds — Review Criteria
»  Section 1120.130 Financial Viability - Review Criteria
« Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility - Review Criteria, subsection (a)

Vil - 1120.120 - Availability of Funds

The appficant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal te or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidance of sufiicient financial resources fram the following
sources, as applicable: [ndicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources:

a Cash and Securities - statements (e.g., audited financial statements, lefters from hinancial
$2,486,029 Institutions, board resolutions) es to:
1) the amount of cash and securities available for tha project, including the

ldentification of any security, Its value and avaitability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earmed on depreclation accounl funds or to be eamed on any
asset from the date of applicant’s submission through project completion;

b} Fledges - for anlicipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges shawing anticipated
receipts and discounted value, estimated time table of gross receipts and related fundraiging
expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising experience,

c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the doftar amount, Identification of any conditions of use, and
the eslimated {ime table of receipts;

) Debt - a statemenl of the estimaled terms and conditions (including the debt lime perlod, variable
or permanent interest rates over the debt tims period, and the anticipated repaymeant schedule) for
any Interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund the projoc, inchuding:

1} For general obfigation bonds, proof of passaga of the required refarendum or
evidence that the governmertal unit has the authority to issue the bonds and
evidence of the doflar amount of the issue, including any discounting
anficipated;

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibilty of securing the specified amoum and
interest rate;

3} For morigages, & letter from the prospective lender altesting to the expectatlon
of making the loan in the amount and time indicated, including the anliclpated
inferest rate and eny condtions assodiated with the mongage, such as, but nat
limited 10, adjustable interest rates, baltoon payments, etc.;

4) For any lease, a copy of the lkease, inciuding all the terms and conditlons,
nchuding any purchase options, any capital improvements to the property and
provision of capital equipment;

5) For any oplion to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and cenditions.
e} Gevemmental Appropriations - a copy of the approprialion Acl or ordinance accompanied by a

statement of funding availabifty from an official of the govemmental unlt, if funds are to be made
avaifable from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resalution or other aclion of the governmenial

unit attesting to this inlent;
f) Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the amount and
P fime of receipt;
q) All Other Funds and Sources — verification of the emount and type of any other funds that will be

used for the project.

32,486,029 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

"ATTACHME 49wuir$gm£mc§§%u'gn_m 'ORDGER;
ATTACHMENT 395N NUMERIC: s Tk
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IX. 1120.130 - Financial Viahility

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be Identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Einancial Viability Walver

The applicant is not required to submit financia viabitity ratios if:

1. Allof the projects capitat expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

2. The applicant's current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

3. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

See Sectlon 1120.130 Financial Walver for infermation 1o be provided
S ISFI

EAEREND DOCUMENTATION ASATTAGHIENTAC TN
‘BAGEGR DQ?AR TION EORMLEE s Tnan

1’

The applicant or co-applicant that & responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are avaitable and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the applicant's
facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a member of a heath care system that
has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be provided, If the health care
system includes one or more hospilals, the system's viabifity ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the
applicable hospital standards.

s
e

Current Ratio

Net Mergin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utitized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation
and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complele a separate table for each
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Variance

Agplicants not in compliance wilh any of the viabifity ratios shall dacument that anather organization,
public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt ocbligations should the
applicant default,

16




ILLINDIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlon

X. 1120.140 - Economice Feasibility

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120,

A.  Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The appiicant shall document the reasonableness of financing amangements by submitting a
notarized stalement sighed by an authorized representative that atiests {o one of tha following;

1} That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash
and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or

2) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by
borowing because:

A) A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet
asset accounts In order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facllities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire
debt within a 60-day period,

B. Cenditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized staterment
signed by an authorized representative that atlests to the following, as applicable:

1) That the sefected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost
available;
2) That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available, bt is

more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, no required mortgage,
access to additional indebtedness, temm (years), financing costs and alher factors:

3 That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facllities and that
the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less cosily than constructing
& new facility or purehasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

Read the ciiterion and provide the following:

1. Identify each depariment or area impacted by the propased project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the
following format (insert after this page).

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

A B ¢ D E | F G H
Department Total
(list belaw) Cost/Square Foot Gress 8q. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. § Cost
New Mod. New Cire* | Mod. Cire.” {AxC) (BxE} (G + H)

Contingency

TOTALS

* Include the perceniage (%) of space for circulation




COST AND.GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR:SERVICE

‘[T incilide the percentge 1%

X L A B c b E F G H .
Department - — — T - Total
{Bstbelow) | CostiSquareFoof | GrossiSq.Fl. | GrossSq Ft. | Const $ | Mod § Lost
’ ‘New Mod. | ‘New ‘Cire® | Mod. Cire* | {AxC) BxE) {G+H
ESRD $100.00 17,219 $721,900 {$721,900
Contingency i
| TOTALS $100.00 7,219 $721,900 | $721,900
51l Space o1 cirediation ]




ILLINCIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

APPLICATICN FOR PERMIT. May 2010 Editlon

D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs {in current deilars per equivalent
patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
fallowing project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaries, benefits and supplies
for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projeciad annual capital costs {in current dollers per equivatent
patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target ulilization but no more than twa years following project
completion,

XI. Safety Net Impadci Statement

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes 2l of the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE AND
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS:

1. The project’s materlal impact, ¥ any, on essentlal safety ret senvices in the community, o the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant o have such knowledge.

2. The project’s impact on 1he ability of another provider or health care system fo cross-subsidize safety net services, if reasonably
known ta the applicant.

3, How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a given community, if
reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net impact Statemnents shall also Include all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior 1a the application, a certificalion describing the amount of charity care pravided by the applicant. The
amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the
lllinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital applicants shall repont charity case, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate
methodology specified by the Board,

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaidpatients. Hospital and non-
hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent with 1he information reported each year to the Hinoks
Deparment of Public Health regarding "Inpatients and Quipatients Served by Payor Source® and “Inpatient and Quipatient Net
Revenue by Payor Source” as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospitad Profile.

3. Any informalion the appficant befieves is directly refevant to safety net services, including information regarding teaching,
research, end any olher service,

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 43,

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
Charity {cost In dollars)
Inpatient
Quipatient
Total
MEDICAID
Modlcaid (8 of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Quipatient
Total
Page §3
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERYICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlon

Medicald (revenue}

Inpatient
Quipatient

Total

XIl. Charity Care Information

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects,

1. All applicants and a-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three audited Fscal years, the cast
of charity care and the ratio of that eharity care cost fo nef patient revenue.

2. If the applicant owns ar operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each ndividusl facility located in llinis. If
charily care costs are reported on a comsvlidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity
care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financiat statement; the alocation of
charity care costs; and the ratia of charity care cost {o net patien revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projecied patient mix by payer source, anticipated
charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of is second year of aperation.

Charlty care™ means care provided by a health cara facility for which the provider does not expect to receive payment from
the patient or a third-party payer. (20 ILCS 3860/3) Charlty Care must be provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facifities as part of Attachment 44,

CHARITY CARE
Year Year Year

Net Patient Revenue
Amount of Charity Care {charges}
Cost of Charity Care

Page 54




ATTACHMENT 1

TYPE OF OWNERSHIP — CERTIFICATE OF GOOD
STANDING
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File Number 0352012-9

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

USRC BOLINGBROOK, LLC, HAVING ORGANIZED IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ON
MARCH 22, 2011, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN

GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IN THE STATE OF
ILLINOQIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 28TH

day of MARCH A.D. 2011

R 2678 A2 ’
.l QW,Q/\ )WM,ZE/

Authenticate at: hitp://www.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY CF STATE

Attachment 1 22




File Number 0345096-1

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

USRC ALLIANCE, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY HAVING
OBTAINED ADMISSION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS ON FEBRUARY 28, 2011,
APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A

FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ADMITTED TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE
STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 5TH

day of MAY AD. 2011

Authentication #: 1112501906 M

Autheniicate at: hitp:/Awww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY CF STATE
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ATTACHMENT 2

SITE OWNERSHIP — PROOF OF OWNERSHIP

1891453-1
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JOLL BERGER
Bradiord Allen
Realty Services

200 8. Michigan Ave,
18" Floor

Chicage, IL 60604

P 312.004,5776

F 3122782516

JOHN MILLNER
Bradiord Allen
Realty Serviees
200 8. Michigan Ave,
18" Floar

Chicnpo, 1L, 60604

P 312,094 3647

F 312.278.2529

Prepared For: US Renal Care

Date: APRIL 15,2011

- BOLINGBROOK

MEDICAL CENTER -
On Campus | Adventist Hospital §

Exclusive Represemntive

& BRADFORD ALLEN

&y entreprencurial realestate sohsions
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306 REMINGTON
BOLINBROOK

BUILDING:
BUILDING
OWNERSHIP:
PREMISES:
TERM:

RENTAL RATE:

RENT ABATEMENT;

TENANT
IMPROVEMENT
ALLOWANCE:

BASE RENT
ESCALATION:

RENT
COMMENCEMENT:

CONTINGENCY;

RENEWAL OPTION:

SPACE DELIVERY!

Thank you for your interest in 396 Remington, please nllow the following Proposal 1o
serve as ownership s response {0 your Request for Proposal. Speclficnily:

396 Remington Boulevard, Bolingbrook, IL 60440

PHT Bolingbrook MOB, LLC, d.b.a. Partners Health Trust.
2001 Ross Ave, Suite 3400
Dallas, TX 75201

Option A: Suite 110 (3,860 RSF) and Suite 120 (3,359 RSF)
Ten (10) Years and Four (4) Months
$21.50 Net per square foot

Four (4) Months of gross rent will be abated. Abatement
will be given in months 1, 2, 3, and 13.

$70.00 per rentable square foot, This allowance Is inclusive
of all architectural drawings. The landlord acknowledges
that the Tenant Improvement Allowance will not be funded
until the Certificate of Need is granted for Tenant. Tenant
shall not be required to pay Landiord any construction
management or supervisory fee for any tenant
improvements.

The base rent shall increase by 3% per rentable square foot,
PET annuim.

Rent will commence one hundred twenty (120) days after
issnance of Certificate of Need is granted to Tenant.

Landlord is willing provide 120 days from lease
commencement for the tenant to receive the certificate of
need from the state of Illinois. Should the Certificate of Need
be denied by the state of Illinois, Landlord will release
tenant from all lease obligations.

Tenant shall have two (2) consecutive five (5) year lease
renewal options at a fair market rate.

Landlord shall deliver the Premises with the following
conditions:

Exelusive Represeniaiive

B2 BRADFORD ALLEN

1Y e peeneurial i of e1010 dokomioed Pnge 2of4

Attachment 2
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306 REMINGTON

BOLINBROOIK

OPERATING IIXPENSES
&
REAL ESTATE TAXES:

TENANT SIGNAGE;

1. 1.5” diameter incoming water line,

2. The presence of a sewer service with no less than a 4” line
into the premises with an invert depth that will adequately
service our sanitary demands

3, There are 3 phase 400 amp 120/208 services in the electrical
closcts on each floor. Electricians wilt need to determine how
much of the power ean be dedicated to tenant’s premises.

4. There is currently no gas line to the premises, but
Landlord is exploring the possibility of installing a line.
Landlord will keep tenant updated as this progresses.

5. 0.611 of HVAC service for every 250 USF. Any additional

} capacity can be supplied through the installation of a Liebert

unit, and will be paid for from the TI allowance.
6. Current asbestos survey.

7. The subject property shall not be located within a 100
year flood plain,

8. 'The property shall not be Jocated within 150 feet of
easement boundaries or setbacks of hazardous underground
locations including but not limited to liguid butame or
propane, liquid petroleum or natural gas transmission Jines,
high pressure lines, and not within the easement of high
voltage electrical lines.

Tenant shall pay its proportionate share, based upon its pro-
rata share of the building rentable building area, of
Operating Expenses and Real Estate Taxes.

The total is projected at $10.22 per rentable square foot for
2011, The estimate will be invoiced monthly and reconciled
annually to actual costs. If actual costs are lower, tenant
receives the benefit as a refund.

Landlord is open to further discussions with Tenant
regarding any signage opportunities for the premises.

Exclusiva Represeniotive

B BRADFORD ALLEN

b | entrarmelal roed s soknians Page 3 of 4

o
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396 RUEMINGTON

BOLINBROOK

PARKING:

RIGHT OF FIRST
REFUSAL:

MISCELLANEOUS:

HoLp Ovrn:

TERMINATION QOFTION:

Exclusive Representating

I8 BRADFORD ALLEM

Hioae anteaprenaei real orta b rokitiod

Tenant will have access to five (5) handicapped parking
spots on a non-reserved hasis and the remaining parking
will be available as part of the 5:1000 ratio on a non-
reserved basis. Landlord is willing to further discuss the
opportunity for dedicated visitor spots.

i. Tenant shall have a Right of First Refusal on any adjacent
suite(s) during the first twenty-four (24) months of the lease
term.

2. Tenant shall have 15 business days from receipt of written
notice from Landlord to exercise its Right of First Refusal.

3. If Tenant exercises its Right of First Refusal, Tenant shall
lease the additional space for a term that is coterminous
with its Lease for the Premises and at the rental rate(s) and
other Lease terms in effect, with a pro rated construction
allowance.

Landlord is open to discussions with tenant regarding the
installation of an awning at the front of the Premises for a
patient drop off/ pick up area.

Tenant sholl hove the right to holdover for two (2) montbs after term expirntion
at the same mie 23 the Jast month of the leage lerm. After the thind month, the
holdover rale shall increase to 150% of the rent for the last month of the lease
term.

Tenant shall have the one-time right 10 terminate the lease sixty {60) months
after Rent Commencement, with wrilten notice provided no later than twelve
(12) tnanths prior to termination date. Should Tenant exereise its option to
terminate the lease, they will also provide a terminationm penslty consiting of
all of the landlord's ymamortized transaction cests plos twelve (12) months of
the-then escalated gross rent.

This Proposal is pot Intended o be contracted in notwre and only an executed Lease
delivered to both parties can bind the pariies io this transnciton, It is expressly
undersiand, agreod, and hereby acknowledged, that only upon ihe proper exccutlon of «
Jidly completed, farmal Lease contract, with all the Lease terms and conditions clearly
deflaed and included therein, will there then be any obligation, of any kind or namre,
incurrad or cronted berween the herein partics in conneciion with the referenced
proporiy. This proposad will cxpire within 5 busipass days,

Sincerely,

Attachment 2
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396 REMINGTON
BOLINBROOIK

Joel Berger John Millngr
Managing Dircctor Associate

Agreed to and Accepted: %a./éw.d%/__/ws.&m CRE Zove,

Date: (/5'.-3,.“

Exelusive Representative

# BRADFORD ALLEN

°Iey enteprameniol real stio sobtom Pnge 5 of 4

Attachment 2
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ATTACHMENT 3

OPERATING IDENTITY/LICENSEE CERTIFICATE OF
GOOD STANDING

Persons with 5% or more ownership interest in licensee.

Direct Interest:

None

Indirect Interest: % Ownership
ANIS ABDUL RAUF, D.O., FAS.N. 24 .5%
MOHAMMED S. AHMED, D.O. 24 .5%

1891453-1
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File Number 0352012-9

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

USRC BOLINGBROOK, LLC, HAVING ORGANIZED IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ON
MARCH 22, 2011, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN

GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IN THE STATE OF
ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 28TH

day of MARCH A.D. 2011

b Per - L ’
S _M/
Authentication #: 1708700916

Authenticate at: hitp-/iwww.cyberdriveillingis.com

SECAETARY OF STATE
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ATTACHMENT 4

ORGANIZATIONAL RELATIONSHIPS —
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

U.S. Renal Care Inc.

USRC Alliance LLC

A 4

USRC Bolingbrook
LLC

A

U.S. Renal Care
Bolingbrook Dialysis

1891453-1
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ATTACHMENT 5§

FLOOD PLAIN REQUIREMENTS

18914531
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Village of
Bolingbrook
170812

21
GE OF BOLINGBROOK
WILL COUNTY
County

orated Areas
Y0695

Rd

S Schmidt

Rd

S Schmidt

TS

FPPROXIMATE SCALE

wo_o FEET

Proposed U.S. Renal Care
Bolingbrook Dialysis Location

ZONE X

)
_ NATIONAL TLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM

m

| ———

FIRM

FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP

WILL COUNTY,
ILLINOIS
AND INCORPORATED AREAS

PANEL 62 OF 585

(SEE MAP INDEX FOH FANELS NOT PRINTED)
CONTANS:

COMMTY HNGIR PMEL ST
SUSECE. 1L - (-~ 4
aRECRU ALY O [Lix] [ 5] 8
RO RS -2 ] [~ E

Hobirs & U3t The W MBS shaw Belor houll OF verd
wnen DIOCHG MOD ONdH4; (v COMMGAITY MMBTR deawa
Sote ST Be baad wn ke oce Rpkenlom (e Ie waberd

MAP NUMBER
i797C0062 E

EFEECTIVE DATE :
- SEPTEMBER 6, 1995

Federal M.En-—onﬂ_ Management Agency

<

This is an ofelal copy of 3 portion of the above refemnced Aood msp. It

was extmctad using F-MIT Or-line. This map does not refect changes

of amendments which may haw bean made aubsequent to the date on tha
tde Wock. For the lgtest product Information about Natlonal Flood Insurance
Program fcod maps check the FEMA Fiood Map Stom at vaww. msc.fema. gov
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ATTACHMENT 6

ILLINOIS HISTORICAL PRESERVATION AGENCY
LETTER

18914531

Attachment6 35




Illinois Historic

=== Preservation Agency
. FAX (217) 782-8161

1 Old State Capitol Plaza * Springfield, lllinois 62701-1512 + www.illinois-history.gov

)

Will County
Bolingbrook
CON - Lease to Establish a Dialysis Facility, U.S. Renal Care

396 Remington Blvd.
IHPA Log #016032811

April 15, 2011

Shawn Moon

Ungaretti and Harris

Three First National Plaza
70 W. Madison - Suite 3500
Chicago, IL 60602-4224

Dear Mr. Moon:

This letter is to inform you that we have reviewed the information provided
concerning the referenced project.

Our review of the records indicates that no historic, architectural or
archaeological sites exist within the project area.

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of
the Illinois State Agency Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et.
seqg.). This clearance remains in effect for two years from date of issuance. It
does not pertain to any discovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for
purposes of the Illinois Human Skeletal Remains Protection Act (20 ILCS 3440).

If you have any further questions, please contact me at 217/785-5027.

Sincerely,

Anne E. Haaker
Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer

A teletypewriter for the speech/hearing impaired is available at 217-524-7128. It is not a voice of fe Attachment 6
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ATTACHMENT 7

PROJECT COST/SOURCE OF FUNDS
ITEMIZATION OF COSTS NOT OTHERWISE IDENTIFIED IN THE
PROJECT COST/SOURCE OF FUNDS TABLE

Architect Fees 42,000
Computers & Wiring 32,867
Dialysis Chairs { Scales 20,744
Fair Market Value of Dialysis

Machines Lease 188,166
Leasehold Improvement 721,900
Leasehold Improvement

Allowance {505,330)
Medical / Biomed Equipment 16,546
Fair Market Value of Leased

Space 1,779,291
Misc 11,244
Office Furniture / Equipment 98,601
Woater Treatment 80,000

18914531
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ATTACHMENT 8

OBLIGATION

1891453-1
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ATTACHMENT 9
COST SPACE REQUIREMENTS
Gross Square Feet Amount of Proposegh';t:tlasl_Gross Square Feet
Dept. / Argea Cost Existing |Proposed Cr::i\:t. Modemized Asls Vé:::eed
REVIEWABLE
In-Center
Hemodialysis $2,486,029 0 7,219 7,219
Total Clinical $2,486,029 0 7,219 7.219
NON REVIEWABLE
Adminisirative
Total Non-clinical
TOTAL $2,486,029 0 7,219 7,219

1891453-1
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ATTACHMENT 1!

BACKGROUND OF THE APPLICANT

Please find the attached certification from the Applicant as well as licenses associated with this
Project.

18914531
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DCA of Adel, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Adel Dialysis

203 Robinson St

Adel GA 31620

(220) 896-4529

EIN: 56-2335380

Licensc No, ESRD(01228

Medicare No. 112733

DCA of Ashland, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Ashland Dialysis

113 N Washington St

Ashland VA 23005

(804) 752-3444

EIN: 27-0094841

License No, N/A

Medicare No. 492622

DCA of Bamwell, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Barnwell Dialysis

10708 Marlboro Ave

Bamwell SC 29812

(803) 541.7225

EIN: 20-2131118

License No. ERD-0179

Medicare No. 422615

DCA of Calhoun, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Calhoun Dialysis

105 Professional P1

Calhoun GA 30701

(706) 624-4497

EIN: 20-4119620

License No. ESRD001266

Medicare No. 112770

DCA of Camp Hill, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Carn}) Hill Dialysis

158 S 32™ St Suite 19

Camp Hill PA 17011

(717) 731-0506

EIN: 26-1554083

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392750

DCA of Carlisle, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Carlisle Dialysis

101 Noble Blvd Suite 103

Carlisle PA 17013

(717} 258-3099

EIN: 23-2869880

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392627

DCA of Central Valdosta, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Central Valdosta Dialysis

506 N. Patterson St

Valdosta GA 31601

(229) 219-0099

EIN: 58-2617394

License No. ESRD001193

Medicare No. 112699

DCA of Chambersburg, Inc. d/b/a 11.5.
Renal Care Chambersburg Dialysis

765 54" Ave, Park 5™ Ave Professional
Center Suite A

Chambersburg PA 17201

(717) 263-9300EIN: 25-1810333
License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392648

DCA of Chesapeake, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Chesapeake Dialysis

305 Coliege Parkway

Amold MD 21012

(410) 431-5106

EIN: 20-4373428

License No. E2619

Medicare No. 112619

DCA of Chevy Chase, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Chevy Chase Dialysis

3 Bethesda Metro Center Suite B-005
Bethesda, MD 20814

{301) 652-3434

EIN: 75-2978031

License No, E2633

Medicare No. 21.2633

Attachment 11
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DCA of Cincinnati, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Mt Healthy Dialysis

7600 Affinity Pl

Mt Healthy OH 45231

(513) 931-7900

EIN: 31-1810465

License No. 0684DC

Medicare No. 362655

DCA of Columbus, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Columbus Dialysis

2360 Citypate Dr

Columbus OH 43219

(614) 428-4001

EIN: 20-8388926

License No, 0880DC

Medicare No. 362662

DCA of Delaware County, LLC d/b/a U.S.

Renal Care Delaware County Dialysis
1788 Columbus Pike

Delaware OH 43015

(740) 369-4870

EIN: 20-5799636

License No., 0871DC

Medicare No. 362713

DCA of Eastpate, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Eastgate Dialysis

4600 Beechwood Rd Suite 900
Cineginnati OH 45244

(513) 528-3222

EIN: 26-4578574

License No. 0968DC

Medicare No. 362762

DCA of Edgefield, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Edgefield Dialysis

306 Main St

Edgefield SC 26824

(803) 637-3225

EIN: 20-2131213

License No. ERD-0]149

Medicare No. 422602

18914531

DCA of Fitzgerald, LLC d/b/a .S, Renal
Care Fitzgerald Dialysis

402 S Grant St

Fitzgerald GA 31750

{229) 409-2221

EIN: 58-2596232

License No. ESRD001191

Medicare No. 112698

DCA of Hawkinsville, LLC d/b/a U.S,
Renal Care Hawkinsville Dialysis

292 Industrial BLvd Suite 100
Hawkinsville GA 31036

(478) 892-8008

EiN: 20-8548207

License No, ESRD001199

Medicare No. 112707

DCA of Hyattsville, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Hyattsville Dialysis

4920 LaSalle Road

Hyattsville, MD 20782

(301) 277-0490

EIN: 26-3674421

License No. E2620

Medicare No. 212620

DCA of Kenwood, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Kenwood Dialysis

5150 E Galbraith Rd

Cincinnati OH 45236

(513) 791-2698

EIN: 26-4578451

Lieense No, 0956DC

Medicare No. 362759

DCA of Manahawkin, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Manahawkin Dialysis

675 State Hwy 72 Suite 1006-B
Manahawin NJ 08050

(609) 978-6723

EIN: 22-3491564

License No. 22277

Medicare No. 312539
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DCA of Mechanicsburg, LLC d/b/a U S,
Renal Care Mechanicsburg Dialysis

120 South Filbert St

Mechanicsburg PA 17055

{(717) 790-6080

EIN: 23-3078802

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392691

DCA of North Baltimore, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care North Baltimore Dialysis
2700 N Charles St Suite 102

Baltimore MD 21218

(410) 243-4193

EIN: 20-4373297

License No. E2577

Medicare No. 212577

DCA of Norwood, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Norwood Dialysis

1721 Tennesee Ave

Cincinnati OH 45229

(513)242-6733

EIN: 86-1117490

License No. 0773DC

Medicare No. 362681

DCA of Pottstown, LLC d/b/a U_S. Renal
Care Pottstown Dialysis

5 S Sunnybrook Rod Suite 500
Pottstown PA 19464

(610) 718-1127

EIN: 47-0924656

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392707

DCA of Rockville, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Rockville Dialysis

11800 Nebei St

Rockville MD 20852

(301) 468-3221

EIN: 06-1707727

License No. E264]

Medicare No. 212641

1891453-1

DCA of Royston, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Royston Dialysis

611 Cook St

Royston GA 30662

(706) 2345-0817

EIN: 20-0546217

License No. ESRD001105

Medicare No, 112719

DCA of Selinsgrove, LLC d/b/a 1J.5. Renal
Care Selinsgrove Dialysis

EIN: 20-8030379

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392728

DCA of SO GA, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
South Georgia Dialysis

3564 N Crossing Cir

Valdosta GA 31602

(229) 249-3222

EIN: 22-3715287

License No. ESRID001180

Medicare No. 112688

DCA of South Aiken, LLC d/b/a U.S. Rcnal
Care South Aiken Dialysis

169 Crepe Myrtle Dr

Aiken SC 29803

EIN: 20-2130991

License No. ERD-0156

Medicare No. 422604

DCA of Toledo, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Bowling Green Dialysis

1037 Conncaut Ave Suite 101

Bowling Green OH 43402

(419) 353-1080

EIN: 34-1933418

License No. 0631DC

Medicare No. 362630

DCA of Vineland, LLC d/b/a 1J.S. Renal
Care Vineland Dialysis

1450 East Chestnut Ave Bldg 2 Suite C
Vineland NJ 08361

(856) 692-9060

EIN: 52-2180919

License No. 22278

Medicare No. 312551
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DCA of Warsaw, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Warsaw Dialysis

4709 Richmond Rd

Warsaw VA 22572

(804) 333-4444

EIN: 13-4226110

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 492627

PCA of Wellsboro, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Wellsboro Dialysis

223 Tioga St

Wellsboro PA 16901

(570) 724-3188

EIN: 25-1762601

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392602

DCA of West Baltimore, LLC d/bfa 11.8.
Renal Care West Baltimore Dialysis

22 S Athol St

Baltimore MD 21229

(410) 947-3227

EIN: 75-3170570

License No. E2647

Medicare No. 112647

DCA of York, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
York Dialysis

1975 Kenneth Rd

York PA 174808

(717) 764-8322

EIN: 76-0792137

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392731

Keystone Kidney Care, Inc d/b/a 1.5. Renal
Care Bedford Dialysis

141 Memorial Dr

Everett PA 15537

(814) 623-2977

EIN: 25-1663054

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392612

1891453-1

Keystone Kidney Care, Inc d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Huntingdon Dialysis

820 Bryan St Suite 4

Huntingdon PA 16652

(814) 643-3600

EIN: 25-1663054

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392656

Pine Bluff Dialysis, Inc. d/b/a Kidney
Center of McGehee

610 Holly St

Mc Gehee, AR 71654-2109

(870) 222-6700

EIN: 71-0855258

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 04-2565

Pine Bluff Dialysis, Inc. d/b/a Pine Bluff -
U.S. Renal Care

2302 W 28th Ave, Suite C

Pine Bluff, AR 71603-5081

(870) 534-7400

EIN: 71-0835258

License No. N/A

Medicare No. (4-2564

1J.5. Renal Care Boerne, LLC d/bfa U.S.
Renal Care Boerne Dialysis

1595 South Main Suite 107

Boemne, TX 78006

(830) 816-3030

EIN: 43-2099925

License No. 008371

Medicare No. 67-2563

U.S. Renal Care Home Therapies, LLC
1313 La Concha Ln

Houston, TX 77054-1809

(713) 668-2744

EIN: 32-0223510

License No. 008644

Medicare No. 45-2840
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U.S. Renal Care of Northeast Arkansas LLC
d/b/a Paragouid - 1.S. Renal Care

901 W Kingshighway

Paragould, AR 72450

(870) 215-0187

EIN; 62-1826477

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 04-2562

TSRC Altoona, LLC d/b/a U.8. Renal Care
Altoona Dialysis

200 E Chestnut Ave Suite 3-A

Altoona PA 16601

EIN: 27-3164836

License No. Pending

Medicare No. Pending

USRC Atascosa County Dialysis, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Atascosa County Dialysis
1320 W Qaklawn Rd

SUITE G&H

Pleasanton, TX 78064-4304

(830) 569-3052

EIN: 26-1394783

License No. 008674

Medicare No. 672631

USRC Azle, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Azle

605 Northwest Parkway Suite |

Azle TX 76020

(817) 406-4331

EIN: 26-4113763

License No. 110026

Medicare No. 672652

USRC Bellaire Dialysis, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Bellaire Dialysis

7243 Bissonnet Dr Suite A

Houston TX 77074

(713) 988.7200

EIN: 26-1527679

License No. 110013

Medicare No. Pending

18%1453-1

USRC Canton, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Canton Dialysis

400 E TX 243 Suite 14

Canton TX 75103

(903) 567-2250

EIN: 26-2409182

License No, 008728

Medicare No. 672607

USRC Clebumne, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Cleburne

1206 W Henderson Suite A

Cleburne TX 76033

(817) 641-5530

EIN: 26-3465019

License No. 110025

Medicare No. 672650

USRC College Partnership, LP d/b/a Baylor
College of Medicine - Scoit Street Dialysis
6120 Scott Street Ste IF

Houston TX 77021

(713) 741-7059

EIN: 20-8317462

License No. 008624

Medicare No. 672605

USRC Dalton, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Dalton Dialysis

1009 Professional Blvd

Dalton GA 30720-2506

(706) 278-1070

EIN: 27-3966564

License No. ESRD001109

Medicare No, 11-2524

UUSRC Delta, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Delta Dialysis

400 East Edinburg Bivd

Elsa, TX 78543

(956) 581-8489

EIN: 56-2584922

License No. 008419

Medicare No. 67-2557
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USRC Downtown San Antonio, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Carc Downtown San Antonio
Dialysis
343 W Houston St Ste 209
San Antonio TX 78205
(210) 251-2824
-EIN:26-3721871
License No. 110024
Medicare No. Pending

USRC Eagle Pass, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Maverick County Dialysis

3420 Amy Street

Eaglc Pass, TX 78852

(830) 773-8878

EIN: 56-2533704

License No. 008305

Medicare No. 67-2534

USRC East Ft Worth LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis East Fort Worth
6450 Brentwood Stair Rd

Fort Worth Texas 76112

(817) 888-3015

EIN: 27-3360902

License No. Pending

Medicare No. Pending

USRC Edinburg, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Edinburg Dialysis

206 Conquest

Edinburg, TX 78539

(956) 383-84388

EIN: 41-2166757

License No. 008539

Medicare No. 45-2890

USRC Friendswoed Dialysis, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Friendswood Dialysis
3324 EFM 528

Friendswood TX 77546

(281) 993-5067

License No. 008692

Mocdicare No. 672624

1891453-1

USRC Gateway Dialysis, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Gateway Dialysis

7171 New Hwy 90 West Suite 101

San Antonio, TX 78227

(210) 673-9200

EIN: 26-2064040

License No. 008664

Medicare No. 45-2851

USRC Grove, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Grove Dialysis

1200 NEO Loop Suite B&C

Grove OK. 74344

(918) 787-2900

EIN: 27-2194282

License No. N/A

Medicare No. Pending

USRC Harlingen, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Harlingen Dialysis

4302 Sesame Drive

Harlingen, TX 78550

(956) 3654103

EIN: 41-2166755

License No. 008196

Medicare No. 45-2817

USRC Kingwood, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Kingwood Dialysis

24006 Hwy 59 North

Kingwood TX 77339

(713) 741-7059

EIN: 20-8996067

License No. 008603

Medicare No. 672604

USRC Laredo South LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Laredo South Dialysis

4602 Ben Cha Road

Laredo, TX 78041

(956) 668-8484

EIN: 20-5786850

License No. 008497

Medicare No. 67-2566
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USRC Laredo, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Carc
Laredo Dialysis

6801 McPherson Road Suite 107
Laredo, TX 78041

(956) 725-1202

EIN: 41-2166761

License No. 008197

Medicare No. 45-2823

USRC McAllen, LLP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
McAllen Dialysis

1301 East Ridge Road Suite C

McAllen, TX 78503

(956) 668-8484

EIN: 41-2166763

License No. 008198

Medicare No. 45-2820

USRC Medina County Dialysis, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Medina County Dialysis
3202 Avenue G

Hondo, TX 78861

(830) 426-3843

EIN: 26-2175292

License No. 007311

Medicare No. 45-2765

USRC Mid Valley Weslaco LP d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Mid Valley Weslaco Dialysis
1005 South Airport Drive

Weslaco, TX 78596

(956) 581-8489

EIN: 412166767

License No. 008429

Medicare No. 45-2870

USRC Mineral Wells, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis Mineral Wells

2611 Highway 180 West

Mineral Wells TX 76067

(940) 468-2704

EIN: 26-4113811

License No. 110043

Medicare No. Pending

1891453-1

USRC Mission, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Mission Dialysis

1300 S Bryan Rd Suite 107

Mission, TX 78572-6626

{956) 581-8489

EIN: 41-2166764

License No. 110005

Medicare No. 67-2502

USRC Murray County, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Murray County Dialysis
108 Hospital Dr

Chatsworth GA 30705-2058

(706) 517-4818

EIN: 27-3989608

License No, ESRD001178

Medicare No. 11-2685

USRC N Richland Hills LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis North Richland Hills
6455 Hilltop Drive Suite 112

North Richland Hills, TX 76180-6039

(817) 877-3934

EIN: 16-1774637

License No. 008430

Medicare No. 67-2554

USRC of SE Arkansas, LLC d/b/a Stuitgart -
U.S. Renal Care

805 W, Madison Street

Stuttgart, AR 72160-2543

(870) 673-0008

EIN: 43-1958286

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 04-2579

USRC Rio Grande LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Carc
Rio Grande Dialysis

2787 Pharmacy Road

Rio Grande City, TX 78582

EIN: 41-2166762

(956) 487-2929

License No. 008668

Medicare No. 45-2664
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USRC SA Bandera Road LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Bandara Road Dialysis

7180 Bandera Road

San Antonio, TX 78238

(210) 403-9493

EIN: 90-0185327

License No. 008087

Medicare No. 45-2895

USRC SA Houston Street, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Houston Street Dialysis

2011 East Houston Street Suite 102d

San Antonio, TX 78202

(210) 225-0004

EIN: 34-2011633

License No. 008134

Medicare No. 67-2506

USRC SA Pleasanton Road, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Pleasanton Road Dialysis

1515 Pleasanton Road

San Antonio, TX 78221

(210) 922-6255

EIN: 20-8968868

License No. 008588

Medicare No. 67-2510

USRC SA Tri County LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tri County Dhalysis

14832 Main Street

Lytle, TX 78052

(830) 772-5784

EIN: 42-1639878

Licénse No. 008135

Medicare No. 67-2507

USRC San Benito Dialysis Ltd d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care San Benito Dialysis

295 North Sam Houston

San Benito, TX 78586

(956) 668-8484

EIN: 41-2166758

Licensc No. 008215

Medicare No. 67-2514

1891453-1

USRC SW Ft Worth LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis Southwest Fort Worth
5127 Old Granbury Road

Fort Worth, TX 76133-2017

(817) 877-3934

EIN: 16-1774638

License No. 008443

Medicare No. 67-2559

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Central Fort Worth
4201 East Berry Street Suite 8

Fort Worth, TX 76105

(817) 531-0326

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008457

Medicare No. 45-2799

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Fort Worth

1001 Pennsylvania Avenue

Fort Worth, TX 76104

(817) 877-5907

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008467

Medicare No. 45-2579

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Grand Prairie

1006 North Carrier Parkway

Grand Prairie, TX 75050

(972) 263-7202

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008468

Medicare No. 45-2855

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Mansfield

1800 Hwy 157 North Suite 101
Mansfield, TX 76063-3930

(682) 518-0126

EIN: 87-0746621

Lieense No. 008464

Medicare No. 45-2896
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USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis North Fort Worth

1978 Ephriham Avenue

Fort Worth, TX 76106-6670

(817) 624-7811

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008454

Medicare No. 45-2838

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis South Fort Worth
119035 Medpark Drive

Burleson, TX 76028

(817) 293-1978

ETN: 87-0746621

License No. 008465

Medicare No. 45-2637

USRC Tarrant, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Arlington

203 West Randol Mill Road

Arlington, TX 76011

(817)275-7787

ETN: §7-0746621

Licensc No. 008463

Medicare No. 45-2580

USRC Tarrant, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Carc
Tarrant Dialysis Tarrant County

1009 Pennsylvania Avenue

Fort Worth, TX 76104

(817) 877-1515

EIN: 8§7-0746621

License No. 008466

Medicare No. 45-2656

USRC Valley McAllen LP d/b/a U.S. Renal

Carc Valley McAllen Dialysis
109 Toronto Suite 100
McAllen, TX 78503

(956) 994-3374

EIN: 41-2166760

License No. 008199
Medicare No. 45-2872

1891453-1

USRC Weatherford LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis Weatherford

504 Santa Fe Drive

Weatherford, TX 76086-6503

(817) 594-2832

License No. 008567

Medicare No. 67-2543

USRC West Fort Worth Dialysis LP d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Tarrant Dialysis West Fort
Worth

1704 S Cherry Lane Suite 200

White Settlement, TX 76108-3629

(817) 367-0822

EIN: 26-1527980

Licensc No. 008649

Medicare No. 672637

USRC Westover Hills, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Westover Hills Dialysis
11212 State Highway Building Two Suitc
100

San Antonio TX 78216

EIN: 27-3170218

License No. Pending

Medicare No. Pending
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ATTACHMENT 11

BACKGROUND OF THE APPLICANT

Certification & Authorization
USRC Bolingbrook LL.C

As required by 77 1ll. Admin. Code 1110.230, I certify that no adverse actions have been taken
against USRC Bolingbrook LLC, or any facility owned or operated by the Applicant, by

Medicare, Medicaid, or any State or Federal regulatory authority during the 3 years prior to the
filing of this Certificate of Need application; and

As required by 77 Ill. Admin. Code 1110.230, I authorize the lllinois Health Facilities and
Services Review Board and Illinois Department of Public Health to access to information in
order to verify any documentation or information submitted in response to the requirements of

this subsection or to obtain any documentation or information related to this Certificate of Need
application.

P e

Signature 4

Thomas .. Weinberg
Printed Name

Manager
Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19" day of May , 2011

v

Signature of Notary

Seal
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ATTACHMENT 12

PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT

As identified in the most-recently .available IDPH Revised Needs Determinations for
ESRD Stations dated April 20, 2011, HSA 9 currently has an excess of (67) ESRD stations. As
indicated in the table below, those facilities within a thirty-minute drive time are currently
experiencing overall occupancy levels nearing the state defined utilization target with several
facilities operating at near capacity. This high utilization has a negative effect on the ability for
patients to obtain timely dialysis service in this area. Paticnts forced to travel further for dialysis
services will encounter access issues as the increased travel tirne for treatment three times a week
will have a negative effect on patient access. Applicant means to address this barrier to patient
access through the proposed facility. Applicant has identified 106 pre-ESRD patients who are
anticipated to require dialysis facilities in the next 1-3 years. In addition, this increase in ESRD
patients is based upon cwrrent patient populations and does not include future patients that
present with diagnoses of CKD4 or CKDS5. U.S. Renal Care Bolingbrook Dialysis will help
alleviate this barrier to patient access by making 13 additional stations available to pre-ESRD
patients. In addition, the project will provide ESRD patients with another choice for providers of
dialysis services. According to the state agency's utilization inventory, the top three providers
account for 72%. of the dialysis stations in HSA 9.

Most importantly, as indicated in the attached article, Chronic Kidney Disease in United
States Hispanics: A Growing Public Health Problem, Hispanic populations have an incidence
rate of ESRD which is 1.5 times greater than for Non-Hispanic Whites with some studies
documenting Hispanic populations with incidence rates as high as 6 versus Non-Hispanic White
populations. Exacerbating this incidencc rate, the Bolingbrook area has seen a dramatic increase
in the Hispanic population as demonstrated by 2010 census data. Bolingbrook currently
maintains a Hispanic population of 24.5%, which excceds similar demographic populations for
both the state of Ilinois and Will County, at 15.8% and 15.6% respectively. As such, the needs
assessment for HSA 9 grossly underestimates the need for dialysis stations in HSA 9. A survey
of patients seen in the Advanced Renal Care, Hinsdale location for the last year identifies the
following Hispanic patients with diagnoses of Chronic Kidney Disease: 55 patients with a
diagnosis of CKD3, 15 with CKD4 and 5 with CKD5. This population represents over 18.1% of
the patients seen by this practice. As indicated by these statistics, the Bolingbrook area will
require additional dialysis resources above and beyond those resources identified by the current
needs assessment.

1891453-1
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PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT

REVISED NEED DETERMINATIONS

32072011
ESRD STATIONS
ESRD APPROVED CALCULATED  ADDITIONAL EXCESS
SERVICE EXISTING STATION STATIONS ESRD
AREAS STATIONS NEED NEEDED STATIONS
HSA 1 131 134 3 0
HSA 2 145 149 4 0
HSA 3 155 142 0 13
HSA 4 156 164 8 0
HSA & 176 142 [t} 33
HSA & 1.03¢ 1,083 53 a
HSA 7 1,054 1,056 14 1}
HSA 8 330 2595 [l 35
HSA 8 229 182 [y 67
HSA 10 86 56 0 30
HSA 11 153 155 2 1]
ILLINDIS TOTAL 3,644 3,550 84 178

AMBULATORY SURGICAL TREATMENT CENTERS

ASTC ASTC OPERATING
PLANNING AREAS FACILITIES ROOMS
HSA 1 4 11
HSA 2 B 18
HSA 3 5 12
HSA 4 15 41
HSA 5 10 20
HSA ] 22 57
HSA 7 46 149
HSA B 14 40
HSA 9 9 25
HSA 10 4 9
HSA 11 11 20
ILLINDIS TOTAL 146 402

1891453-1
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CHRONIC KIDNEY DISEASE IN UNITED STATES HisPaniCs: A GROWING PUBLIC

HEALTH PROBLEM

Hispanics are the fastest growing minority
group in the United States. The incidence of
end-stage renat disease (ESRD) in Hispanics is
higher than non-Hispanie Whites and Hispan-
ics with chronic kigney disease (CKD} are at
increased sk for kidney failure. Likely con-
tributing factors to this burden of disease
include diabetes and metabolic syndrome,
both are common among Hispanics. Access
to heakh care, quality of care, and barriers due
to language, health literacy and acculturation
may also play a role. Despite the importance of
this public health problem, only limited data
exist about Hispanics with CKD. We review
the epidemiciogy of CKD in US Hispanics,
jdentify the factors that may be responsible for
this prowing health problem, and supgest gaps
in our understanding which are suitable for
future investigation. (Ethn Dis. 2009;79:466—
472}

Key Words: Chronie Kidney Disease, His-
panics, Health Care Disparities

From University of lllinois at Chicago,
Department of Medicine, Section of Ne-
phrology (CML, AP, ACR, JPL); Division of
Research, Kaiser Permanente of Northem
California and University of California, San
Francisco (ASCY, Depanment of Preventive
Medicine, Northwestern University Fein-
berg School of Medicine {(MLD); National
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Diabetes and Digestive and Kidney Diseas-
es, National Institutes of Health (Wi}
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Claudia M. Lora, MD; Martha L. Daviglus, MD, PhD; John W. Kusek, PhD;
Anna Porter, MD; Anz C. Ricardo, MDD, MPH; Alan 5. Go, MD;

INTRODUCTION

Berween 2004 and 2005, the num-
ber of Hispanic in the United States
grew by 3.6 percent ta reach a rtowal of
42.7 million (representing nearly 15%
of the toral US population), making this
the fastest growing segment of the
population in the country.' A large
increase has also occurred in the
Hispanic end stage tenal disease
(ESRD)} population. Accerding to Unit-
ed States Renal Data System (USRDS),
in 2005, there were 12,000 new cases of
ESRD treaced with dialysis or transplant
in Hispanics, representing an increase of
63% since 1996. Hispanics have an
incidence rate of ESRD which is 1.5
times greater than for non-Hispanics
Whires.? This increase in ESRD cases
not only translates into an increased
burden to our health are system, but
also emphasizes the importance of berter
understanding risk factors for chronic
kidney disease (CKD} in Hispanics, In
this review, we examine the epidemiol-
ogy of CKI} in US Hispanics, explore
potendal reasons for this growing public
health problem, and highlight potential

areas for future research.

METHODS

We performed a qualiracdve review
of the lterature urilizing a PubMed
scarch for the following keywords:
chronic kidney disease, Hispanics, Lati-
nos, end stape renal disease, diabetes,
dialysis, rransplantation, and heatth care
disparitics. In addition, we reviewed
data from the USRDS™ and the Organ
Procurement and Teansplaneation Net-
work.® For the purpose of this review,
the term Hispanic ethnicity refers to all
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James P Lash, MD

Hispanics have an incidence
rate of ESRD which is 1.5
times greater than for non-
Hispanics Whites.”

persons of Latin American origin living
in the United States, unless indicated
otherwise. Hispanics are culturally,
socioeconomically, and genetically het-
erogencous 2nd represent a wide variety
of national origins and social dasses.” In
terms of ancestry, US Hispanics erigi-
nate from three populations: European
settlers, Nadive Americans, and West
Africans. The breakdown for the US
Hispanic population is as follows: 64%
Mexican, 9% Puerto Rican, 3.5%
Salvadoran and 2.7% Dominican.'
The remainder is of Central American,
South American or other Hispanic or
Larino origin.

EPIDEMIOLOGY OF CKD
1IN HISPANICS

Glomerular filtration rare (GFR)
cstimating equations have been used to
determine the prevalence of CKD in the
United States. The abbreviated Modifi-
cation of Diet in Renal Disease
{(MDRD) equation has been considered
to be the most accurate available
estimating cquation for GFR and has
been used widely in the liverature and by
a prowing number of dlinical laborato-
sies.® Though the equation has been
demonstrated 1o have validity across a
spectrum of different subgroups,” there
are no data regarding its validity in
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Hispanics, This is 2 relevant concern
because the serum creatinine concentra-
tlon, which is used in the MDRD
equation 1o calculate estimated GFR
(eGFR), has been demonstrated to differ
by racial/ethnic groups. In an analysis of
serum creatinine levels in the Narional
Health and Nurrition Examination Sur-
vey (WHANES) I, Mexican Americans
had lower mean serum creadnine levels
than non-Hispanic Whites or non-His-
panic Blacks® The reasons for thesc
differences are unknown. Similarly, a
recent NHANES analysis of serum
gystatin C, a potentially more sensitive
marker of carly kidney dysfunction than
serum creatinine, reported lower levels of
cystatin C in Mexican Americans com-
pared with other racial/ethnic groups
studied.” These differences in the distri-
bution of serum creatinine and cysatin
C levels in Hispanies reinforce the
importance of rigorously evaluating the
accuracy of GFR estimating equations in
Hispanics.'®

INCIDENCE AND
PREVALENCE OF CKD
IN HISPANICS

Mild to Moderate CKD
Information regarding earlier stages
of CKD in Hispanics is limited. Several
investigatars have reported a higher
prevalence of microatbuminuria in His-
panics compared with non-Hispanic
Whites.'™'? In contrast to these find-
ings, a recent analysis of NHANES 111
dara suggests that the prevalence of
CKD may be lower in Mexican Amer-
icans than in non-Hispanic Whitcs or
non-Hispanic Blacks, In an analysis of
NHANES III, moderately decreased
kidncy function (eGFR 30-59 mL{/min-
ute/1.73 m?) was most prevalent among
non-Hispanic Whites (489} and non-
Hispanic Blacks (3.1%) and least prev-
alent in Mexican Americans {1.0%)."
Berween NHANES 1988 to 1994 and
1994 ro 2004, the prevalence of CKD
rose among Mexican Americans but
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continued to be lower than that ob-
served in non-Hispanic Whites and
Blacks."

These dara are not consistent with
the higher prevalence rates of ESRD in
Hispanics, One potential explanation is
thar Hispanics have a higher risk of
ESRD because of more rapid progres-
sion of CKD after its onsex, rather than
simply 2 larger pool of individuals with
CKD. The findings could also be
related o methodological issues relared
1o the sample size or sampling bias.
Furthermore, as discussed earlier, the
validity of the MDRD equation has not
been established in Hispanics and
utilizing the equadon in Hispanies
could be an important potential source
of error. Lastly, NHANES includes only
Mexican Americans and these findings
may not be generalizable o other
Hispanic subgroups.

End Stage Renal Disease (ESRD)

It is well established that Hispanics
have a higher prevalence of ESRD than
non-Hispanic Whites. The increased
prevalence of treated ESRD in Hispan-
ies was first recognized in the 1980s.
Using data from the state of Texas,
Mexican Americans were found to have
an excess of ESRD compared with non-
Hispanic Whites with an incidence ratio
of 3.' For diabetic ESRD, Metican
Americans had an incidence ratio of 6
compared with non-Hispanic Whites.
The first study at a national tevel
analyzed male Hispanics identifted in
Medicare ESRD program data files.
Using common Spanish surnames rto
identify cases, it was found that His-
panics developed ESRD at 2 younger
age than non-Hispanic Whires; and
between 1980 and 1990, ESRD inci-
dence rates increased more for Hispan-
ics.)” In 1995, the USRDS began 1w
acquire dara regarding Hispanic ethnic-
ity. In 2006, the adjusted incidence rarte
for ESRD in Hispanics was 1.5 times
higher than for non-Hispanic Whites.?
Furthermore, between 1996 and 2005,
the incidence rate for Hispanics in-
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Table 1. Leading causes of ESRD
requiring dialysis in Hispanics and
non-Mispanic Whites in 2000°

Non-
Primary Hispanic
disease Hispanics  Whites
Diabetes 58.8% 38.8%
Hypertension/targe
vessel disease 16.2% 2}7%

Glomeritonephritis 5.1% 9.9%
Efiology uncertain 3.5% 4.0%
COnher 12.4% 23.6%

creased by 63%. In contrast, Burrows
et al examined wends in age-adjusted ©
ESRD rates and reported that the age-
adjusted ESRD rate in Hispanics de-
creased by approximarely 15%, from
2000 o 2005 (530.2 vs 448.9).'
However, there was an overall increase
in the age-adjusted incidence rates in
Hispanics in 2005 as compared with
1995 (448.9 vs 395.0). Lt is apparent
that a lenger period of follow-up time is
needed to berer characterize erends.
The leading causes of ESRD requiring
dialysis in Hispanics and non-Hispanic
Whires are described in Table 1. Dia-
betes accounts for 59% of prevalent
casts of ESRD in Hispanic compared
with 39% of cases in non-Hispanic
Whites.} Unfortunately, data reparding
canses of ESRD by Hispanic subgroup
are not available.

The incidence and severity of diabe-
tes are important factors in the excessive
incidence of diabetic ESRD observed in
Hispanics. The prevalence of diabetes in
Hispanics has been estimated 10 be
approximately 1.5 tm 3 times that seen
in the non-Hispanie White population
and its incidence is rising.'” Moreover,
Hispanics have been found o have
lower rates of glucose self-monitoring
and poorer glycemic control compared
with nen-Hispanic Whites.*® Hispanics
wich diabetes may be at increased risk to
develop dizbetic nephropathy. Mexican
American diabetics in San Antonio,
Texas had a higher prevalence of
proteinuria than non-Hispanic White
dishetics from Wisconsin.*' However,

467
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no such difference was observed in the
San Luis Valley.” The importance of
non-diabertc CKD in Hispanics is not
completely understood. Though hyper-
tension is less prevalent in Hispanics,
Mexican Americans had the highest rate
of uncontrolled hyperiension in
NHANES IIL.** Data from Texas and
the USRDS demonstrate a higher
incidence of ESRD due to hypertension
in Hispanics than in nen-Hispanic
\Irhims'lﬁ.zni

Progression of CKD
in Hispanics

Only limited information is avail-
able regarding progression rates and risk
factors for CKD in Hispanjcs. In a
multivariable reirospective analysis of a
cohort of 263 type 2 diabetic ESRD
patients, Mexican ethnicity and female
sex were found 1o hasten the decline of
renal function,® A post hoc analysis of
the Reduction of Endpoints in
NIDDM with the Angiotensin II An-
tagonist Losarean Study (RENAAL)
found that Hispanics had the highest
risk for ESRD compared with Blacks
and Whites.”® However, the majority of
Hispanics in this study were from Ladin
American countries and therefore, the
findings may not be applicable 10 US
Hispanics. A recent analysis of patients
enrolled in Kaiser Permanente of
Northern California, a large integrated
healthcare delivery system, has clarified
the risk of ESRD in US Hispanics with
CKD.* 1n 39,550 patients with stage 3
o 4 CKD, Hispanic cthnicity was
associated with almost a two-fold in-
creased risk for ESRD when compared
with non-Hispanic Whites. This in-
creased risk was ateenuaced to 33% after
adjustment for diabetes, medication nse,
and other characteristics. Thus, the risk
for progression to ESRD in Hispanics is
only partially explained by diabetes.

Even less is known about progres-
sion rates and risk factors for non-
diabetic CKD in Hispanics. Some
reports suggest that certain glomerular
diseases may be more severe and
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progress more ofien in Hispanics than
in non-Hispanic Whites.”* 2% In a
recent examination of rates of progres-
sion in 128 patiencs with proliferative
lupus nephritis, Batr ¢t al. found that
Hispanic echnicity was independendy
associated with progression of CKD.
Another siudy examining patients with
lupus found thar Texan-Hispanic eth-
nicity was more likely 1o be associated
with nephritis than Puerto Rican eth-
nicity.?’ This suggests that outcomes
can vary by Hispanic subgroup.

US Hispanics have been poorly
represented in large prospective CKD
studies. The ongoing NIDDK-spon-
sored Hispanic Chrenic Renal Insuffi-
ciency Cohort Srudy (HCRIC) s inves-
tigating risk factors for CKD and
cardiovascular disease {CVD) propres-
sion in a cohort of 326 Hispanics with
CKD. This study is based ac the
University of lllinois at Chicago and is
an ancillary study o the NIDDK-
sponsored CRIC Study.™

Memabolic Syndrome and CKD
Recent analyses of NHANES I[II
dara found that merholic syndrome
affects over 47 million Americans and
that the problem is more pronounced in
Hispanics. ™ Mexican Americans have
the highest age-adjuswed prevalence of
metabolic syndrome (31.9%) compared
with non-Hispanic Whites (23.8%) and
Blacks {21.695).3% There is now emerg-
ing evidence supporting a relationship
berween metabolic syndrome and
CKD.**?® 1n a prospeciive cohort
study of Native Americans withour
diabetes, metaholic syndrome was asso-
ciated with an increased risk for devel-
oping CKD.* In non-diaberic subjects
with normal kidney function enrolled in
the Atherosclerasis Risk in Communi-
ties Study (ARIC), investigators found
an adjusted odds ratio of developing
CKD in participants with metabolic
syndrome of 1.43 compared with par-
ticipants who did not have the syn-
drome ®® These dara supgest that mer-
abolic syndrome could be an important
factor in the Hispanic CKD) population.
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DISPARITIES IN HEALTH
CARE AND PREVALENCE AND
PROGRESSION OF CKD

The imponance of healthcare dis-
parities in CKD has received increased
rccognition,“' buc litde is known re-
garding the impact of healthcare dispar-
ities on health outcomes in Hispanics
with CKD. It is well substantiated that
there arc considerable disparitics in
health cre for Hispanics,™ According
to a reporr by the Commonwealth
Fund, nearly two-thirds (65%) of
working-age Hispanics with low in-
comes were uninsuzred for all or part of
the year in 2000.*' Using NHANES 11
data, Harris evaluated healtheare access
and utilization, and health status and
outcomes for patients with type 2
diabetes.™ Mexican Americans below
ape 65 years had lower rates of health
insurance coverage than non-Hispanic
Whites and Blacks {66% vs 91% and
899, respectively). Fumhermore, Mex-
ican Americans with private insurance
or a high school educarion or more were
more likely 10 have normoalbumi-
nuria.®® The quality of care reeeived
by Hispanics may also play a role in the
progression of kidney disease. Hispanics
with diabetes are less likely to report
having, had a foor exam or glycosylated
hemoglobin testing.*” As noted earlier,
Mexican Amcrican in NHANES I had
the highest rate of unconteolled hyper-
tension.® Lastly, Ifudu et al reported
that non-Whites, including Hispanics,
are more likely to receive a late refernal
ro a nephrologist for CKD manage-
ment.*? This study was limited by the
low number of Hispanics in the analy-
sis. These findings suggest that qualiry
of care may play a role in the high
prevalence of ESRD in this population,

Patient-centered factors may play a
particularly imporcant role for Hispan-
ics include language, health care literacy,
acculturation, social support, and trust
in healthcare providers. Hispanics who
are recent immigrants face a aumber of
potential bartiers to health care, includ-
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ing lack of familiaricy with the health-
care system and language barriers.
Spanish-spcaking Hispanics are less

likely to be insured, have access to care
41,44

and use preventive health services.
Trust in the healthcare system is another
imporrant factor because it has been
found to be significantly relared o
adherence.** Doescher et al found that
Hispanies reported significantly less
trust in their physician than non-
Hispanic Whites.*® Finally, social sup-
pory, defined as resources provided by 2
newwork of individuals or social groups,
has been found to have direct effects on
health status and health service utiliza-
tion.*” There have been no published
studies to date focusing on patient-
centered factors in Hispanics with
CKD. However, it scems reasonable to
speculate that these factors amplify
CKD and associated CVD risk.

CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASE
N HisPANICS W1TH ESRD
AND EARLIER STAGES

ofF CKD

Several studies have found that
Hispanics may have lower all-cause
and CV mortality rates than non-
Hispanic Whites.**>® The rerm, His-
panic paradox, has been used to describe
the lower than expected mortaliry rates
despite the increased incidence of dia-
betes and obesiry, lower socioeconomic
statas, and barriers o health care®' A
number of cxplanations have been
proposed, induding socio-culwral fac-
tors, cthnic misclassification, incom-
plete ascertainment of deaths, and the
healthy migrane effect.*®*? In the
ESRD population, Hispanics, Blacks,
and Asians have a lower risk of death
than non-Hispanic Whites, regardless of
dizbetes status.*™>3% 1n a1 recent
analysis of a national, random sample
of hemodialysis patients, Hispanics had
an adjusted 12-month morwlity risk
that was 25% lower than non-Hispanic
Whites.>* The reasons for the lower
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ESRD monality rates are not compiete-
ly understood, hut differences in surviv-
al have been notwed among Hispanic
subgroups with Mexican-Americans,
Cuban Americans and Hispanic-other
having an increased survival advanrage
compared with Puerte Rican Ameri-
cans.*® These findings suggest tha
socioculiural or genetic differences may
play a role in these lower ESRD
mortality rates and demonstradng the
importance of examining health out-
comes in subgroups of Hispanics,

Less is known regarding CVD risk
and disease in Hispanics with carlier
stages of CKD. An analysis of mormlity
rates of adults with CKD in NHANES
found no difference in CVD or all-cause
mortality in Mexican Americans com-
pared with non-Hispanic whites® In
contrast, Hispanic veterans with diabetic
CKD cexperienced a lower 18-month
mortality rate than nen-Hispanic
Whites.?® Though Hispanics in Kaiser
Permanente of Northern California had
zn increased rate of ESRD, Hispanic
ethnicity was associared with 29% lower
adjusted mortality rate and 19% lower
adjusted rate of CVI) events as compared
with non-Hispanic Whites, even after
accounting for major cardiovascular risk
factors, comorbidides and use of preven-
tative rherapics.” Again, the reasons for
these differences are not known.

END-STATE RENAL DISEASE
CARE IN US HISPANICS

Dialysis

Analysis of USRDS data reveals that
Hispanics are 1.47 times more likely
than non-Hispanic Whitcs to have Jate
initiation of dialysis.’® At the swrt of
dialysis, Hispanies tend to have slightly
lower hematocrit levels and are 139 Jess
likely to be on erythapoeisis stimulating
agents compared with non-Hispanic
Whites.® An analysis of a random
sample of Medicare cligible adulis on
hemodialysis in 1997 revealed thar,
compared with oon-Hispanic Whites,
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Hispanics on hemodialysis are more
likely to be female, younger, and have
diabetes.®’ Hispanics rend to have
higher albumin levels and similar he-
marocrit levels compared to non-His-
panic Whites, 336442

Little is known about ESRD care in
the United State for unauthorized
immigrants. Of the 11.8 million unau-
thorized immigrants in the United
States, more than B.46 million are
Hispanic."* The incidence rate for
ESRD for this population is unknown.
Many of these undocumenied aliens do
not receive systematic care before initi-
ation of dialysis, The quality and
availability of pre-ESRD care for unau-
thorized immigrants has not been
systematically studied. A small study of
undocumented ESRD patienes initiat-
ing dialysis in New York Ciry found
that these patients had higher serum
creatinine concentration and lower
¢GFR, higher systolic blood pressure,
and greater coses for the hospiralization
agsociated with the initiation of dialy-
sis.% However, a imirtion of this study
was that it only included 33 Hispanics.
An important issue regarding the dial-
ysis of unauthorized immigrants is che
compensation for dialysis, which varies
by individual stare and may limit the
availzbility of long-term dialysis for
undocumented aliens who are then
forced to receive dialysis on an emergent
basis only,%® The cost of care for
undocumented ESRD patients receiving
dialysis on an emergent basis is 3.7
tmes higher than for those unautho-
rized immigrants receiving Jong-term
maintenance dialysis.5* End-stage renal
disease in unauthorized immigrants is of
great public health and economic con-
cern and warrants future rescarch and
re-evaluation of current policies.

Transplantation

Limited data exist thar suppest that
Hispanics are equally likely to be
referred for remal wansplantation but
are less likely to proptess beyond the
early stages of the sransplant evaluation

469
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with some of the reasons induding
financial concerns, fear of the surgery,
and preference for dialysis.” Perhaps
for this reason, Hispanics are underrep-
resented on kidney waiting lists relative
1w the prevalence of CKD in this
population.®® Once placed on the
transplant wait liss, Hispanics have a
longer unadjusted median time to
transplant than non-Hispanic Whites,*
Factors thar potentially contribute to
the longer time on the wait list include
lower rates of organ donations in
Hispanics relative to Whites, 7% tess
knowlcdge and more fear-related barri-
ers to living organ donation,”” and
ethnic differences in the frequency of
HLA alletes coupled with current allo-
cation policies.” Data regarding graft
survival in Hispanics have not been
uniform, with some studies supgesting
that Hispanics and non-Hispanic
Whites have similar rates of graft
survival,”*7* while other studies have
demonstrated poorer rates of graft
survival in Hispanics”® More recently,
Gordon er al found betrer patient and
graft survival in Hispanics compared
with non-Hispanics.”® Further studies
are needed 1o clarify whether Hispanic
ethnicity influences post-transplant out-
comes. In addition, policies are needed
to address specific barriers within the
transplant evaluation process for His-
panics to ensure appropriate access to
this impormant therapy,

Compared with non-
Hispanics Whites, Hispanics
have an increased incidence of
ESRD that appears
independent of known clinical
risk factors.
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CONCLUSION

Chronic kidney disease is a growing
and under-recognized health problem
for US Hispanics, Compared with non-
Hispanics Whites, Hispanics have an
increased incidence of ESRD that
appears independent of known clinical
risk factors. Furthermore, ameng pa-
tients starting at the same level of CKD,
Hispanics are at increased risk for
progression to ESRD. Interestingly,
dama from NHANES suggest thac the
prevalence of CKD with decreased
eGER, at least in Mexican Americans,
is lower than in non-Hispanic Whites.
The reason for this discrepancy is
unclear but could be related to more
rapid progression of CKD. Many
questions remain unanswercd including;
factors influencing CKD progression
and CVD outcomes; the validicy of
curtent GFR estimating equations; in-
sights into differences in outcomes
among Hispanic subgroups; and the
impact of health care disparities on
CKD. Far these reasons, futurc research
is needed to better understand the
epidemiology and complications of
CKD in US Hispanics. Furthermore,
it is essential that adequate numbers of
US Hispanics are included in future
interventional trials to provide the

necessary evidence base to guide pre- -

vention and therapeutic strategies for
CKD and ESRD.
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ATTACHMENT 13

ALTERNATIVES

Alternative Options
1. A project of greater or lesser scope and cost

Projects of greater and lesser scope were considered in the planning stages of this project. The
alternative of a project of lesser scope would not sufficiently meet the need projected by
Applicant. As indicated in the Purpose of the Project section, Applicant has identified 106 pre-
ESRD patients that are anticipated to require dialysis services in the next 1 to 3 years. This
increasc in ESRD patients is based upon current patient populations and does not include future
patients that may present with diagnoscs of CKD4 or CKIDD5. As such, additional dialysis
stations are required to meet the needs of these patients.

2. Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or entities
to meet all or a portion of the project’s intended purposes; developing alternative settings
to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes

The operating model for this project is consistent with the standard that US Renal Care has
implemented in various states. This model allows US Renal Care to provide the quality
patient care services required by its patients while controlling costs, Pursuing an alternate
arrangement for the provision of these services may negate this proven operating model or
otherwise dilute the benefits realized by patients of US Renal Care.

3. Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of the
population the Project proposcs to serve

Patients who require dialysis treatment are limitcd in their options to utilize other health care
resources. Due to the high frequency of required treatment (3 treatments per week) and length of
treatment, patients must bc able to access conventently located and effective facilities. For
example, an inctemental increase in drive time of 10 minutes would result in an annual drive
time increase of 52 hours. Furthermore, based on the inventory of ESRD stations within HSA 9,
one provider controls approximately 37% of the stations in HSA 9 and the top three providers
account for 72%. This market dominance limits the availability of such services for patients who
cannot or will not obtain such services from these providers. In order to provide dialysis patients
with sufficient options in obtaining their required care from the provider of their choice,
Applicant proposes to provide dialysis services through this project.

Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of cost, patient access, quality and fimancial benefits in

both the short term (within onc to three years after project completion) and long term.
This may vary by preject or situation. (See Attached Comparison Chart)
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The applicant shall provide empirical cvidence, including quantified outcome data, that
verifies improved quality of care, as available.

Applicant maintains high levels of clinical quality for dialysis patients, on a corporate level U.S.
Renal Care has accomplished a three month average patient outcomes of 92% of patients with a
URR 265% and 92% of patients with Kt/V > 1.2 for the period ending March 31, 2011.
Applicant anticipates similar patient outcomes for the proposed project.
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ATTACHMENT 14

SIZE OF THE PROJECT
Size of Project
Department/Service Proposed State Difference Met
BGSF/DGSF Standard Standard?
In-Center Hemodialysis 555 450-650 -95 Yes
bgsf/Room bgsf/Room bgsf/Room

The amount of physical space for the proposed project is necessary, and not excessive, for the

provision of hemodialysis services. The 555 bgsf/Room of the proposed project falls well within
the state standard.
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ATTACHMENT 15

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION

Utilization
Historical Proiected
Dept/Service | Utilization/Patient Ur.clq A State Standard Met Standard?
Days et filization
ys etc.
In Center 30 patients / o
In Center 63 patients / o .
Year 2 Hemodialysis N/A 219% 80% YES

Applicant has identified 423 current patients in the area with diagnoses of CKD4 or CKD3. Of
thesc patients, applicant estimates that 106 patients will require dialysis services within the next
1-3 years. Based on Applicant's experience 10% of CKD 3, 50% of CKD 4 and 80% of CKD 3
will require dialysis services within 1 to 3 years. When project is completed, most all of the
patients Applicant has identified will require dialysis services within 2 years,

1891453-1
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED

As identified in the most-recently available IDPH Revised Needs Dcterminations for ESRD
Stations dated April 20, 2011, HSA 9 currently has an excess of (67) ESRD stations.
However, as identified in the table below, those facilities within a thirty-minute drive time are
currently experiencing overall occupancy levels nearing the state defined utilization target
with several facilities operating at near capacity, Patients forced to travel further for dialysis
scrvices will encounter access issues as the increased travel time for treatment three times a
week will have a negative effcct on patient access. Patients who require dialysis treatment are
limited in their options to utilize other hcalth care resources. Due to the high frequency of
required treatment (3 treatments per week) and length of treatment, patients must be able to
access convenicntly located and effective facilities. For example, an incremental increase in
drive time of 10 minutes would result in an annual drive time increase of 52 hours. U.S. Renal
Care Bolingbrook Dialysis will help alleviate this need by making 13 additional stations
available to pre-ESRD patients.

Most importantly, as indicated in Attachment 12, Hispanic populations have an incidence
rate of ESRD which is 1.5 times greater than for Non-Hispanic Whites with some studies
documenting Hispanic populations with incidence rates as high as 6 versus Non-Hispanic White
populations. Exacerbating this incidence rate, the Bolingbrook area has seen a dramatic increase
in the Hispanic population as demonstrated by 2010 census data. Bolingbrook currently
maintains a Hispanic population of 24.5%, which exceeds similar demographic populations for
both the state of illinois and Will County, at 15.8% and 15.6% respectively. As such, the needs
assessment for HSA 9 grossly underestimates the need for dialysis stations in HSA 9. A survey
of patients seen in the Advanced Renal Care, Hinsdale location for the last year identifies the
following Hispanic patients with diagnoses of Chronic Kidncy Discase: 55 patients with a
diagnosis of CKD3, 15 with CKD4 and 5 with CKDS5. This population represents over 18.1% of
the patients scen by this practice. As indicated by these statistics, the Bolingbrook area will
require additional dialysis resources above and beyond those resources identified by the current
needs assessment. As such, HSA 9 has demonstrated need above and beyond the assessment for
this health service area. Such need necessitatcs additional dialysis resources to meet the need of
the HSA.
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED - SERVICE TO PLANNING
AREA RESIDENTS '

USRC Bolingbrook, LLC proposes to establish a thirteen (13} station in-center hemodialysis and
peritoneal dialysis facility at 396 Remington Blvd. Bolingbrook, JL 60440. The facility will
utilize leased space to be built out by Applicant. The facility will provide both in-center
hemeodialysis and peritoneal dialysis for patients with End Stage Renal Disease to provide
necessary health care 1o the residents of Northem Will and Southern DuPage County. The
facility will be located in HSA 9 adjacent to thc border between HSAs @ and 7, therefore, it will
also serve those HSA 7 residents residing in its service area. The market area that U.S, Renal
Care Bolingbrook Dialysis will serve is primarily a seven-mile radius around the facility
including the Bolingbrook, Lemont, Romeoville, Woodridge, Lisle and Naperville areas.

1891453-1
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED - SERVICE DEMAND —
ESTABLISHMENT OF CATEGORY OF SERVICE

Projected Referrals — Attached in Appendix 1 is a physician referral letter attesting to the
physician's total number of patients who have received care at existing facilities located in the
area; the number of new patients located in the area that the physician referred for in-center
hemodialysis for the most recent year; and an estimated number of patients that the physician
will refer annually to the applicant's facility within a 24-month period after project completion,
based upon the physician's practice experience.

1891453-1
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED - SERVICE ACCESSIBILITY

The planning area for the proposed facility possesscs several factors which contribute to service
restrictions for patients in the area,

Market Dominance of Arca Providers

As discussed, based on the inventory of ESRD stations within HSA 9, one provider controls
approximately 37% of the stations in HSA 9 and the top three providers account for 72%. This
market dominance limits the availability of such serviccs for patients who cannot or will not
obtain such services from these providers. This market dominance has led to severe access
issues for patients due to thc admissions policy of the existing providers. Included in this
attachment is a physician attestation recounting various paticnt encounters in which patient care
is ncgatively impacted by admissions policies of the existing providers. This attestation
demonstrates that a barrier to service accessibility exists and the necessity for the proposed
dialysis facility. In order to provide dialysis patients with sufficient options in obtaining their
required care from the provider of their choice, Applicant proposes to provide dialysis services
through this project.

The Absence of the Proposed Service within the Planning Area

As demonstrated by the attached map, therc is an absence of the proposed service within a
reasonable drive time around the proposed facility. While the FMC Bolingbrook facility is in
close proximity to the proposed project, that facility maintains a high level of utilization which
will likely increase due to its proximity with Adventist Bolingbrook Hospital. The remaining
facilities in the area are in excess of twenty minutes from both the proposed facility and
Adventist Bolingbrook Hospital. As a result, patients seeking care from the immediate arca and
west of the proposed location will be forced to endure exceedingly long travel times to obtain
their care three times a week. As such, a serious absence of the proposed service exists for
patients within the planning area.

High Utilization of Area Providers

As identified in the most-recently available IDPH Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD
Stations dated April 20, 2011, HSA 9 currently has an excess of (67) ESRD stations. As
indicated in the table below, those facilities within a thirty-minute drive time are currently
experiencing overall occupancy levels nearing the state defined utilization target with several
facilities operating at near capacity. This high utilization has a negative effect on the ability for
patients to obtain timely dialysis service in this area. Patients forced to travel further for dialysis
serviccs will encounter access issues as the increased travel time for treatment three times a week
will have a negative effect on patient access. Applicant means to address this barrier to patient
access through the proposed facility. Patients who require dialysis treatment are limited in their
options to utilize other health care resources. Due to the high frequency of required treatment (3
treatments per week) and length of treatment, patients must be able to access conveniently
located and effective facilities. For example, an incremental increase in drive time of 10 minutes
would result in an annual drive time increase of 52 hours.
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May 16, 2011

Mr. Dale Galassie

lllinois Healih Facilities & Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson St., 2" Floor

Springfield, 1L 62761

Dear Mr. Galassie:

1 am a physician with a practice in nephrology located at 396 Remington Blvd. in Bolingbrook,
IL, which is located in HSA 9 under Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
regulations.

A substantial number of my patients require dialysis three times a week. These patients are
typically but not exclusively seniors, 65 or more years of age. At any time in my practice, it is
likely that 1 will treat >50 of such patients.

These patients have reported an increasing number of problems with local dialysis facilities that
this letter will summarize. 1 understand that this letter will be submitted in connection with the
US Renal Care Bolingbrook Dialysis application seeking a permit under the Illinois Health
Facilities and Services Review Act to establish a new dialysis facility. It is submitted subject to
penalty of perjury and I am prepared to testifv on the matters related. Because of HIPAA patient
names are not disclosed. '

Fresenius Medical Care (FMC) is the only dialysis provider in the Bolingbrook area, with the
nearest alternative choice for a patient needing in-center hemodialysis requiring a journey of 20-
35 miles round trip, three times weekly. FMC-Bolingbrook is not only utilized at a high
capacity, the current medical director is restricting care against patients who do not have an
existing arterio-venous fistula (AVF). Although an AVF is considered best practice resulling in
better patient outcomes, not all patients are candidates for this surgical procedure. 1 will iliustrate
how this restriction of care has impacted at least three of my patients.-

Patient A Testimonial: In May of 2011, 1 accepted into my care a patient in her late 60°s with
end stage COPD who requires continuous oxygen and who had recently moved to the
Bolingbrook area to live under the care of her sister. Patient A had three previous unsuccessful
attempts to place an AVF and at this time surgeons consider her to be a high surgical risk due to
her advanced COPD. This patient has requested to be transferred to FMC-Bolingbrook but after
several attempts for placement by a social worker and family members, she was informed by the
facility head nurse/manager that the medical director will not accept patients without an AVF
access. As a result, Patient A's sister must drive her to Silver Cross Hospital in Joliet (30 miles
round trip) thrice weekly and either wait 4.5 hours for the duration of her treatment, or double
her mileage by returning home for the wait. If Patient A beconies sick on dialysis, she will be
admitted to Silver Cross Hospital where I do not practice, and continuity of care is lost.

Patient B Testimonial: Patient B is in his late 50’s with Type II Diabetes Mellitus, peripheral

vascular disease (PVD), hypertension and End Stage Renal Disease (ESRD). This gentleman
has had multiple podiatric procedures for necrosis of the foot, requiring several hospitalizations.
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Patient B had the surgical procedure for the placement of an AVF and two subsequent revisions,
all of which failed. As such, Patient B is currently dialyzed with a permanent internal juglar
catheter at FMC-Naperville North, requiring a drive of approximately 26 miles round trip, three
times weekly for his dialysis treatments. Patient B must rely on the help of a friend or family
member to obtain his treatment due to his failing eye sight secondary to diabetes. Over the past
two years, Patient B has made multiple attempts for placement at FMC-Bolingbrook to ease the
burden of his commute, only to be turned away due to lack of an AVF access. Again, should this
patient become ill on dialysis, he wouid be admitted to Edward Hospital, losing continuity of
care of most of his Bolingbrook doctors, which include such essential specialists as a cardiologist
and pulmonologist as well as nephrologist.

Patient C Testimonial: My third illustration is a young woman in her 30’s with a diagnosis of
diabetic nephropathy. Patient C lives in the Bolingbrook area and commutes with difficulty to
FMC-Plainfield, which is a 20+ mile round trip drive. Over the past year and a half under my
care, Patient C has missed many dialysis treatments due to transportation difficulties, which
subsequently has resulted in the need for admission and urgent dialysis at Adventist Bolingbrook
Hospital on multiple occasions. Although venous mapping has been completed and several
attempts have been made to schedule surgery for an AVF, to date, this has not been possible due
to the instability of the patient resulting from multiple hospital admissions managing malignant
hypertension and abdominal pain due largely to missed dialysis treatments. A fairly accurate
accounting of her hospitalizations is approximately 25 admissions over the past 18 months.
These issues have been raised with the FMC-Bolingbrook charge nurse/manager to no avail.

This is just a snapshot of problems that some patients have encountered as a result of being
rejected from admission to FMC Bolingbrook on the basis of their vascular access type.

Respectfully,

Signature: MM '4'(-/‘(/

Name: Mohammed S. Ahmed D.O.

Title: Nephrologist

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN TO before m
this‘[é day of J/f/ﬁly ,20{'?

Oy Sutore

Notar ub'hc

"OFFICIAL SEAL"
JACK SARTORE
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINCIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 3/26/2013

R b g F i A P,
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ATTACHMENT 26

UNNECESSARY DUPLICATION OF SERVICES

The attached tables show the following information:

o A list of zip code areas that are located, in total or in part, within 30 minutes normal
travel time of the project's site;

e The total population of the identified zip codc areas (based upon the 2000 population
numbers availablc for the State of Illinois population available at
http://www.census.gov/geo/www/gazetteer/places2k html ); and

rd| 2000 ZIP 2000
Code  Population Code  Population
60410 7,585 60523 10,231
60421 3,516 60126 45,355
60447 7,295 60162 8,513
60538 13,702 60163 5212
60543 18,769 60467 20,904
60505 56,971 60463 13,286
60431 23,392 60464 9,520
60544 44,284 60480 4,758
60436 16,184 60465 17,198
60435 52,542 60457 14,110
60446 20,141 60455 16,138
60564 32,206 60525 32,475
60504 44,412 60526 13,301
60555 13,852 60458 14,226
60563 31,405 60501 11,175
60540 42 065 60513 19,146
60490 9,263 60534 10,212
60565 40,640 60482 11,262
60440 46,546 60415 14,039
60532 27,341 . 60459 27,978
60433 17,658 60803 22,757
60432 21,431 60453 54,499
60441 49,103 60456 4,452
60451 27,338 60638 55,768
60517 31,344 60402 60,373
60515 27,514 60805 20,821
60516 30,593 60154 16,714
60559 25,954 60155 8,254
60439 20,004 60104 20,571
605627 #NIA 60165 5,171
60561 23,570 60153 26,863
60514 17,313 60546 15,700
60521 37,496 60130 15,688

60558 12,539
60137 38,026
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» The names and locations of all existing or approved health care facilities located within
30 minutes normal travel time from the population site that provide the categories of bed
service that are proposed by the project.

¢ Mapquest maps of driving times and distances are included in Appendix B in the order
they appear in the facility table.
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ATTACHMENT 26

MALDISTRIBUTION

A 1atio of stations to population that exceeds one and one-half times the State average,

The ratio of stations to population for within 2 30 minute drive time of the proposed facility does
not exceed one and a half times the State average. The State average, calculated from the most-
recently available IDPH Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD Stations dated Aprit 20, 2011
and 2000 census population statistics results in a state station to population ratio of 1 station per
3,408 persons. The calculated station to population ratio within the 30 minute drive time of the
proposed facility is 1 station per 4,576 persons. Thus the station to population ratio within the 30
minute drive time of the proposed facility does not exceed one and one-half times the State
average.

The associated caleulation of station to population ratios is included in this attachment. The
calculation for the state station to population ratio utilizes 2000 Census data by for the THinois
and the iotal station count as found on the IDPH Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD
Stations dated April 20, 2011, The calculation of the station to population ratio for facilities
within a 30 minute drive time is calculated using those facilities and zip codes identified in the
Unnecessary Duplication of Services attachment. Population statistics for those zip codes were
obtained from http://www.census.gov/geo/www/gazeticer/placesZk html.
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Station to Population Ratio © fath

30 Minuta Faclitios Stationa. 35

30 Winude 2ip Code Popu'ation 1,576,684

30 Minute Station Relk 4576

Sinto of Mincis ESRD Statlons 3644

State of Minots Population 12,419,062

Slate of 1Rings Btation Ratla 3,408

Zip Coden and Pepulation Data for 2ip Codos within

8 30 Minuts Dsive Time: Fecil tias and Station Date for FacTitios with a 20 Minute Drive Time
ZIP Code 2000 Populstion Hame City Zipcodo  Stations

BO440 7,585 Fox Vakay Dialysis Center Auror &0504 28
B0421 3516 Fresenius Medical Canter of Piainfiald Plainfisld 60544 12
60447 295 Sitear Croos Renal Cantor Wost Joliet 60435 el
60538 13,702 Sun Healkh Joliet 60435 17
60542 18,769 Fresenius Medical Cara of Naperville-North  Napervile 0563 14
60505 56,971 FMC Bolintrook Balingbrook 60440 24
60431 23,392 FMC - Hapesvilie Naporte 60556 15
60544 44 284 Fresonis Maztical Cere Jokat™ Jodiet 60432 18
GO435 16,184 Fensenius Medical Cere Lockpor® Lockport 60441 12
60435 52542 FMC - Dawnars Grove Diakysis Center Dovwners Grovo 80515 10
60445 2015 FME Diatysia Servioes of Wilowbiook Willowbrook 60527 16
60564 2206 FMC - Westchaster ‘Westchester 60154 20
60504 #4412 Frezenius Medical Care Lombard Lombard 63148 12
60555 13,852 FMC - Glendata Heights Glendale Height 60139 17
60563 1,408 RCG Villa Park Emhussl 60128 24
60540 42,065 Peis Pak Dixyals® Ortand Park 60462 12
60430 9,263 Freserius Medice! Care - Midway Lhicego 60638 12
EDS85 40,640 FMC Dialysia Services - Burbank Burbank 60459 ]
£0440 46,546 FMC - Berwyn Barwyn 50402 25
60532 27,341 Telal Stations of Faciltios wilhin 30 Minute Drive Time 5
60433 17,658 " ingluded in overal wifization caiculation as no patients are ientified In '12-31-2010 ESRD UTILIZATION' fike
60441 49,103
60451 21,338
50517 31,344
BOS15 27514
60516 20,583
60559 25,654
60429 20,004
60527 -
60561 23,570
GOSi4 17,373
EDS21 37,496
EDSS58 12,539
80137 38,026
60523 10,231
80126 45,355
£0182 B,513
£0163 5242
60467 20,904
£0463 13,286
80454 9,620
80480 4,758
60485 17,198
60457 14110
60455 15,138
60525 32,475
60526 13,301
0458 14,228
€0501 11,175
60513 19,146
60534 10,212
60482 91,262
60415 14,039
60453 27,978
60803 22,757
60453 54,489
60455 4,452
605338 55,786
60402 60,373
60805 20,821
60154 16.714
601565 8.254
G104 20,571
B0165 LAY
BO0153 2¢,863
B0545 15700
60130 15,688

Tolal Poputaton 1,657,253
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ATTACHMENT 26

IMPACT OF PROJECT ON OTHER AREA PROVIDERS

The addition of 13 ESRD stations at the USRC Bolingbroock Dialysis Facility would only
account for 3.77% of the total shifi capacity in the 30-minute drive time area. Assuming 80%
utilization (9,734 shifis per year) was achieved immediately, the facility would only make a
3.01% difference* in the 30 minute drive time utilization levels. This increase in stations is
fractional compared to the number of licensed stations in the area, thus it is unlikely that the
addition of these stations will lower the ulilization of other arca providers, both those who are
opcrating above §0% and those operating below 80%.

*This calculation is based on the 30 minute drive time facilities as identificd in Attachment 26
Unnecessary Duplication of Services. Shift capacity of each station is calculated as 3 shifts per
day, 6 days a week, 52 weeks a year.

[891453-1
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ATTACHMENT 26

STAFFING AVAILABILITY

Medical Dircetor
The curriculum vitae of the facility's Medical Director is included in this attachment.

Staff Recruitment

U.S. Renal Care Inc. rectuits facility personnel through the use of various job posting websites as
well as a recruitment tool maintained on the corporate wcbsite (available at
http://www.usrenalcare.com/us_renal_care careers.htm).

Training

Applicant maintains rigorous orientation and training rcquirements for all staff of dialysis
facilities. Clinical staff are subject to a comprehensive orientation regimen providing training for
such personnel in multiple areas (policies related to orientation and competencies are included in
this attachment). Such staff arc also required to comply with any federal or state training
requirements necessary for certification in their respective fields. In addition, U.S. Renal
maintains both corporate and facility level training requirements for facility staff. For example,
all staff are subject to corporate requirements for annual eompetency assessments and quarterly
assignments provided through U.S. Renal Care's training tool, Health Streams (a copy of the
schedule of assignments, email remindcr and completion report are included in this attachment).
Furthermore, dialysis staff arc also requircd to comply with any facility required training
programs as implemcnied by the governing body of the dialysis facility (see attached policy#
EO-8002).

Staffing Plan

Applicant maintains staffing ratios in compliance with state requirements for the state in which
Applicant maintains a dialysis facility. Included in this attachment is the U.S. Renal Care policy
regarding staffing ratios which demonstrates the rcquirement for on duty RNs when the patients
are present and maintenance of direct patient care providers in compliance with state regulations.
In the case of Illinois Applicant will maintain a ratio of one direct patient care provider to every
four patients.

1891453-1

Attachment 26 82




PERSONAL DATA:
Name:

Permanent Address:

Personal Contact:

Office Address:

Email:
Marital Status:
Citizenship:

EDUCATION:
1998-2002

1997-1998

1993-1997

POSTDOCTURAL TRAINING:
2007-2008

2005-2007

2002-2005

CURRICULAM VITAE

MOHAMMED S. AHMED, D.O.

6 N Berseem Ct.
Oakbrook, 1L 60523

© 630-835-5559

Main Office: 333 Chestnut Suite LO6, Hinsdale, IL 60521
Phone: 630-495-9356
Fax: 630-495-9357
lowgfrdoc@amail.com

Married, 4 children

United States of America

Midwestern University—CCOM
Downers Grove, IL
Doctor of Osteopathic Medicine

University of Chicago, Chicago, IL
Department of Otorhinolaryngoiogy
Junior Research Technician

University of Chicago, Chicago. IL
Bachelor of Arts in Humanities

Critical Care Feliowship
Mayo Clinic School of Graduate Medical Education
Rochester, MN

Nephrology and Hypertension Fellowship
Loyota University Medical Center, Maywood, IL

General Internal Medicine Residency
Loyola University Medica! Center, Maywood, IL
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CURRICULAM VITAE

SPECIAL PROCEDURE TRAINING:

2005-2007

HOSPITAL APPOINTMENTS:
2008-Present

2008-Present

2008-Present

2008-Present

2008-Present

Hemodialysis, Peritoneal dialysis, & continuous dialysis therapies
Loyola University Medical Center and Hines VA Hospital
Maywood, IL

Nephrology and Hypertension Consultant
Edward Hospital, Naperville, iL

Nephrology and Hypertension Consultant
Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital, Downers Grove, IL

Nephrology/Hypertension/Critical Care Consultant
Adventist Hinsdalefl.aGrande/GlenQOaks/Bolingbrook Hospitals
Hinsdale, LaGrange, Glendale Heights, Bolingbrook, IL

Nephrology and Hypertension Consultant
Elmhurst, Hospital, ElImhurst, IL

Critical Care Medicine Consultant
Alexian Brothers Medical Center, Elk Grove Village, L

PREVIOUS HOSPITAL APPOINTMENTS:

2005-2008

2005-2007

2005-2007

2005-2007

2005-2007

Emergency Room Moonlighter Physician
Hines VA Hospital, Hines, IL

House Physician
Edward Hospital, Naperville, IL

House Physician
Good Samaritan Hospital, Downers Grove, IL

House Physician
Lorette Hospital, Chicago, IL

House Physician
RML Specialty Hospital, Hinsdale, IL

LICENSURE AND CERTIFICATION:

2002-Present
2008-2009
2008-2009
2008-2009

lliinois State Medical License (active)
Minnesota State Medical License (inactive)
Florida State Medical License (inactive)
Wisconsin State Medical License
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CURRICULAM VITAE

2005-Present Board Certified American Board of Internal Medicine
2007-Present Board Cenrlified Nephrology

2008-Present Board Cenlified Critical Care Medicine

2004-Present Certified in ACLS, BLS, PALS

MEMBERSHIPS IN PROFESSIONAL SOCIETIES:
American Board of Internal Medicine
American Society of Nephrology
National Kidney Foundation
Society of Critical Care Medicine
Mayo Fellow Association
American Osteopathic Association

HONQRS:

2010 Adventist Hinsdale Hospital, Family Medicine Program

“Consultant of the Year”

2008 Society of Critical Care Medicine, Fellow Presenter

2007 Young Investigator University Fellow Participant; Amsterdam

2007 National Kidney Foundation Fellow Presenter

2004 National Kidney Foundation, Feliow Presenter

1993-1997 University of Chicago dean's List every quarter

1993-1997 University of Chicago Lorna McLorean Scholarship recipient
PUBLICATIQNS:

Ahmed MS., Hou SH., Battaglia C., Picken M., Leehey DJ.. Treatment of Idiopathic Membranous Nephropathy
with the Chinese Herbal Astragalas Membranaceous. Am J Kidney Dis, 2007 Dec;50(6); 1028-32.

Ahmed MS., Patel A, Picken M., Borge M.. Leehey D. Simultaneous Transjugular Renal Biopsy and
Hemodialysis Catheter Placement in Patients with ARF. Am J Kidney Dis. 2004 Sep;50(8); 1028-32.

Ng BA., Mamikoglu B., Ahmed MS., Corey JP., The Effect of External Nasal Dilators as Measured by Acoustic
Rhinometry. Ear Nose and Throat Journal, 1998, Oct; 77(10): 840-4.

Rauf AA., Ahmed MS., The Role of Antibiotic Use in Ventilator Associated Pneumonia. Manuscript (in
preparation)} to Journal of Hospital Medicine.

Swaminathan L., Rauf AA., Ahmed MS. Albrfight, RC., Clinical Profile and Outcome of Acute Renal Failure in
the ICU: A Tale of Three Era’s. Manuscript (in preparation) to Mayo Clinic Proceedings.

Alhyraba, M., Ahmed M., Afessa B., Baddour L., Endemic Mycosis in Intensive Care Patients; An Institutional
Review. IRB approved, manuscript in preparation.
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CURRICULAM VITAE

ABSTRACTS:
Ahmed MS., Suri H., Cartin-Ceba R., Gajic O., The Incidence of Acute Liver Failure in Paitnets Admitted to
ICU in Olmsted county, a retrospective cbservational study. Abstract presented at SCCM 2008.

Suri H., Ahmed M8, Cartin-Ceba R., Gajic O., The Incidence of Acute Reparatory Failure in Patients
Admitted to ICU in Olmsted County, a retrospective observational study. Abstract presented at SCCM 2008,

Cartin-Ceba R., Suri H., Ahmed MS., Gajic O., The Incidence of Acute Kidney Injury in Patients Admitted to
ICU in Oimsted County, a retrospective observational study. Abstract presented at SCCM 2008.

Ahmed MS., Battaglia ¢., Picken M., Hou SH., Leehey DJ. Treatmdent of ldiopathic Membranous
Nephropathy with the Chinese Herbal Astragafus Membranaceous. Abstract presented at NKF 2007.

Alhyraba M., Ahmed M., Afessa B., Baddour L. Endemic Mycosis in Intensive Care Patients: an institutional
review. |IRB approved, study in progress.

Ahmed MS., Patel A, Picken M., Borge M., Leehey DJ. Simultaneous Transjugular Renal Biopsy and
Hemodialysis Catheter Placement in Patients with ARF. Abstract presented at NKF 2004.

Ng BA., Mamikoglu B., Ahmed MS., Corey JP., The Effect of Extenal Nasal Dilators as Measured by
Acoustic Rhinometry. Ear Nose and Throat Journal. 1998 Oct; 77(10); 8404

PRESENTATIONS:

Ahmed MS., Severe Electrolyte Emergencies in the ICU. Advocate Lutheran General Hospital Critical Care
Medicine Grand Rounds 04/2011.

Ahmed MS. Secondary Hypertension. Midwest Heart Specialist Medical Grand Rounds, 2010,

Ahmed MS. Approach to the Poisoned Patient. Adventist Hinsdale Hospital, Adventist LaGrange Memonial
Hospital, Adventist Bolingbrook Hospital, Adventist Glen Oaks Hospital, Medical Grand Rounds, 2010

Ahmed MS. Secondary Hypertension. Adventist Hinsdale Hospital, Adventist LaGrange Memonial Hospital,
Adventist Bolingbrook Hospital, Adventist Glen Qaks Hospital, Medical Grand Rounds, 2010

Ahmed MS., Suri H., Cartin-ceba R., Gajic O. The Incidence of Acute Liver Failure in Patients Admitted to ICU
in Olmsted County; a retrospective observational study. Abstract presented at SCCM 2008.

Ahmed MS. Timing is Everything. Mayo Clinic Critical care Medicine Grand Rounds. Webcast to
Jacksonville, FL. and Scottsdale, AZ. Mayo Clinic Rochester 03/2008.

Ahmed MS., Battaglia C., Picken M., Hou SH., Leehey DJ. Treatment of ldiopathic Membranous Nephropathy
with the Chinese Herbal Astragaius Membranaceous, Poster presented at NKF 2007

4
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Ahmed MS Intensive Insulin Therapy in Medical ICU. Jounal Club presentation delivered to Critical Care
Medicine Department, Mayo Clinic, 10/2007

Ahmed MS., 47 and Swollen; a case of Membranoproliferative Glomerulonephritis, Secondary to Lyme
Disease. Renal Grand Rounds, presentation 2006.

Ahmed MS. 55 and Confused; a case of Paraneoplastic Limbic Encephaltis. CPC presentation, Loyola
University Medical Center, 2005.

Abhmed MS., Patel A, Picken M., Borge M., Leehey DJ. Simultaneous Transjugular Renal Biopsy and
Hemodialysis Catheter Placement in Patients with ARF. Poster presented at NKF 2004

CONFERENCES ATTENDED:

11/2010
01/2010
02/2008
056/2007
042007
01/2007
11/2006
10/2006
04/2007

01/2006

American Society of Nephrology Conference, Denver, Co.

Peritoneal Dialysis Conference, New Orleans, LA

SCCM 2008 Congress Meeting, Honeolulu, Hawaii

Leaders in Nephrology, Annual Meeting in Miami, FL

National Kidney Foundation, Annual Meeting in Orlando, FL

Young Investigator University, Bone Mineral Metabolism Conference, Amsterdam
American Society of Nephrelogy, annual Meeting in San Diego, CA

Peritoneal Dialysis Academy, Nephrology Fellow Workshop in Birmingham, ALA
Peritoneal Dialysis University, Nephrotogy Fellow Workshop in Winston Salem,
NC

Renal Research Institute, Annual Research Seminar in Las Vegas, NV
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US.IRENAL CARE

POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
012011

POLICY #: EQ - 0002 PAGE10FS5 REVISION DATE:
42011

HEMODIALYSIS ORIENTATION FOR NEW CLINICAL STAFF
Also see State Specific

The oricntation peried is approximately 6 — 8 wecks in length. In order to meet the objective of
the Orientation Checklist, and te allow for sufficient clinical practice, the following schedule is
presented as a guide. Mastery of both theory and clinical skills is the responsibility of the
student and no student may practice independently without demonstration and documcntation of
required skills. Until the individual has satisfied the training and competency requirements, the
individual during thc process of completing training shall be identified as a trainee when present
in any patient arca of the facility.

Prior to providing dialysis care, all nursing staff shall demonstrate satisfactory completion of
either the training program or educational equivalency and the competency skills assessment
checklist as required for the dialysis technicians.

Any registered nurse or licensed practical nurse who is employed without previous experience in
the dialysis process, and who has not yet successfully completed the skills competency checklist,
shall be directly supervise when engaged in dialysis treatment activities with patients by a staff
member who has demonstrated skills competency for dialysis treatment as required by the
State/Fedcral Regulations.

In addition to the Amgen and Nephrology Core Curricutums, the Employee Orientation Program
Workbook is a good resource tool. Delivery of trnining material will be accomplished through a
combinntion of lecture, video presentations and independent study.

WEEK [:

Day 1: Facility tour and origntation

Overview of the services provided by the facility

Meet preceptor

Mect the staff and physicians

Review of Employee Handbook and Job Description

Staff Roles and Responsibilities

Overview of US Renal Care Philosophy

Overview of P & P Manual

Intreduction of dialysis machine and dialysis prescription

Reference Amgen Core Curriculum

Read/review Module 1 and 1T (Foday’s Dialysis Environment/The Person with Kidney
Failure)

Universal PrecautionsfOSHA Education

HIPAA training

Fire and Electrical Safety

Professional education

View state specific training videos

Testing: OSHA (TB, Blood bome pathogens, Universal Precautions, Hepatitis)

US Renal Care, Inc. proprictary and confidential information. All Rights Reserved
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U.S.-[RENAL CARE

POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE;:
012011

POLICY #: EQ - 0002 PAGE2OF5 REVISION DATE:
4/2011

Day 2: Scavenger Hunt
Practice set up of dizlysis machine with preceptor and removal of lines
Observation of Hemodialysis procedure and oricntation to clinic routines
Proper cleaning of chairs, machines, clamps, and blood pressure cuffs
Basic chemistry of body fluids and electrolytes
History of Dialysis
Legal and Ethical Issues
Hygiene and Grooming
Mobility and Positioning
Read/review Module 111 (Principles of Dialysis)

Day 3: Practice set up of dialysis machine with preceptor
Introduction to sereen of dialysis machine and machine componcnts
Reference Braun Qperators Manual
Vital signs
Overview of the continuous quality improvement program
Read/review Module TV (Hemodialysis Devices)
Role of the dialysis technician in a dialysis sefting: legal and cthical considerations and
concepts of delegating,
Communication and Team work Skills
Pre and Post weights
Machine testing PH/conductivity/tlemperatures

Day 4: Machine operation and introduction to problem selving with preceptor

Trouble shooting equipment — machine alarms

Practices set up of the dialysis mechine

Policies and Procedures on Patients rights including Patient Bill of Rights

Delivery of an adequate dialysis treatment and factors which may result in inadequate
treatment

Complications of dialysis and interventions

Ascptic technique

Education on the proper use of Safety Needles

Education on accidental needle sticks (Issues and Prevention Strategies for Healthcare
Workers)

Day 5: Preparation and use of dialysate baths
Practices set up of the dialysis machine
Elder Abuse in the dialysis machine
Testing: Module I (Today’s Dialysis Environment)
Identify aHergies, patient chart (electronic medical record)
Identify goal, treatment time, UFR, TMP
Evaluation: Week 1

US Renal Care, Inc. proprietary and confidential information, Al) Rights Reserved
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POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
0172011

POLICY #: EO - 0002 PAGEJOFS5 REVISION DATE:
4/2011

WEEK 2:

Continye practice set up and use of dialysis machine

Residual testing for presence of bleach

Introduction and cducation on access placement and taping access

Review location and use of emergency equipment:

(Oxygen, suction, crash cart, EKG, AED, Emergency box, fire drill & evacuation)
Introduction to patient moniloring during treatment

Introduction and education on documentation procedures and the HII system
Theory and practice of conventional, high efficiency, and high flux dialysis
Interpersonal Communication

Read/review Module 1T and 1Nl (The Person with Kidney Failure/Principles of Dialysis)
Evalvation: Week 2

WEEK 3:
Emergency Plans and Procedures
Introduction to dialysis tenmination procedures
Review and practice pre and post treatment procedures, patient monitoring
Review clinic specific responsibilities and documentation
Education on Transplants
Review complication recognition and treatment
Continue practice with machine set up and operation
Read/review: Module V (Vascular Access)
Testing: Module TV¥ (Hemodialysis Devices)
Evaluation: Week 3

WEEK 4:
Introduction to initiation of dialysis with cathcters (as appropriate to job description)
Rcview and educatc on commonly used dialysis medications
Medication Administration
Continue supervised practice of dialysis termination
Review P & P Manual
Normal and abnormal lab values
Prc and post dialysis blood draws
Lab processing duties
Orientation and competency for blood glucose monitoring equipment
Supervised practice to incorporate pre and post dialysis procedures and paticnt
Monitoring with machine operation, and documentation
Introduction to initiation of dialysis by cannulation
Introduction of materials used to create grafls, needle placement for access in a graft, and
prevention of complications: and identification of signs and symptoms of complications
when cannulating access
Education on PD
Renal Dictitian: MNutritional Considerations
Read/review Module VI (Hemodialysis Procedures and Complications)
Evaluation: Week 4

US Renal Care, Inc, proprielary and confidential information., All Rights Reserved
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U.s.] RENAL CARE

POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
0172011

POLICY #: EO - 0002 PAGE4OF5 REVISION DATE:
4/2011

WEEK 3:

Cannulation of a patient with fistula ncedles

The orientee will incorporate trouble shooting and patient complications with all
previously leamed and practiced experience

Continue supervised practice of dialysis initiation via catheter, dialysis termination,
and treatment procedures and monitoring

Incorporate machine problem solving and recognition and treatment of complications
Into practice

Education on monitoring of arterial and venous pressures

Renal Social Worker: Psychosocial issues

Read/review Module VII and VIII (Dialyzer Reprocessing/Water Treatment)
Testing: Module V (Vascular Acgess)

Evaluation: Week 5

WEEK 6:

Continue supervised practice of hemodialysis procedures

Competently complete a 1 — 2 patient assignment

Education on the management of adequacy outcomes

Technical Specialist; Water system, risks to patients of unsafe water, water checks,
machine maintenance, trouble shooting machines and cleaning of machines
Evaluation: Week 6 (Preceptor/Orientee/Administrator)

WEEK 7 & 8:
Competently complete assigned paticnt assignment
Testing: Module VII and VIII (Dialyzer reprocessing/Water Treatment)

This orientation program is based on the assumption that the otientee has no previous
experience. Alterations/Adjustments in the orientation program will be made based on previous
experience and proven clinical skills. During orientation the orientee will also receive theory
training provided by the Clinical Services Department.

REFERENCES TO BE REVIEWED DURING ORIENTATION:

Core Curriculum for Dialysis Technicians
State Specific Educational Videos
Dialysis Training Manual

Dialysis Machine Manual

Dialysis Machine Trouble Shooting Guide

US Rengl Care, Inc. proprietsry and confidential information. All Rights Reserved
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US|RENAL CARE

POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
0172011

POLICY # EO - 0002 PAGE5OF 5 REVISION DATE:
*4/2011

EVALUATION:

All tests in the orientation manual are to be passed with a score of 80%.

Weekly evaluations with the orientation checklist will be filled out throughout the orientation
process by the orientee, preceptor, and educator, The Administrator will evaluate all checklists

weekly.

If at any time there are difficulties with the learning of the didactic material or inability to
complcte modulcs in the specified time period the Facility Administrator will be notified
immediately. If ot any time there are difficulties with the dialysis machine set-up, treatment
monitoring, or termination of the treatment the Administrator will be notified. The Preceptor and
Administrator will assess the training schedule orientee’s progress and if necded will make

changes in the orientation program.

US Renal Care, Inc. proprietary and confidential information. All Rights Reserved
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USI[RENALCARE

POLICY: RN/LPN/LVN ORIENTATION EFFECTIVE DATE:
. 01/2011
POLICY #EQ-1001 PAGE1QF1 REVISION DATE:
RN/ LPN / LVN ORIENTATION

SCHEDULE FOR RN/LPN/LVN ORIENTATION AFTER ALL STEPS OF
HEMODIALYSIS ORIENTATION ARE MET

(Ex. RN/LPN/LVN may only need 4 weeks to achieve Hemodinlysis Orientation and then
RIN/LPN orientation can start)

Week I Paperwork
Medication Administration and Documentation
Dressing Changes
IV Pump
Review of PD concepts- schedule with PD Nurse. Ultra Bag Competency and
instillation of medications in PD bag.
Rounds with the physician
Transcribing orders
Evaluation

Week I1 Charge Nurse Competency
Day I: Shadow the Charge Nurse
Day 1I-V: Charge Nurse role with Preceptor
Medication Test
Evaluation

Reference; Core Curriculum for Nephrology Nursing
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L[S|RENALCARE.
Hemodialysis Charge Nurse Skills Checkiist EFFECTIVE DATE:
0112041
POLICY # EQ-1002 ‘l REVISION DATE:
042011
Employee:
Title: R
Faxility: —

Date of Hire: -
PA, VA, NY, GA a LPNmaybe a charge nurse a5 long as diakysis RN is availeble in the buikding. The LPM may not supcrvises RN
Charge Nunie, Admintstrutor, or qualified desiznee may perform akllls veriRcathun an preceptor
Objesilver To enmure proper oticntation 4o the charpr narse pasition

To previoe & 3moo nition frem the clinical fhoor srtfing to I charge position

Expreiations: Tht Chaege Nong will demonstiet. ebility to complete ofl charge morse duties as per all ficility promdnls and proccd 10 job &

P TL T et

2 ErOTien NGO R EqIFEmE N s o P T e et A A T P
Received a copy of the Fedoral/State Regulations and become Bamiliar with the rute
|and regutations of the practicing state

Understands end accepts expectations of job description

Krows (he facility's floor plan for emergency purposes and lecation of the
equipment and supplies.

Danonstrate knowledge of policies and procedures:

A Pattents’ Rights and Responsibilities a. 2.
b. Patient's Grievanoe Procedure b. b.
c. Patient/StafT disaster plen, emergency evacuation and useof c. [
emerpenty supplies

d. Process for transferTing patient to hospitala and ather health care d. d.
facilities,

£. Patient Admisions and Dischorges [-3 ¢,
I Pr ing of the transient patient i. f
& Adminkstration of medications and {count of narcotics) if cequired per |g. E
facility procedure,

h. Adminigation of blood products (if provided) as per facility protoes) {h h.

Demonstates knowledge of the Electronic Medical Record(BMR)

Pass B written comprehensive exam on Renal A&F, ESRD, ernd Hemodialysis with a
score of 80% ar better,

Pass 3 writlen medication test as related to dintysis and otber conditions refated 10 renal
{zilare
Attend formal ch
o T

¢ nurse edusation clasa contaci educator.

Dallg Responsibilidesi-

< 2], Dty Gowiglened <= 5 'Preceptor Simiature. -

‘Water Checla

Verifica Water testing is perfored per policy;

& AM opening - Check all water parsmeters, [ o

Pressure gruzcs, Softnes and Carbon Tenks

b. Checks Carbon tanks prior to stant of each shift b

o, Erd of the day checks - Softner tank X

d_ Ensures all logs arc properly completed. d.

Clinical Cherls
Krnowa the location of the cmerponey carl, AED) and suetion ¢quipment

[Ensurea all equipment is fum ctional and ready for use

Vezifics alf daily cheoks arc don, i £, glocometer, AED, crmsh carl, oxygen, suction

]
™

Asaures dmg counts arg performed and sccurate ot strt ind end of day and documents on

logs
Verifies temperatures on medicaion and Jab refridp va within established limits
and d 11 o0 logs,

Makes daily siaff assignments based on palicmt needs
Ensures staffing retios do not exceed 4: /PCT and 12: 1icense nurae of &8 per simie regs.
TA is notified if not met

Ensures staff maintains integrity of patlent schedule. FA notified if not met.

Provides immediate supervision of patient case,

Provides oversight and direction 1o PCTs and LYNS/LPNs

[Intervenes to changey in paticat's condition

Recormends ehanges in treatment based on patient’s current npeds
[Ensures patieds s in view of staff during hemodi alysis treatments,

Pagelofa
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US| RENAL CARE,

Hemoedlatysls Charge Nurse Skills Chegklist

EFFECTIVE DATE:
0172011

POLICY # EO-1002 I

REVISION DATE:
Da/2011

[Enaures visulaization of the patients, their sccess site, and their bloodline connections

during the dintyais treatment

Enforees staff compliance 1o personned policles repsrding breaks, Tunch periods, ete.

Efficiently manages staff hovrs and oventime - inchuding sending steff e 13 nesded
when census is low.

Ensures H with state and federal regulations - FA notified if oot met

P

Refi the Policy md Procedure mamal 1o P } knowlcdge of PAP

n

Practjees sceording 10 company policies and p =]

Verifies and carrect s othors to follow company PEP

Follows proper infe contsol praclices
Monitera/eorrects infoclion controt prmotices for steff, patients and visitors - FA nofified if
not met

Ensures bivhazard wass is disposed of and sored pronery

Cversges the clinical floor I8 kep ehaan of debrisfspills

Ensures an unobstrucled path Ly paticnt stations is maintained

Ensures emespeacy exits are not obstuciod

Oversees thet emorgency procedures aro followed

Trmsevibes orders correaily onto Kerdex, computer system, and/or methods a5 per facility
protacal

Verifies staff is transcribig/caerying ot orders comrectly

Hospilalizatien of » patient: notifies physicinn, sends correst papernork, proper

documentation in propress notes.
Praper documentation on retumm of hospitalized patien

Conducts asscssment of n paticnt when indicated by a question relating to a change in the

paticnt's status, extended o7 froepent hospitalizations, of af the patient's rogquest.

Facilitates communicatin between the patient, patient's family or significant other

Initistes and provide pationt ¢ducation and follow up as nceded

Participates in the interdisciplinary feam review of a patient's progrets

Prepares for and assists with CIPA and POC completion as assigned
Proper medication pdmi ion, including use of is for.

a. Epogen

b. Vitamin D Analops: Calcijex, Hectorol, Zemplar

. lron: Venfor, Ferrlecit

d. Oxypen

& Nepiliris vaccine

f.'TB Tuberculin Testing

g. Heparin

h. Lidocaine

i. Urok: {Activese)

B EE R F‘E'P_JE’ B

j. Antibioticg

k, Mormel Saline

Ll B T SR O T M N E

(o

Manages comphications during hemodiniysis

4. Hypatension

b. Hypertenzion

£. Cramps

. Headachea

<. Prunitiy

f. Nausea, vomiting

- Fever, chills

h. Pyrogenic reaofion

i. Chest pain

A IR PG

. Seizurcs

I EIEHEEEEE

k Hypophynemia

E

1, Hyperglyeemia

Page2of4
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US| RENAL CARF.

b. Signs and symptoms of reaction/exposure

Hemodialysis Chorge Nurse Skills Checklist EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011
POLICY # EO-1002 I REVISION DATE:
04720114
Qversees use and managemen of Reuse chemicads where applicable
& Approve sterilant n b
b, b,

Proper ute of incident reporls

Verifies &l orderod ab is drawn, prose ssed, packaged and sent oul

Verifies siaf] perform pHticonductivily checks before reatmeat

Recognizes maching problems, comeaty handles machine mobtems, i with
Com i with physician, dietician, and socin worker repanding patient needs

Ensores chans are closed out prios 1o keaving and alt paperwerk communi cated 1o
business office as roquired (billing logs, et}

Sceures the building ! the end of the dey:

n. makes sere all patients have jef) the facility

b. checks that water and acid valves have been luned off

. cheeks that answering service has bee activated

d. makes sure all doors bave been locked

AR Weakly IMoRthly /O uar G RO paaaB e

IR AEComplated

Checks erash eant for sdequocy of supplics, kind of supplies, and cxpirsts
meds, airwey, Jsh lubes, mise.

Checks to see what weekly labs need 10 bo drawn

Review of Iyb resulls and reports any eritical abnorma results to the Physician

Adjust patient treatment according to lab results following pratocal

Monthly Disbetic Foot Checks done
[#] medy review ofpmem‘s home medication
L Treatirent Il Gon Responsle S o o |3 DA CORETeD,

Condncls numug rmmds once afl patients are undergeing |reatment and

B 7oVitws patient pre-{regtment assessments and verifies sccmecy and a- 2
compl
b, verifies A} p aie se1 lo preseribed order, [b. b.
€. verificy pe-tientments maching checks hove been performed and [o. <
d. verifies treaiment is iniliated 3-5 min uies afier heparin bolus is given d d
mmnwmentmm _
T - lnfndmlytu Resfonyibilitiey: zaDate Completea il
Delegmies admins of 10 li ¢ staff

Verifies medications e prepared and labeled sppropri stehy

Adjusts medicaton doses based on Yob per established protecol

Reviews “routine™ chanling by murses/PCTs

Reviews "special siruation” chaning {acute problems, drug reactiona, ehest pain, fever,
biood loas, e1e.)

Monitors machine mlarms are angwered in s timely manner

Ensum 172 of a1l petient care stall ;e present on the clinical floor at all 1i

Turn-Around Responsibiliti

vt Date Compleded - 1

=i PReceptor Sigakfare;

Orchmntca  smooth fumover by remaining on the dialysis floor during tumover,

assigning staff 25 needed and troubleshooting problems

Mom'mm sharps are disposed of properly

Moaltors trash Is disposed of properly

{Ensures staff does not take breaks during tumover

Ensurea oo | phone calls & 1eken durin, mmaver
" - Physlcinn Rovnding Res]

~E Dok Copleted 5% ~Pre

Ruunds wﬂh physicians and review labs, medications and other :mdy n:au]l.s with MD

Updstes MD o any new palitnt developments.

Reucim new ofd (rmscnbu themm accorately, and ¢ them out in atime manner,

KRN ] . Emergency Procedores

“Dat Conip)

Dmommm Enowlodes of Emergency Procedures

a, Fire ovacuation

b. Loss of power

c. Loxs of weter supply

d. Watwral disasler procedures

Earthquake

Tomade

Hurricane

Pagedcld
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Hemotimlysis Charge Nurag Skifls Checklist EFFECTIVE DATE:
012011

POLICY # EO-1002 I REVISION DATE:
0412011

, hasmoessfully completed the USRC Charge

Nurse Skills Cheeklist 1o include srecessful retum demonstrations and is competent to pérfosm the clinical

duties inctuded on thiy cheeklist

Employes Signature:

Revicwar Signature:

Moedical Director Signature:

Date

Dare

Date:

Paged of 8
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US|RENAL CARE:

: POLICY : PATIENT CARE TECHNICIAN
' CERTIFICATION

EFFECTIVE DATE:
o1/2011

! POLICY #: £0 - 0012

PAGE 1 OF 1

REVISION DATE:

! POLICY:

All Patient Care Technicians (PCT s) shail be certified under a state or a nationally approved
certification program as follows:

1. For newly employed patient care technicians, within 18 months of being hired as a
dialysis patient care technician or
2. For patient Care technicians employed on October 14, 2008, within 18 months afler this
date (on or before April 14, 2010).

3, For curtent employees who transfer in to the patient care technician role from other jobs
(reuse or water treatment technicians) certification will be obtained in 18 months from
the date he/she started in the new PCT position

Ultimately US Renal Care (USRC) recognizes that certification of the PCT is an individual
responsibility and a condition of continued employment in the dialysis industry, USRC will:

1, Offer review classes for voluntary attendance,

2. Offer copies of the “Amgen Care Curriculum for the Dialysis Technician™ as a study

guide.

3. Assist the employce with the application process to ensure completion and thoroughness

of each application.

4. Pay inittally for the first exam,

5. Reimburse for a second testing attempt once proof of a passing score is provided,

6. Encourage cach PCT employcd on October 14, 2008 to sit for the certification exam no
later than the end of January 2010 to ensure adequate time to reschedule and retake the
exam by the April deadline if necessary.

US Renal Care, Ine, proprictary and confidential information, All Rights Reserved
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US|RENALCARE

Clinical Annanl Competency EFFECTIVE DATE:
0172011
POLICY # EO-9003 H REVISION DATE:
Employee:
Title:
Date of Hire:

NOTE; Mot Al Skill May Be Required
Tlntversal.Brecantions/ ki posoreiCoRIrol &
StenleTodm-quc

Vit :Gorpleted .|

[{HIER ST
ﬂcmod:a!!ss MachimSct UJ?

Comect Bath

Gather all Suppliess

Tum on Water

Alam Testing

Ling Placement'Connect Concentrate

Peracctic Acid oror othg Residual Stailant Testing (when applicable

Secures the Correct Dinlyzer for the Patient

Verification of Dlalyzer

Conduc!nruH Procadure

LR Preceplor Sifiature 4.0

[nmmmn of‘f‘rmunmt
Celwilating Fluid Removal
Setting UFR/Progracns/Na Modeling/Coef

Calculating Fluid Replace:

Adjusts Bloog How Rate to Patient's Prescription

Ultrafilirate Only

Heparin Administration

Patient Monitoring

Vit Signe

Fluid Repl

Complication A and T

Reponts unusunl Findingsto CN

Oxygen Administretion {if applicablc)

Verifies the Ordered Flow Rate from the CN

Sets up Equiprment Cosmrectly

t and to Patent

Gatiiplication Thte

- Didte:Completed . -

< Preceptor Slgngtore .

msion

Hyperimsion

Nausen/Vomiting
Cramping

Chest Pain

S0B

Seizures

Cardisc/Repimtory Arrest

Informs CN of any Unusual Findings

Page 1014
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US|RENALCARE

Chnleal Apnusl Competency

EFFECTIVE DATE:

012011

POLICY # EQ-9003 I

REVISION DATE:

T Date Campletedy

ARk pIan Sighati

Ascptlc u:chnlcp: is uged whe.n preparing md adrnnstcfmg intravenous rnedmanons
from vials and amptuls

P.O.

LM,

LV. Push

I. V. Drip

Sob Q

Labels Syringes Comecily

Licocaine Administration (if applicable)

Checks Patient's Prescription

Identifics the Comect Vinl of Madication

Prepares Dosage Concetly

Adminisers the Dose Correctly

Cibserves For and Undostnds Possible Complications

Heparin Administration (if applicablg

Peseribes Basics of Anticosgubition Theaepy

Assess Patiers for and Reports Evidence of Active Bleeding

Chechs I'atient’s Prescription

Edamifies the Correcl Vial of Madication

Prepases Dosage Corectly

Administzrs the Dose Comrocily

Observes for and Und, 1ds Possible Complications

Monitoss Appropristaness of AnticoagulationThrausghout Treatment

Norma) Spline Administration {if applicable)

Understand Facility Protocol

Chacks Patient's Prescription

Recognizes Signs of Hyp

Notiftes RN Appropriately

Administers Normal Sali eCnmmly
R e

FRECEpIbF P B et

}}ﬁr. s n.v
Rmseback Procedure

Removal of Fistuls Needles

Treatment of Post Treatment Bleeding

|Care of Catheters Post Treatmant [if applicable)

Discarding Supples

Reports Unusual Bndingsto CN

Sanitizing equipment and treatmont arca

Vate Completed::

-PreceptbE SizuRhire 5.3

Initiation ofDialysis

Accessing the Bloodgream

Comecting Opeational Problems:

Poar Asterial Flow

Poor Venous Flow

Clotting in Cathaer

Elevated Arterial/Venous Pressures

Site Infecliong'Cultuns

Take Qff Preparnuon

Rinseback Procedure

Post Treamnwent Care of Catheter

Diessing Change

Page 2ol a
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POLICY # EO-5003 ]

115 RENAL CARE
Clinica) Annual Competency EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011
REVISION DATE:

Assessment of Bruit mmd Thrill

Pretrcatment Preparation

Cannulation

Inspects the Access for Patency

Preparcs the Skin Using Aseptic Technique nt !l Times

Chlls for Assisstmce Apprapriately

Places Needles Correctly

Replaces Needics Appropriately

Secures Needles

Accessing the Bloodsream

Operational Poblens and Comections

Responds Approprintdy to Machine Alems

Infilimtion with Cannulation

Infilization During Treatment

Areriel/Venous Spasms

Arterial/Venous Pressure Problems

Localized Bleeding

Dislodged Needle

Clotted Needle/Dialyzer

Blood Leak ink Dialysate

Blood Leek Qutside of Bloodpath

Docdiertatior

Prieptor Signatiire - .

)

Clinical hformation System use

Flowshect

Dinlyzzr and Patiem Verificalion

Machine Checks

Vital Signs

Medication Administration

Pre and Posi Assessments

Treatment Conplications

Monthly Nurdng Chestisg
Admissions Charting

Disct Charling

Patient Ogcurrence Charting

Patient Assessment/Plan of Care

D CompIRTel

Pridiplor. Signabirer v

DisghREIAFiRiory Tésti
Monthly and Othe Labwork

Blood/Wound Cultuns

Blood Qucose Testing

Kb\ PEoDeseribe Apprapriate REpORTe to At

‘EnicFgeiidies:

A)ate Conipetid

on
Air Embolism

Cardinc/Respimtory Amest

Unstable Angina

Seizures

Shock

"Wew Dialyza Reaction”

Hemoylysi

Pyrogenic Reaclion

Chlotine in Dialysatn

Other
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USRENAL CARE

Clinical Annual Competency

EFFECTIVE DATE:
0172011

POLICY # EO-9003 |

REVISION DATE:

D L R T BT T
Digtyzer Blood Leak

Ciotted Dialyzerand or Lines

Loss of Electrical Power

Hand Crank Take-Off Procedure

Fire or Flood

Emergency Evacuation of Bulding

Tomsado/Hunicane/Blizzard Phng

Knows Comect Procedure for Machine Failure
AL ST IART) e

OREDIES Feoy: B P aents

M DR CO MR IR P ek eplorSignatares Ly

Omym

Ambu BaglOml Airway

Crath Cant

Poriable Suction

PtLE Durirg an E

Baaeaton;

receptorSipiiatore 3

Fire Safety

[Back Safety

Hezard Conmnunication

Electrical Safety

US Renal Cere Standards of Conduct & Compli Prog)

Prevention of Stigs, Trips and Falts

Emergency Preparedness

Prevention of Needlesticks

Additional conperencies as required by state specific regulation, pb roleor needs

Complete Annual Competency Checklist - Clinical Employee {Tcchmical
Treiping Manual Section 9)

_, has successfully completed the USRC Clinial

Anmal Training Program to include successful retumn demonstrations and is competent to perform the

. clinical duties included on this checklist,

Employee Signature:

Preceptor Signature:

Mcdical Director Signahure:

Date;,

Date:

Page4 of 4
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QUARTERLY ASSIGNMENTS for all Staff in Clinics: Health Streams via the internet

1" QUARTER:
HIPAA
Patient Rights

2"° QUARTER:
Infection Control
Personal Protective Equipment
Standard Precautions

3R° QUARTER:
Preventing Slips, trips etc
Back Safety
Electrical Safety

4™ QUARTER:
Fire Safety
Hazard Communications
Corporate Compliance

This is the email that they receive the first day of cach quartcr at this time,

Report Notification: 226 Assignment Completion - Drill-Through - Created Mar, 31 2011
02:05:29 PM
warp@healthstream, com

Your report entitled 226 Assignment Completion - Drili-Through - Created Mar. 31 2011
02:05:29 PM' is now available. Please click here to view your report.

This report will be available at this location until 5/16/2011 EST. If you wish to keep the report
electronically beyond this date, you may download it to your local machine by clicking 'File'
then 'Save As...' at the top left corner of your browser.

For your convenience, you can also view this report from within the HealthStream Leamning
Center (HLC). After login, select the 'Reports' Tab and click on the 'Request Manager' link. With
Reguest Manager, you can schedule reports to run automatically and view data from previous
reports.

Report data as of 5/2/2011 11:11:54 AM EST.

This is an automated message. Please do not reply.

When they click on the word here, they are automatically taken to this report. By clicking
on any of the blue typc they will be taken to a link; if they click on a name they are tzken to
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that individual’s transeript, if they click on n topic they are taken to a page that shows how
many in each of the departments within their facility have completed the assignment.
Bagsically they can look at this many different ways,

ASSIGNMENT COMPLETION REPORT
US Renal Care

Completion Grid (based on Completion Date)
Completion Daie Range: From 1/1/2011 through

/277011 Data as of May 04, 2011 1:00 AM ET

Delivered 5/4/2011

Reporting-on Scores

Unique Students Included:. 8 - Completed: - © 25.00%

Score Not Yet Due As: ~Not Yet Due - Completed On-Time: 21.43%

Show Full'Report Criteria:. “No ™ ©7 - - - Completed Late: 3,57%

Group By Department: No ‘Not Yet Due: 71,43%
Past Due: : 0:00%
Delinquent: 351%
Total: 100.00%
Exempt: 0

Return to Completion Summary

REPORT DESCRIPTION: COMPLETION METHOD

This report displays all assipnments completed in the date range. Incomplete assignments that intersect
the date range (that is, the assignment start date falls before or during the date range and the end
date falls during or after the date range) are also displayed in the lower layers of the report. The
Completion Grid presents detailed status for all selected students. NOTE: If an assigned learning items
and/or assessments was completed outside the date range speeified, it will not be included in this report.
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US.|RENAL CARE

' CONTINUING EDUCATION & IN-SERVICE EFFECTIVE DATE;
i PROGRAMS 0172011
POLICY # EO-8002 PAGE1 OF1 REVISION DATE:
CONTINUING EDUCATION & IN-SERVICE PROGRAMS-

SEE STATE SPECIFIC ALSO

PURPOSE: To provide guidelines on continuing education

POLICY:

All employees must have the opportunity for continuing education and related
development activities. Continuing education and in-service programs are
encouraged for all staff in the facility to continuously improve the quality of
patient care by increasing staff knowledge.

PROCEDURE:

The governing body or designated persons arc responsible for developing
tegularly scheduled in-service programs that will meet the needs of the staff and
the center.

Documentation of attendance at continuing education activities will be kept in
the persennel file for each staff member, Continving cducation activities may
consist of, but are not limitced to; seminars, fectures, and educational workshops
for cne-on-one training.

The Facility Administrator will maintain minutes of all such meetings, including
attendance records. Out of center continuing education programs will be at the
guidance of the Facility Administrator,
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us.] RENAL CARE

POLICY : STAFFING POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011
POLICY #: C-AD-0140 PAGE 1 OF 1 REVISION DATE:

Staffing requirernent for the ESRD facility include the coordination of personnel by the
facility administrator to adequately staff for safe and effective provision of patient care.

The following guidelines will direct the staffing of each facility.

1.

A fulltime supervising nurse shall be employed to manage the provision of patient
care,

A nurse or nurses functioning in the charge role shall be on site and available to
the treatment area to provide patient care during all dialysis treatments.

A registered nurse shall be in the facility when patients are present in the facility
— if applicable.

Licensed nurse to patient ratio shall meet the required state regulations which
govern the facility.

Sufficient direct care staff shall be on-site to meet the needs of the patients. The

staffing lavel shall not exceed that which is required by state specific regulations
which govern the facility. See below for state specific staffing requirements.

State Specific Staffing Requirementa

State Licensed Staff to Direct Care Staff to
Patient Ratio Patient Ratio
Georgia 1t0 10 1to 4
Maryland 1109 1t03
New Jersey 1to 9 1103
Ohio None None
South Carolina 1t010 1to 4
Texas 11012 1104
Pennsylvania None None
Arkansas None None
Okilahoma None None
South Carolina None None
New York None None

US Renal Care, Inc. proprietary and confidential information. All Rights Reserved
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77 1Il. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(e)(5) - Medical Staff

As required by 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(e)(5), Applicant certifies that US Renal
Care Bolingbrook Dialysis will maintain an open medical staff. Any Board Licensed
nephrologist may apply for privileges at this facility.

TAL N

Signature

Thomas L. Weinberg
Printed Name

Manager
Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19" day of May , 2011

%/’g%w

Signature of Notary

WU TT]
Seal W S ””lf,,,
aeseg, > Yy,

SRYE 007

oy
«o"
! \)
Ity

Ao S

AW
S
L)
55
)
I
m
L7
/(,,

o

Upg 2012 W
Pt
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77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(f) - Support Services

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(f) and with respect to the US Renal
Care Bolingbrook Dialysis facility, Applicant certifies that:

1) Applicant certifies that they will utilize the Health Informatics
International system for the provision of care to its patients;

2) Applicant certifies that support services consisting of clinical
laboratory service, blood bank, nutrition, rehabilitation, psychiatric
and social services will be available to its patients; and

3) Applicant certifies that provision of training for self-care dialysis,
self-care instruction, home and home-assisted dialysis, and home
training will be provided by the US Renal Care Oak Brook
Dialysis facility and Applicant will execute a signed written
agreement for the provision of such services.

T2y

Signature

Thomas L. Weinberg,
Printed Name

Manager
Title

Subseribed and sworn to before me this 19" day of May , 2011

o S

""H]”
Signature of Notary &\\“‘ Y STEW,qg;’(&,
S WG Y
Seal g7 T2
2Ly ef§
R ?E JPee S"‘r
I}’/ ’n..’YEI.B.E [ *.‘
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ATTACHMENT 26

MINIMUM NUMBER OF STATIONS

The proposed U.S. Renal Care Bolingbrook Dialysis facility contemplates the establishment of
13 ESRD stations which meets the minimum station requirements for a metropolitan statistical
area,

1891453-1
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ATTACHMENT 26

CONTINUITY OF CARE

1891453-]
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TRANSFER AGREEMENT

USRC Bolingbrook, an 1llinois limited liability company, doing business as, US Renal Care
Bolingbrook Dialysis ("Center") and Adventist Bolingbrook Hospital (“Hospital”) an Ilinois
not-for-profit corporation, make and enter into this Transfer Agreement (“Agreement”), effective
asofthis /4 of ___ /Ha, ,2011.

WHEREAS, the Center has suémittcd to the Illinois Health Facilities Services and Review Board
(the “Board™) an application for a certificate of need permit to establish a free-standing renal
dialysis center for treatment of patients with end-stage renal disease, which the Center will locate

in Bolingbrook, Illinois;

WHEREAS, the Hospital owns and operates a licensed and Medicare-certified acute-care
hospital, located at 500 Remington Blvd, Bolingbrook, lllinois, in reasonable proximity to the
Center;

WHEREAS, patients of the Center (“Patients”) may require, from time to time, eveluation,
treatment, or admission to the Hospital; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to enter into this Agreement in order to specify the rights
and duties of each of the parties and to specify the procedure for facilitating the transfer of
Patients to the Hospital.

NOW, THEREFORE, to facilitate the transfer of Patients to the Hospital, the parties hereto agree
to the terms of this Agreemeat, as set forth below.

1. TRANSFER OF PATIENTS: If the Center determines that a Patiemt needs emergency
evaluation, treatment, or admission to the Hospital, and a Hospital physician accepts the transfer
of the Patient, the Hospital will accept the transfer of the Patient, as promptly as possible,
provided such transfer meets the Hospital’s transfer requirements, and the Hospital has adequate
staff and bed space for the Patient. A designated staff member of the Center shall contact a
designated staff member of the Hospital to facilitate such transfer and admission to the Hospital.
The Hospital shall receive Patient in accordance with applicable federal and state laws and
regulations, and reasonable Hospital policies and procedures. The Hospital’s responsibility for
Patient's care shall begin when Patient enters the Hospital.

2, RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CENTER: The Center shall be responsible for performing or
ensuring the performance of the following:

8, Transportation: The Center will arrange for transportation of Patient to the
Hospital,

b. Designated Coordinator: The Center will designate a staff member who has
authority to represent the Center and to coordinate the transfer of the Patient to the
Hospital (“Transfer Coordinator™). The Center will notify the Hospital and keep it
apprised of the name and contact information of the Transfer Coordinator;
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c. Notice to Hospital: The Center’s designated staff person will notify Hospital’s
Admission Coordinator before the transfer to alert the Hospital of the impending and
estimated time of arrival of Patient and to provide information on Patient, to the extent
Section 4 of this Agreement allows;

d. Patient Choice: The Center recognizes the right of a Patient to (i} request transfer
into the care of & hospital of the Patient’s choosing and (ii) refuse to consent to treatment
or transfer; and

e Compliance with Law: The Center will comply with the requirements of
applicable state and federal laws relative to the care and transfer of individuals to

hospitals.

3. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE HOSPITAL: The Hospital shall be responsible to perform or
ensurc the performance of the following:

a. Designated Coordinator: The Hospital will designate a person who bas authority
to represent the Hospital and to coordinate the transfer and admission of Patients into the
Hospital (“ddmission Coordinator™). The Hospital will notify the Center and keep it
apprised of the name and contact information of the Admission Coordinator; and

b. Compliance with Law: The Hospital will comply with the requirements of
applicable state and federal laws relative to individuals admitted to hospitals.

4. PATIENT INFORMATION: In order to meet Patients’ needs for hospital care, the Center
shall provide relevant Patient information to the Hospital. Such information must include:
Patient's name, social security number, date of birth, insurance coverage, Medicare beneficiary
information (if applicable), current medical findings, diagnoses, known allergies or medical
conditions, treating physician, contact person in case of emergency, and any other relevant
information Patient has provided the Center in advance.

5. NoN ExcrLustviTy: This Agreement shall in no way give the Hospital an exclusive right
of transfer of Patients to the Hospital. The Center may enter into similar agreements with other
hospitals, and Patients will continue to have complete autonomy with respect to decisions on
medical care.

6. FREEDOM OF CHOICE: In entering into this Agreement, the Center in no way endorses or
promotes the services of the Hospital. Rather, the Center intends to coordinate timely transfer
for medical care. Patients are in no way restricted in their choice of hospitals or medical-care
providers.

7 BILLING AND COLLECTIONS: Hospital and the Center are each responsible for billing the
appropriate payer for the services it provides. Neither party shall have any liability to the other
party for such charges. Center shall facilitate and assist Hospital in the recovery of delinquent
bills from Payors.

8. INDEPENDENT RELATIONSHIP: In performing services pursuani to this Agreement, the
Hospital and all employees, agents, or representatives of the Hospital are, at all times, acting and

1928300-1
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performing as independent contractors, and nothing in this Agreement is intended, and nothing
shall be construed, to create an employer/employee, partnership, or joint-venture relationship
between them., The Center shall neither have nor exercise any direction or control over the
methods, techniques, or procedures by which the Hospital or other employees, agents, or
representatives of the Hospital perform their professional responsibilities and functions. The
sole interest of the Center is to coordinate timely transfer of Patients for medical care.

9. INSURANCE: The Hospital shall maintain, at no cost to the Center, professional-liability
insurance in an amount customary for its business practices. The Hospital shall provide evidence
of the coverage requirced herein to the Center on an annual basis.

10. INDEMNIFICATION: Each party shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other
party from and against any and all liability, loss, claim, lawsuit, injury, cost, damage, or expense
whatsoever (including reasonable attorneys® fees and court costs), arising out of, incident to, or
in any manner occasioned by the parties' (or any of its employee’s, agent’s, contractor’s, or
subcontractor’s) performance or nonperformance of any duty or responsibility under this
Agreement, '

11. TERM AND TERMINATION

a, Term: The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date of execution and
shall continue in effect for one year (the “Initial Term’") and shall renew on an annual
basis (“Renewal Term'™), absent either party’s written notice of non-renewal to the other
party, at least 30 calendar days before the expiration of the Initial Term or termination
without cause at any time during any subsequent Renewal Term of this Agreement.

b. Events of Termination: Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party may
terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of any one of the following events:

i For No Cause: At any time upon 30 days prior, written notice to the other
party.

ii. Insolvency: Upon 10 husiness days’ prior written notice, in accordance
with Section 12.h of this Agreement, if either party shall: apply for or consent to
the appointment of a receiver, trustee, or liquidator of itself or of all or a
substantial part of its assets; file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy; admit in
writing its inability to pay its debts es they become due;, make a general
assignment for the benefit of creditors; file a petition or an answer seeking
reorganization or arrangement with creditors or take advantape of any insolvency
law; or enters a court of competent jurisdiction order, judgment, or decree or an
application of a creditor, adjudicating such party to be bankrupt or insolvent,
approving a petition seeking reorganization of such party, appointing a receiver,
trustee or liquidator of either such party or of all or a substantial part of such
parties’ assets; and such order, judgment, or decree continues in effect and
unstayed for a period of 30 consecutive calendar days.

c. Immediate Termination: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, this
Agreement terminates imrmediately upon the following events: (a) the suspension or

1928300-1
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revocation of the license, certificate, or other legal credential, authorizing the Hospital to
provide hospital and medical-care services; (b) the termination of the Hospital’s
participation in, or the exclusion from, any federal or state health program, for reasons
related to fraud or failure to comply with certification standards in the rendering of health
services; or (c) the cancellation or termination of the Hospital's professional-liability
insurance that this Agreement requires, and the Hospital has not obtained replacement
coverage.

12. MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS

a. Counterparts: The parties may execute this Agreement in any number of
counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but all such counterparts together shall
constitute the same instrument.

b, Waiver: Any waiver of any terms and conditions hereof must be in writing, and
the parties have signed it. A waiver of any of the terms and conditions hereof shall not
waive any other terms and conditions hereof.

¢ Severability: The provisions of this Agreement are severable, and, if a court of
competent jurisdiction funds any portion invalid, illegal, or unenforceable for any reason,
the remainder of this Agreement shall be effective and binding upon the parties.

d. Headings: All headings herein are only for convenience and cesc of reference,
and no one may consider them in the construction or interpretation of any provision of
this Agreement.

c. Assignment: The parties may not assign, delegate, or subcontract this Agreement,
without the prior written consen! of the other party.

f. Governiog Law: The laws of the State of Illinois shall govern the enforcement
and interpretation of this Agreement,

g Jurisdiction and Venue: The parties agree that in the event that the obligations
in the Agrecment are not met, the Circuit Court of Dupage County, llinois will have
exclusive jurisdiction for any dispute arising out of this Agreement and will be the
exclusive venue for any such dispute and the parties and any other obligated persons
consent to the personal jurisdiction of the court.

1928300-1
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h. Notices: Any required or permitted notice herein shall be in writing. It shall be
deemed duly given on the date of service, if a parly personally serves it on the other
party, or on the fourth day after mailing, if a party mails it to the other party by cenified
mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, at the address below:

To Dialysis Provider: To the Hospital:
Thomas Weinberg Reqiennt Dwecton Managed Care
U.S. Renal Care Inc. 126 N. Oak s4
2400 Dallas Parkway, Suite 350 H;'ﬂfdﬂ-" TL L5y
Plano, TX 75093 '
With a copy to: With a copy to:
CFo
500 Remj\w\ Bivd.

Polingloraok, T ¢ oto

or atl such other place or places as any of the parties shall designate by written notice to
the other.

i Amendment: The parties may amend this Agreement upon their mutual, written
agreement,

j Regulatory Compliance: The parties agree that nothing contained in this
Agrecment shall require the Center to refer residents to the Hospital for hospital or
medical-care services or to purchase goods and services. Notwithstanding any
unanticipated effect of any provision of this Agreement, neither party will knowingly and
intentionally conduct its behavior in such a manner as to violate the prohibition against
fraud and abuse in connection with the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

k. Access to Books and Records: If applicable, upon written request of the
Secretary of Health and Human Services or the Comptroller General of the United States,
or any of their duly authorized represcntatives, the Hospital shall make available to the
Secretary or to the Comptroller General those contracts, bocks, documents and records
necessary to verify the nature and extent of the costs of providing its services under this
Agreement. The Hospital shall make such inspection available for up to four ycars after
the rendering of such service. Public Law 96-499 and applicable regulations governs and
requires this Section 12.k. The parties agree that this Agreement shall not waive any
attorney-client, accountant-client, or other legal privileges. Any audit must be conducted
by Center’s employees (no consultants) whereas the Hospital prokibits outside vendors to
access hospital files. Center's auditors must perform in accordance to federal and state
law, including HIPAA.,

1928300-1
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IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties, through their duly authorized officers, have executed this
Agreement as of the date first written above.

USRC Bolingbrook, LLC Adventist Bolingbrook Hospital

By: ﬁ? . “’M By: M
[ts: Manager / Its: J/l/"/ JCFD  HaH

1928300-1
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ATTACHMENT 28

ASSURANCES

1891453-1
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77 1ll. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(j) - Assurances

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(j), and with respect to the US Renal Care

Bolingbrook Dialysis facility, Applicant certifies the following:

1. By the second year of operation after project completion, the Applicant
will achieve and maintain the 80% utilization standards as specified in 77

I1l. Adm. Code § 1100; and

2. That Applicant will achieve and maintain compliance with the following
adequacy of hemodialysis outcome measures for the latest 12-month

period for which data are available:

> 85% of hemodialysis patient population achieves area reduction ratio
(URR) > 65% and > 85% of hemodialysis patient population achieves

Kt/V Daugirdas I1 .1.2.

W

Signature /

Thomas L. Weinberg
Printed Name

Manager
Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19" day of May , 2011

WKz,
a iy,
%,

Sent STey
‘/ﬁ S Y g S SRR,
- = s ...Q (,21.' 2
Signature of Notary B A
2 Lo N\, i F§
Seal 2\ ™S §
%, PR
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ATTACHMENT 39

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

Applicant documents that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the
estimated total project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient
financial resources from cash and securities. Applicant will fund the project through capital
contributions from its members. In the event that such contributions are insufficient to cover the
costs associated with this project, U.S. Renal Care Inc. will provide funding to Applicant through
USRC Alliance by way of a revolving promissory note. As evidence of U.S, Renal Care Inc.'s
financial viability, we have included audited financials for 2008-2010. In addition, included in
Attachment 42 is a certification from U.S. Renal Care Inc. attesting to the reasonableness of the
financing arrangement. Lastly, the master lease for dialysis equipment is also included in this
attachment. The lessee contemplated by the master Icase is a wholly owned subsidiary of U.S.
Renal Care Inc. and the equipment will be subsequently leased to UUSRC Bolingbrook LLC.

1891453-1
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch’s or Standard and Poor’s rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's {the rating shal! be affirmed
within the latest 18 month peried prior te the submittal of the application):

»  Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds - Review Criteria
s Section 1120.130 Financial Viability - Review Criteria
» Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility - Review Criteria, subsection {a)

VI, - 1920.120 - Availability of Funds

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidencs of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: Indicate the dolfar amount to be provided from the following sources:

a) Cash and Securities - statements (e.g., audited financial statements, fehers from financial
$2,486,029 institutions, board resolutions) as to:
1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, ingtuding the

identification of any security, ils value and availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be esmed on depreciation account funds or to be earned on any
asset from the date of applicant's submisslon through project completion;

b) Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing anticipaled
receipts and discounted value, estimated time table of gross receipts and related fundralsing
expenses, and a discussion of past fundralsing experience.

c) Gifls and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identification of any conditions of use, and
the estimated time lable of raceipts;

d) Oebt - a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt time period, variable
or permanent inerest rates over the deb! time period, and the anticipated repayment schedute} for
any interim and for the permanent firancing proposed fo fund the project, including:

1} For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required referendum or
evidence Ihat the governmental unit has the authority to issue the bonds and
evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, including any discounting

anticipated;

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibllity of securing the specified amount and
interest rate;

3) For morigages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the expectation

of making the Joan in the amount and time indicated, including the anticipated
Interest rate end any conditions associated with the marlgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable inlerest rates, balloon paymenits, eic.;

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and conditions,
including any purchase options, any capitat improvements to the property and
provislon of capital equipment;

5) Far any oplion to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and cenditions.

e} Govemmental Appropriations - a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied by e
stajement of funding availability from an official of the governmental unit. f funds are (o be made
available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other action of the governmental
unit attesting to this intent,

f Granis - a letter from the granting agency as to the avaitability of funds in terms of the amount and
time of receipt;

m All Other Funds and Sources — verification of the amount and type of any other funds that will be
used for the project.

$2,486,029 | TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

Page 50
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
' Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)
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KPMG LLP
Suite 3100
717 North Harwoad Street
Dallas, TX 75201-6585

Independent Audilors’ Report

The Board of Directors
U.8. Renai Care, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the Company) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
changes in equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting, Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materal
respects, the financial position of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and
2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting prineiples.

KPMe LP

Dallas, Texas
Apnl 27,2011

KPMG LLP Is a Dalawars limited labilty portrership,
the U.S. member fimn of XPMG Intemational Cooperative
CKPYG Intemrilonal), a Swiss entity.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $13,458,494 and $8,460,232
Inventories

Cther receivables

Deferred tax asset

Other current assets

Total current asscts

Property and cquipment, net
Amortizable intangibles, net
Trade names

Investment in affiliate
Goodwil

Other long-term assets
Deferred taxes

Total asscts
Liabilities and Equity

Accounts payabte

Accrued expenses

Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations
Current portion of related-party noles payable '

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, net of current portion
Related-party notes payable

Other long-term liabilities

Deferred tax liability

Preferred stock accrued dividends

Total liabikities
Commitments and contingencies

UL.S. Renal Carg, Inc. equity:

Preferred stock A ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 20,325,000;
issued and outstanding 12,350,000 and 12,350,000 shares)

Preferred stock B and B-1($0.01 par value. Authorized shares
1,600,000; issued and outstanding 1,431,666 and 1,415,666 shares)

Preferred stock C ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 25,000,000
issued and outstanding 24,500,962 and 24,500,962 shares)

Preferred stock D ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 8,333,333,
issued and outstanding 8,333,333 and 0 shares)

Common stock ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 53,525,000 and
52,525,000; issued and outstanding 7,074,324 and 7,074,324 shares)

Additional paid-in capital

Retained carnings

Total U.S. Renal Care, Inc. stockholders” equity

Noncontrolling interests (including redeemabte interests with redemption
values of $40,999,428 and $23,600,000)

Total equity
Total tiabilitics and equity

See accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements.

2010 2009
9,537,107 15,325,357
48,449,631 25,900,874
3,100,193 1,369,198
9,994,938 4,863,513
6,215,457 904,600
2,636,244 1,429,165
79,933,570 49,792,707
46,781,941 19,251,600
27,349,714 12,241,011
855,000 —
— 217,670
190,524,762 67,922,354
470,902 238,961
— 906,459
345,919,889 150,570,762
9,045,119 5,675,616
24,248,618 16,485,807
2,924,662 1,447,595
£25,000 125,000
36,343,399 23,734,018
181,723,922 62,010,592
— 125,000
440,844 532,982
9,480,942 —
19,631,208 14,736,426
247,820,315 101,139,018
123,500 123,500
14,317 14,157
245,010 245010
83,333 —
70,744 62,229
38,667,471 36,454,222
5,291,320 1,497,694
44,495 695 38,396,812
53,603,879 11,034,932
98,099,574 49,431,744
345,919,889 150,570,762
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Net operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Patient care costs
General and administrative
Provision for doubtful accounts
Legal cost/settlement
Transaction costs
Depreciation and amaortization

Total operating expenses
Operating income
Interest expense, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision (benefit)
Net income
Less net income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Net income attributabie to U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements..

2010 2009
237,606,328 153,164,637
154,284,195 98,842,829
20,207,561 15,601,927
6,898,682 4,585,251
(352,334) 286,647
9,076,731 460,465
14,655,411 7,957,301
204,770,246 127,734,420
32,836,082 25,430,217
10,192,698 2,923,456
22,643,384 22,506,761
5,826,130 (3,191,190)
16,817,254 25,697,951
13,023,628 10,103,151
3,793,626 15,594,800
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009
2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activitics:
Net income 16,817,254 25,697.951
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 14,655,411 7,957,301
Noncash dispute settlement 450,000 —
Lease agreement intangible amortization included in rent 31,337 (83,399)
Provision for doubtful accounts 6,898,682 4,585,251
Deferred income taxes 2,929.214 (4,794,034)
Equity investment income {805,801) (17,646)
Stock compensation expense 102,652 55,096
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 41,711 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of
acquisitions and divestitures:
Accounts receivable (11,223,175) (9,500,021)
Inventories 1,065,325 1,046,906
Other receivables (2,773,018) (529,248)
Other current assets (326,422) (93,041)
Other long-term assets (1,049,343) 7,176
Accounts payable and accrued expenscs 585,137 {5,143,239)
Other noncurrent liabilities 331,317 {12,936)
Net cash provided by operating activities 27,730,281 19,176,117
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (116,523,175) (386,762)
Sale of property and equipment 3,172,324 —
Additions of property and cquipment, net (18,394,835) (7,431,804)
Purchase of noncontrolling interests (18,991,500} —
Investment in affiliate 101,335 (200,024)
Net cash used in investing activities {150,635,851) (8,018,590)
Cash flows from financing activitics:
Proceeds from long-term debt borrowings 181,952,491 8,750,000
Payments on long-term debt and related-party notes payable (73,000,188) {600,224)
Deferred financing costs ) (7,938,537) (7,424)
Proceeds from capital leases 3,260,343 336,118
Capital leasc payments (1,243,894) (799,901)
Net proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 25,015,999 316,000
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 43,648 29,823
Repurchase of preferred stock — (75,000)
Contributions from noncontroiling interests 695,750 267,750
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (11,668,292) (9,463,932)
Net cash provided by {used in) financing activities 117,117,320 (1,246,790)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (5,788,250) 9.910,737
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 15,325,357 5,414,620
Cash and cash cquivalents at end of year 9,537,107 15,325,357
5 (Continued)
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JU.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest ‘ 3
Cash paid for taxes

Supplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:
Accrual of cumulative preferred dividends b
Capital lease financing

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2010 2009
8,474,494 2,780,464
4,814,265 1,260,000
5,094,782 3,924,249
99,126 463,783

Attachment 39

128




U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

(1)  Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

{c)

(d)

(e}

Organization and Business

U.S. Renal Care, Inc. (the Company)} was formed in June 2000 and provides dialysis services to
patients who suffer from chronic kidney failure, also known as end stage renal discase (ESRD).
ESRD is the stage of advanced kidney impairment that requires continual dialysis treatments, or a
kidney transplant, to sustain life. Patients suffering from ESRD generally require dialysis three times
per week for the rest of their lives. The Company primarily provides these services through the
operation of outpatient kidney dialysis clinics. As of Deccmber 31, 2010, the Company operated
84 outpatient dialysis clinics in Texas, Arkansas, Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Ohio,
Pennsylvania, Virginia and South Carolina. In addition to its outpatient dialysis center operations, as
of December 31, 2010, the Company provides acute dialysis services through contractual
relationships with 21 hospitals and dialysis to patients in their homes.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the rcporting period.

Although actual resylts in subsequent periods will differ from these estimates, such estimates are
developed based upon the best information available to management and management’s best
Judgments at the time made. The most significant estimates and assumptions involve revenue
recognition, provisions for uncollectible accounts, determination of the fair value of assets and
habilities acquired, impairments and valuation adjustments, and accounting for income taxes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash and highly liquid investments with a maturity of ninety days or less at date of
purchase. Cash and cash equivalents at times may e¢xceed the FDIC [imits. The Company believes no
significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these cash investments.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance Jor Doubtful Accounts

Substantially all of the Company’s accounts receivable are related to providing healthcare services to
its patients and arc due from the Medicare program, state Medicaid programs, managed care health
plans, commercial insurance companies and individual patients. The estimated provision for doubtful

7 (Continued)
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U.S8. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

accounts is recorded to the extent it is probable that a portion or all of a patient balance will not be
collected. The Company considers a number of factors in evaluating the collectibility of accounts ‘
receivable including the age of the accounts, collection patterns and any ongoing disputes with
payors.

Amounts Due from Third-Party Payors

The amount due from third-party payors, which is included in other receivables, represents balances
owed to the Company by the Medicare program for reimbursable bad debts related to Medicare
beneficiaries. These reimbursements are part of the Company’s annual cost report filings and as
such, the actual payments may be delayed or subsequently adjusted pending review and audit by the
Medicare program fiscal intermediaries.

Amounts Due from Drug Rebates

- The amount due from drug rebates, which is included in other receivables, represents balances owed

to the Company by various pharmaceutical vendors for Epogen (EPO), vitamin D and iron. During
2010 and 2009, the Company had incentive contracts that reduced the invoice price based upoen
volume purchased. This incentive was payable to the Company on a quarterly basis, In addition,
there was an additional annual incentive based on volume that was payable to the Company
annually.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of pharmaceuticals and dialysis-related supplies and are stated at the

. lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Market is determined

on the basis of estimated realizable values.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, Property under capital lease
agreements is stated at the present value of minimum lease payments less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
or the term of the lease as appropriate. The general range of useful lives is as follows:

Buildings 39 years
Leasehold improvements Life of lease
Furniture and equipment > years
Computers 3 years

Capital lease assets are amortized over the shorter of the lcase term or the estimated usefl life of the
improvement. Property and equipment acquired in acquisitions is recorded at fair value. The cost of
improvements that extend asset lives is capitalized. Other repairs and maintenance charges are
expensed as incurred. '

3 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Fully depreciated assets are retained in property and depreciation accounts until they arc removed
from service. When sold or otherwise disposed of, assets and related depreciation are removed from
the accounts and the net amounts, less proceeds from disposal, are included in income.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s primary concentration of credit risk exists within accounts receivable, which consist
of amounts owed by various governmental agencies, insurance companies, and private patients.
Reccivables from the Medicare program and various state Medicaid programs were approximately
57% and 55% of gross accounts reccivable at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Concentration of credit risk relating to remaining accounts receivable is limited to some extent by the
diversity of the number of patients and payors.

Atnortizable Intangible Assets

Amortizable intangible assets and liabilities include noncompetition and similar agreements, lease
agreements, and deferred debt issuance costs. Noncompetition and similar agreements are amortized
over the terms (five to ten years) of the agreements using the straight-line method, Lease agreement
intangibles for favorable and unfavorable leases are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Deferred debt issuance costs are amortized using the effective interest method as an adjustment to
interest expense over the term of the related debt. In the case of debt repayments prior to the end of
the term, the Company adjusts the amount of deferred financing costs at the date of repayment,
which is included in interest expense.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded when the consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of net
tangible assets and identifiable intangible assets acquired. Goodwill and other indefinite-lived
intangible assets are not amortized, but are instead tested for impairment at least annually. The
annual evaluation for 2010 and 2009 resulted in no impairment charges.

Impairment of Long-Lived and Indefinite-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates long lived-assets and identifiable intangibles for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable
or the useful life has changed. When undiscounted future cash flows are not expected to be sufficient
to recover an asset’s carrying amount, a loss is recognized and the asset is written down to its fair
value.

9 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table details the Company’s financial instruments where the carrying value and fair
value differ (amounts in millions):

Fair value at reporting date using

Quoted
prices
in active Significant Significant
Carrying markets for other other
value as of identical observable unobservable
December 31, items inputs inputs
Financial instrument 2010 (Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
Senior secured credit
facility 3 178,917 — — 189,632

The estimates of the fair value of the Company’s senior secured credit facility are based upon a
discounted present value analysis of future cash flows. Due to the existing uncertainty in the capital
and credit markets, the actual rates that would be obtained to borrow under similar conditions could
materially differ from the estimates the Company has used.

The fair value of the interest rate swaps are determined using quoted market prices for similar swap
agrecments and were nominal at December 31, 2010.

U.S. GAAP describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of which the first two are
considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure fair value. The three
levels of inputs are as follows:

. Level | — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

. Level 2 — Inputs other than Level | that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

» Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are
significant to the fair value of the assets or labilities.

For the Company’s other financial instruments, including the Company’s cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses the Company estimatesthc carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to their short-term maturity.

10 {Continued)
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U.5. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Net Operating Revenues and Accounts Receivable

Net operating revenue is recognized in the period services are provided. Revenue consists primarily
of reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid and commercial health plans for dialysis services
provided to patients. A usual and customary fee schedule is maintained for the Company’s dialysis
treatment and other patient services. However, actual collected revenue is normally at a discount to
this fee schedule. Contractual adjustments represent the differences between amounts billed for
services and amounts paid by third-party payors.

The Company’s dialysis facilities are certified to participate in the Medicare program. Revenues
reimbursed by the Medicare program are recognized primarily on a prospective payment system for
dialysis services (ESRD Program). Prior to January 2011, dialysis providers operating under the
Medicare ESRD program received a composite payment rate to cover routine dialysis treatments and
certain supplies, There was a separate payment for laboratory testing and pharmaceuticals such as
EPO, vitamin D and iron supplements that were not included in the composite rate. However,
beginning January 2011, Medicare implemented a new payment system in which all ESRD payments
are now made under a single bundled payment rate that provides for an annual inflation adjustment
based upon a market basket index, less a productivity improvement factor. The bundled payment rate
provides a fixed rate to encompass all goods and services provided during the dialysis treatment,
including pharmaceuticals that were historically separately reimbursed to the dialysis providers.
Most lab services that were previously paid directly to laboratories are aiso included in the new
payment bundle. Now, as a resuit of the bundled payment system, the dialysis providers are at risk of
variations in pharmaceutical utilization since reimbursement is set at a fixed average reimbursement
rate.

The initial 2011 bundled payment rate includes reductions of 2% and 0.8%, respectively, to conform
to the provisions of MIPPA and to establish budget neutrality. Further, there is a 5.94% reduction
tied to an expanded list of case mix adjustors which can be eamed back upon the presence of these
Certain patient characteristics and co-morbidities at the time of treatment. Historically, dialysis
providers have not had to track certain of the case-mix adjustors and this may be difficult to capture
initially. There are also other provisions which may impact reimbursement including an outlier
adjustment and a low volume facility adjustment.

As of November 1, 2010, dialysis providers were required to make an election as to which clinics
would be fully reimbursed as of January 1, 2011 under the new bundled payment system or phased
into the new system over a four year period. The Company elected to have approximately 72% of its
clinics be reimbursed fully under the new bundled reimburscment system beginning January 1, 2011,
Once this election was made, it may not be revoked. All clinics that receive Medicare certification
subsequent to November 1, 2010 will be reimbursed under the new bundled reimbursement system,
Beginning in 2012, dialysis providers will also be subject to a 2% annual Medicare payment
withholding that can be earned back by facilities that meet certain defined clinical performance
standards.

11 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Medicare presently pays 80% of the established payment rates for dialysis treatment furnished to
patienis. The remaining 20% may be paid by Medicaid if the patient is eligible, from private
insurance funds, or from the patient’s personal funds. If there is no secondary payor to cover the
remaining 20%, and if the Company demonstratcs prescribed collection efforts, Medicare may
reimburse the Company for part of that balancc as part of the Company’s annual cost report filings
subject to individual center profitability. As a result, billing and collection of Medicare bad debt
claims are often delayed significantly, and final payment is subject to audit.

Medicaid programs arc administered by state governinents and are partially funded by the federal
government. In addition to providing primary coverage for patients whose income and assets fall
below state defined levels and are otherwise insured, Medicaid serves as a supplemental insurance
progran for the co-insurance portion not paid by Medicare. Medicaid reimbursement varics by state
but is typically reimbursed pursuant to a prospective payment system for dialysis services rendered.

Revenues associated with commercial health plans are estimated based upon patient-specific
contractual terms between the Company and health plans for the patients with which the Company
has formal agreements, upon commercial health plan coverage terms if known or otherwise upon
historical collection experience adjusted for refund and payment adjustment trends. Commercial
revenue recognition involves substantial judgment. With several commercial insurers, the Company
has multiple contracts with varying payment arrangements, and these contracts may include only a
subset of the Company’s dialysis centers. In addition, for services provided by noncontracted
centers, final collection may requirc specific negotiation of a payment amount. Generally, payments
for a dialysis treatment from commercial payors are greater than the corresponding amounts received
from Medicare and Medicaid.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense, for all share-based awards, including stock option
grants to employees, using a fair-value measurement method. Under the fair-value method, the
estimated fair value of awards that are expected to vest is recognized over the requisite service
period, which is generally the vesting period.

Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for its equity compensation using the intrinsic value-based
method of accounting. The Company did not recognize compensation expense before 2006 because
the exercise price of stock options granted was not less than the estimated value of the underlying
stock on the date of grant. The Company continues to account for equity compensation based shares
granted prior to 2006 using the intrinsic value method until such time as shares are modified,
canceled, or repurchased.

12 (Continued)
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U.8. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

"The Company estimates the fair value of awards on the date of grant, using the Black-Scholcs option
pricing model. The weighted average fair value of options granted during the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009 are calculated based on the following assumptions: expected volatility
of 22%, expected dividend yield of 0%, expected life of 3.75 years, and risk-free interest rates of
1.08% to 1.97%. Expected volatility was derived using data drawn from two public dialysis
companies. The expected life was computed utilizing the simplified method as permitted by the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin, Share Based Payment. The
expected forfeiture rate is 20% bascd upon a review of the Company’s recent history and
expectations as segregated between the Company’s board of directors, senior officers, and other
grantees. The risk-free interest rate is based on the approximate average yield on five year United
Statcs Treasury Bonds as of the date of grant. There were 352,000 and 195,000 options granted
during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see note 9).

Noncontrolling Interest

In December 2007, the FASBissued an accounting standard, Noncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements (ASC 810), which gives guidance on the presentation and
disclosure of noncontrolling interests (previously known as minority interests) of consolidated
subsidiaries. This statement requires the noncontrolling interest to be included in the equity section
of the balance sheet, requires disclosure on the face of the consolidated statement of operations of the
amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the consolidated parent and the noncontrolling
interest, and expands disclosures.

Consolidated income (loss) is reduced (increased) by the proportionate amount of income or loss
accruing to noncontrolling interests. Noncontrolling intcrest represents the equity interest of
third-party owners in consolidated entities that are not wholly owned.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax asscls and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to the differences between the
financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases
and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation
allowance is established when it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be
realized.

I3 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

The Company adopted the accounting standard update ASC 740, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, on January !, 2009. Previously, the Company had accounted for tax contingencies
under ASC 450, Accounting for Contingencies. As required by ASC 740, the Company recognizes
the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after determining that the relevant tax authority
would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the
more-likely than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest
benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the
relevant tax authority. At the adoption date, the Company applied ASC 740 to all tax positions for
which the statue of limitations remained open. As a result of the implemcntation of ASC 740, the
Company did not recognize an increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits. The amount of
unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $0.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various states. Tax
regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and
regulations and require significant judgment to apply. The Company is no ionger subject to
U.S. federal or state or local income tax examinations by tax authorities for the years before 2006.In
2010,th ¢ Internal Revenue Service finalized its examination of the Company’s 2007 U.S. income tax
returns. The resolution of this examination resulted in no additional tax payment.

The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense
and penalties in operating expenses for all periods presented.

The Company’s consolidated LLC and L.P. subsidiaries do not incur federal income taxes. Instead,
their earnings and losses are included in the returns of, and taxed directly to, the members and
partners of these subsidiaries.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company has entered into an interest rate swap agreement as a means of hedging its exposure to
and volatility from variable-based interest rate change. These agreements are designed as cash flow
hedges and are not held for trading or speculative purposes. The swap agreement has the economic
effect of converting portions of the Company’s variable rate debt to fixed rates.

In 2010, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Statement No. 161, Disclosures about
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (included in FASB ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and
Hedging), which amends the disclosure requiremcnts for derivative instruments and hedging
activitics. The amended disclosure require entities to provide information to enable users of the
financial statements to understand how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, how
derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for, and how derivative instruments
are related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows
(sce note 6).
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(1} Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 820 relating to fair
value measurements and disclosurcs with respect to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities
that are not permitted or required {0 be measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The adoption had
no impact on thc Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Although the adoption of FASB ASC 820 had no dircct impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements, additional disclosures are required under FASB ASC 820 indicating the fair
value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine fair value measures. The Company
has included appropriate disclosures herein.

Effective December 31, 2009, the Company adopted FASB ASC 855, Subsequent Events, which
establishes principles and requircments for subsequent events and applies to accounting for and
disclosure of subsequent cvents not addressed in other applicable generally accepted accounting
principles. The Company evaluated events subsequent to December 31, 2010 and through April 27,
2011, the date on which the financial statements were issued.

(1)  Reclassifications

Certain reclassifieations have been made to the 2009 consolidated financial statement balances to
conform with the 2010 presentation. Such reclassifications have no effect on earnings or
stockholders’ equity.

(2) Fixed Assets
At December 31, 2010 and 2009, property and equipment consists of the following:

2010 2009
Facility equipment, fumiture, and information systems b 42,891,347 22,202,152
Land and buildings 6,747,940 —
Leasechold improvements 21,493,319 9,731,329
New center construction in progress 778,865 2,829,967
71,911,471 34,763,448
Less accumulated dcpreciation and amortization (25,129,530) {15,511,848)
3 46,781,941 19,251,600
Year ended December 31
2010 2009
Depreciation and amortization expense on property
and equipment g 9,304,459 5,355,638
15 (Continued)
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Net book value of equipment under capital leases at Deeember 31 was as follows:

2010 2009
Equipment § 10,671,572 7,312,321
Less accumulated depreciation (6,099,837) (4,092,015)
h3 4,571,735 3,220,306

Acquisitions/Disposition
The Company has acquired various dialysis businesses, as described further below. The assets and

liabilities for all acquisitions were recorded at their estimated fair values as of the effective acquisition date
based upon the best avatlable information.

Amortizable intangible assets consist primarily of noncompete agreements. Goodwill is recorded when the
consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of identifiable net tangiblc assets and
identifiable intangible assets acquired.

The results of operations for the acquired companies are included in the Company’s financial statements
beginning on the effective acquisition date.

(a)  Dialysis Corporation of America, Inc.Ac quisition

On June 3, 2010, the Company acquired all the outstanding common shares of Dialysis Corporation
of America, Inc. (DCA) for $11.25 per share. DCA provides outpatient dialysis, in-home dialysis and
acute services in Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Virginia and South Carolina.
The results of operations for DCA are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning
June 1, 2010.

The DCA acquisition cost of approximately $110 million and costs related thereto were funded from
the proceeds of the Company’s senior secured and subordinated loan agreements (see note 6) and the
issuance of Series D Preferred Stock (see note 8). All purchase accounting adjustments are final
except for certain deferred tax calculations primarily related to flow-through entities.
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The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are as

follows:
Assets:
Cash 1,294,958
Net accounts receivable 17,072,334
Inventory 2,684,480
Other receivables 1,280,382
Other current assets 2,257,895
Total current assets 24,590,049
Property and equipment, net 20,526,500
Amortizable intangibles, net 12,957,381
Goodwill 113,828,342
Other long-term assets 863,600
Total assets 172,765,872
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 4,958,871
Accrucd expenses 6,177,187
Total current liabilities 11,136,058
Long-term debt 5,586,971
Other long-term liabilities (326,883)
Deferred tax liability 3,808,826
Total liabilities 24,204,972
Equity:
Minority interest $ 38,310,900
Total equity 38,310,900
17 (Continued)
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San Anfonio

On July 1, 2010, the Company purchased an additional 40% interest in one of its joint venture
entities which it previously had a 40% noncentrolling ownership interest for $7.2 million. The
acquisition was funded by borrowing under the Company’s revolving credit facility (see note 6) and
cash on hand. The consolidated results of operation for this facility are included in the Company’s
financial statements beginning July 1, 2010. Previously, the Company’s investment was recorded
using the equity method of accounting, The investment balance at June 30, 2010 was approximately
$922,000.

Assets:
Cash i 671,969
Net accounts receivable 1,151,930
Inventory 22,726
Other receivables 7,724
Other current assets 24,742
Total current assets 1,879,091
Property and equipment, net 974 832
Goodwill 8,426,146
Total assets i 11,280,069
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 25,983
Accrued expenses 145,888
Total liabilities b 171,871
Equity:
Minority interest 3 2,986,200
Total equity b 2,986,200

December Acquisition

On December 1, 2010, the Company acquired two outpatient dialysis clinics, an acute program and a
home program (December Acquisition). This transaction included purchasing a 51% majority
interest in the assets of one of the clinics and a 100% interest in the assets of the other clinic. The
results of operations for these services are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning
December 1, 2010. The December Acquisition cost of approximately $1 miltion was funded from
operating cash flow.
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The estimated fair values of the assets acquired at the acquisition date are as follows:

Assets:
Inventory 3 89,114
Other current assets 26,017
Fixed assets 416,000
Goodwiil 869,546
Total assets 3 1,400,677
Liabilities:
Accrued expenses b 357,713
Total liabilities 5 357,713

{d) Medicore Disposition

On November 30, 2010, the Company sold 100% of the net assets of its medical products business
that was acquired in the DCA acquisition. The Company sold, assigned and transferred certain assets
for approximately $535,000 resulting in no gain or loss.

Noncontrolling Interests

The Company engages in the purchase and sale of equity interests with respect to its consolidated
subsidiarics that do not result in a change of control. These transactions are accounted for as equity
transactions, as they are undertaken among the Company, its consolidated subsidiaries, and noncontrolling

© interests, and their cash flow effect is classified within financing activities.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company was the majority owner in 48 joint ventures. Of the noncontrolling
interests in those 48 joint ventures, 17 have put rights generaily at fair value as defined in the agreement
that are either currently exercisable or become exercisable at various future datcs. The carrying amount of
these redeemable noncontrolling interests totaled $7.3 million and $3.8 million as compared to redemption
values of $41.0 million and $23.6 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The redemption
value is calculated at the current valuc of the put payment that would be required to redeem the interest if
the put s exercised regardless of whether such interest is currently exercisable. As of December 31, 2010,
$7.0 million of put rights are currently exercisable and the remaining $34.0 million become exercisable at
future dates.

During the year, there were nine time-based puts exercised in the Company’s South Texas region and one
in the San Antonio region. The Company paid $18.4 million relating to these puts. As a result of the DCA
acquisition, there was one change of control put that was partiaily exercised at one clinic for $600,000.
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Intangible Assets
At December 31, 2010 and 2009, amortizable intangible assets consisted of the following:

2010 2009
Noncompetition agreements b 31,836,273 20,132,544
Lease agreements 580,106 76,221
Deferred debt 1ssuance costs 7,939,537 1,910,489
Licenses 359,000 —
40,714 916 22,119,254
Less accumulated amortization {13,365,202) (9,878,243)
Net amortizable intangible assets b 27349714 12,241,011

Amortizable intangible liabilities, which are included in other long-term liabilities, consisted of lease
agreements as follows:

2010 2009
Lease agreements b 1,089,293 1,089,293
Less accumulated amortization (648,449) (556,311)
Net amortizable intangible assets b 440,844 532,982

Amortization of intangible assets and liabilities over the next five years is as follows:

Deferred debt

Noncompetition issuance Lease
agreements costs __agreements Licenses
2011 § 4,564,626 1,323,090 396,359 71,800
2012 4,492,939 1,323,090 307,657 71,800
2013 4,418,857 1,323,090 227,206 71,800
2014 4322211 1,323,090 183,663 71,800
2015 1,281,681 1,323,090 149,418 29917

Changes in the value of goodwill were as follows:

2010 2009
Balance at January 1 b 67,922,354 67,559,887
Goodwill adjustments (521,626) 362,467
Goodwill acquired 123,124,034 —
Balance at December 31 $ 190,524,762 67,922,354
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The fair value of the identifiable intangibles acquired and the amount of goodwill recorded as a result of
acquisitions are determined based upon independent third-party valuations and the Company’s estimates.
Amortization expense for the Company’s intangible assets relates to the value associated with the
noncompete and lease agreements. The noncompete intangible assets are amortized over the term of the
noncompete agreements executed in connection with the acquisition transactions or the medical
agreements entered into with certain physicians and the lease agreement intangibles are amortized over the
term of the lease.

Long-Term Debt

On June 3, 2010, the Company entered into a new senior credit agreement that consists of: (a} a
$132.5 million senior secured term loan (Term Loan) and (b) a $40 million senior secured revolving credit
facility (Revolver). Also on June 3, 2010, the Company entered into a $40 million senior subordinated loan
agreement (the Subordinated Loan). The proceeds of the Term Loan and the Subordinated Loan along with
available cash on hand were utilized to: (a) pay off the Company’s existing CIT Term Loan B and
Revolver (which bore interest at 4.25% at December 31, 2009), (b) pay expenses and fees associated with
the new senior secured and subordinated loan agreements, and (¢} to fund the DCA acquisition (see note 3)
including cost and fees related thereto.

Borrowings under the Term Loan and Revolver (collectively Senior Secured Loans) bear interest based
upon a spread in excess of LIBOR (floor of 1.75%} or the U.S. prime rate, as the benchmark, as adjusted
based upon the Company’s leverage ratio. The new Senior Secured Loan also provides for an annual
unused commitment fee of 0.75% based upon the average revolving credit commitment less outstanding
borrowings on the Revolver and letters of credit issued. As of December 31, 2010, borrowings under the
Senior Secured Loans bore interest at 6.25%. The Subordinated Loan accrues interest at 13.25% with
11.25% paid in cash per annum.The remain ing 2% of interest on the Subordinated Loan (PIK Interest) will
be capitalized and accrued for until it becomes due upon the maturity of the [oan.

The Term Loan requires quarterly principal payments of $331,250 in each year from 2011 through 2015
with the balance of $124,881,250 due in 2016. The Subordinated Loan requires a one- time payment of
$40 million principal balance due in 2017, in addition to outstanding PIK Interest.

The Revolver, Term Loan, and Subordinated Loan mature on June 2, 2015, June 2, 2016 and June 2, 2017,
respectively. The subordinated loan agreement provides for prepayment penalties if it is rcpaid within the
first four years subsequent to June 3, 2010.

Commencing with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, the Company is required to prepay its
outstanding Senior Secured Loan balances with 50% of excess cash flow as defined in the credit
agreement. The Company is also required to prepay senior secured loan balances with: (a) 50% of the net
proceeds of certain capital contributions as defined in the credit agreement, (b) 100% of the proceeds of
asset sales or the proceeds received from casualty event settlements that are not reinvested or permitted
pursuant to the terms of the credit agreement, and (c) 100% of the proceeds of indebtedness that is incurred
and not permitted pursuant to the credit agreement. Following satisfaction of any prepayment under the
Senior Secured Loans, the Company is required to prepay the Subordinated Loan balances with 100% of
the proceeds of asset sales or the proceeds received from a casualty event settlement that are not reinvested
or permitted pursuant to the terms of the credit agreement.
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The Senior Secured Loans and the Subordinated Loan are guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by each
of the Company’s subsidiaries. Borrowings under the credit agreements are collateralized by most of the
Company’s assets, including accounts receivable, inventory, and fixed assets not subject to pcrmitted
capital leascs. The Subordinated Loan is subordinated to the repayment of the Senior Secured Loans. The
Senior Secured and Subordinated Loan agreements include various events of default and contain certain
restrictions on the operations of the business, including restrictions on certain cash payments, including
capital expenditures, investments and the payment of dividends. These loan agreements also include
covenants pertaining to fixed charge coverage, interest coverage, and total debt leverage, as well as other

customary covenants and events of defaulis.

The Company believes it is in compliance with all covenants under the Senior Secured Loan and
Subordinated Loan agreements and has met all debt payment obligations. At December31, 2010,

approximately $33.0 million was unused and available under the Revolver.

At December 31,2010 and 2009, long-term debt and capital lease obligations consisted of the following:

2010 2009
Senior secured credit facility:
CIT term loan B $ — 34,873,000
CIT revolver — 24 968,762
Term loan 131,506,250 —
Revolver : 7,000,000 —
Subordinated loan 40,410,549 —
Other notes payablc
Capital lease obligations 23,305 23,532
‘ 5,708,480 3,592,893
Less current portion 184,648,584 63,458,187
(2,924,662) (1,447,595)
5 181,723,922 62,010,592
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Scheduled maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations at December 31, 2010 were as
follows:

Long-term Capital lease
debt obligatiens
2011 h 1,346,461 1,964,299
2012 1,326,844 1,402,897
2013 1,325,000 1,208,797
2014 1,325,000 988,427
2015 8,325,000 486,895
Thereafter 165,291,799 309,975
$ 178,940,104 6,861,290
Less intercst portion at 5.719% ~ 8.561% (1,152,810)
Total b 5,708,480

According to the senior secured loan agrecment, the Company was required to enter into an interest rate
hedging agreement, no later than 90 days following the closing date. The Company entered into a three
year Hedge Agreement on September |, 2010 which consists of an interest rate cap on the LIBOR floating
rate of the senior secured loans at 1.75% until August 31, 2011. Additionally the Company entercd into a
swap from September 1, 2011 to September |, 2013 effectively fixing the base rate at 2.32%. The notional
amount of the swap is $46.375 million, which is equivalent to 35% of the Term Loan amount borrowed.
The fair values of the interest rate cap and swap are insignificant at December 31, 2010 and are not being

accounted for as an effective hedge resulting in no adjustment to fair value being recorded to the statement
of operations as interest expense.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) consisted of the following:

2010 2009
Current;
Federal . 3 1,652,164 678,126
State 1,244,752 924,717
Deferred:
Federal 3,086,086 (4,783,401)
State (156,872) (10,632)
h 5,826,130 (3,191,190)

The difference between the expected tax expense based on the federal statutory rate of 34% is primartly
Texas gross margin tax, which is not based on pre-tax income and income tax aftributable to
noncontrelling interest.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary differences were as follows:

2010 2009
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued expenses and other liabilities for financial
accounting purposes not currently deductible b 5,776,527 765,594
Net operating loss carmyforwards and contribution limitation 858,471 1,345,244
Flow through cntities 4,328,310 3,671,996
Property plant and equipment 197,679 236,104
Other 151,589 332,312
Total deferred tax assets 11,312,576 6,351,250
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment and intangibles, principally due to
differences in depreciation and amortization (3,546,732) (25,657)
Goodwill (11,031,330) (4,514,534)
Total deferred tax liabilities (14,578,062) (4,540,191)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) 3 (3,265,486) 1,811,059
The valuation allowance consisted of the following:
2010 2009
Balance at January | $ — 6,149,048
Increase (decrease) during the year ' — (6,149,048)

Balance at December 31 $ —

The Company had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $205,000 as of December 31, 2009,
which were utilized in 2010. The Company has not recorded a valuation allowance for any of its deferred

tax assets at December 31, 2010 as it expects to generate future taxable income sufficient to realize such
deferred tax assets.

(8) Preferred Stock

Under the Company’s Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, 108,783,333 total shares
are authorized to issue, comprising 53,525,000 shares of common stock and 55,258,333 shares of preferred

stock. Preferred stock is issuable in series under terms and conditions determined by the Company’s board
of directors,

(a) Series A Preferred Stock
As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, there were 12,350,000 shares of Series A Preferred outstanding,.
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Series B Preferred Stock

The Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock (Series B Preferred) shares were sold, primarily
to rclated-party physicians, at an original issue price of $1 per share. During 2010 and 2009, the
Company issued 16,000 shares to a related-party physician at a price of $1.00 per share. As of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, thcre were 545,000 and 529,000 shares, respcctively, of Scries B
Preferred outstanding.

Series B-1 Preferred Stock
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, therc were 886,666 shares of Series B-1 Preferred outstanding.

Series C Preferred Stock
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were 24,500,962 shares of Serics C Preferred outstanding,

Series D Preferred Stock

During 2010, 8,333,333 shares of Preferred D Stock were issued at a pricc of $3 per share for total
net proceeds of approximately $25.0 million in connection with the acquisition of DCA. As of
December 31, 2010, there were 8,333,333 shares of Series D Preferred outstanding.

Dividends

Series A Preferred, Series C Preferred, and Series D Preferred stockholders are entitled to receive
cash dividends at the rate of 8% per annum calculated on the original issue prices. Dividends are
cumulative from the date of original issuance and accrue quarterly. Accumulations of dividends on
shares of Series A, Series C and Series ) Preferred stock do not bear intcrest and are payable
generally at the time of a liquidating event as defined in the agreement. Series B Preferred,
Series B-1 Preferred, and common stockholders are entitled to receive dividends, when and if
declared by the board of directors out of the Company’s assets legally availablc therefore, so long as
all accrued dividends on then outstanding Series A, Series C, and Series D Preferred stock have been
paid or declared and set apart.

Redemption

Each share of Series A, Series C, and Scries D Preferrcd stock is redcemable beginning on
September 1, 2020, if approved by 60% of the then-outstanding sharcholders of Series A, Series C,
and Series D Preferred. Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stock is redeemable, beginning on
September 1, 2012 only subject to and after redemption of the Series A, Series C, and Series D
Preferred Stock and if approved by 60% of the then-outstanding shares of Series A, Series C, and
Serics D Preferred, voting as a single class, and if also approved by 60% of the then-outstanding
shares of Series B and Series B-1 Preferred, voting as a single class.

Any such redemption would be payable in three equal annual installments caleulated using the sum
of the original issue prices ($1 per share for Series A,Seri es C, and Series D Preferred, and $1.50 for
Serics C and Series B-1 Preferred) plus all related accrued and unpaid dividends.
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(h} Conversion Rights

(¥

0/

Each share of Series A, Series B, Series B-1, Series C and Series D Preferred stock is convertible at
any time, at the option of the holder, into the same number of shares of common stock. Each share of
Series A, Series B, Series B-1, Series C, and Series D converts automatically upon a qualified public
offering. Upon such automatic conversion, any related declared and unpaid dividend becomes due.

Liguidation Preference

Upon liquidation or dissolution, and after payment or provision for payment of all debts and
liabilities, stockholders of the Company will receive proceeds, to the extent available, as follows:
(a) first, to the holders of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred Stock, amounts per share equal
to their original share purchase prices, plus accrued and unpaid dividends (as adjusted for past
dividends, combinations, splits, recapitalizations, and the like); (b) second, to the holders of Series B
and Series B-1 Preferred Stock, amounts per share equal to their original share purchase prices, plus
any accrued and unpaid dividends, (as adjusted for past dividends, combinations, splits,
recapitalizations, and the like); (c) third, ratably to the holders of Common Stock, and Serics A
Preferred Stock, Series C Preferred Stock and Series D Preferred Stock on an as-if converted to
Common Stock basis until the holders of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred Stock shall have
received, in total including thc payment under (a) above, an amount equal to three (3) times the
Series A and Series C and two (2) times the Series D original issue price, respectively; and
(d) fourth, to the holders of Common Stock, any remaining available amounts,

Voting Rights

Each share of Series A, Series C and Series ID Preferred stock issued and outstanding is entitled to
the number of votes equal to the number of shares of commen stock into which it is convertible. For
various defined events, Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders vote together as a
separate class. In those circumstances, 60% or more of the outstanding Series A, Series C and
Series D Preferred stockholders must approve the event.

Each share of common stock is entitled one vote. As long as Series A, Series C and Series D
Preferred stock is outstanding, and except for various defined events, Series A,S eries C and Series D
Preferred stockholders vote together with common stockholders as a sinple class on an
as-if-converted to common stock basis.

The Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stockholders have no voting rights and their consent is not
required to take any corporate action,

A majority of the Company’s stockholders, voting together on an as-if-converted to common stock
basis, can change the number of authorized shares outstanding,
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Other Termy

If Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred shares are outstanding, no dividend may be declared,
and no shares shall be redeemed, on Series B or Series B-1 Preferred stock unless all accrued
Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred dividends have been paid and a similar dividend is
declared on Series A,Se ries C and Series D Preferred stock.

All stockholders are obligated to participate in a sale of the Company approved by 60% of the
Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders, voting together as a single class, and the
board of directors.

Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase any new securities
on a proportionate basis, and also have the right of over-allotment if any other Series A, Series C or
Series D Preferred shareholder fails to purchase a full proportionate share of the any new securities.
Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred,and common stockholders do not have precmptive rights.

The Company and the Series A and Series B Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase shares
from Series B Preferred, Serics B-1 Preferred and common stockholders who wish to transfer their
shares to a nonpermitted transferee.

Stock Compensation Plans

The Company’s 2005 Stock Incentive Plan {the 2005 SIP) provides stock options and restricted stock
grants, and other share-bascd incentives, primarily to employees and directors. In March 2009, the
Company authorized an additional 500,000 shares available for grant. In May 2010, the Company
authorized an additional 600,000 shares available for grant. There were 6,000,000 and 5,400,000 shares
available for grant as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, under the amended 2005 SIP.

(@

Stock Option Plan

Awards granted under the 2005 SIP are for incentive stock options with a five year term, an exercise
price at Jeast equal to the market value on the date of grant, and which vest 25% after one year of
service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next three years of service. I[ncome for the years
ended December31, 2010 and 2009 included $70,744 and $13,271 respectively, of pretax
compensation costs related to stock options granted. As of December 31, 2010, there was $22,072 of
total unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options. These costs are expected 10 be
recognized over a period of approximately four years. At December 31, 2010, the weighted average
remaining contractual life of outstanding options was 2.37 years.
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The table below summarizes activity in the Company’s stock option plan:

Year ended December 31

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercisc
Awards price Awards price
Qutstanding at beginning of
year 1,016,066 % 0.14 1,061,692 § 0.14
Granted 352,000 0.26 195,000 0.15
Exercised (291.472) 0.15 (208,751 0.14
Canceled — e (31,875) 0.11
Qutstanding at end of year 1,076,594 % 0.18 1,016,066 $ 0.14
Awards exercisable at
year-end 380,742 § 0.14 412941 % 0.14

Restricted Stock

The Company issued restricted stock to certain employces in 2010 and in prior years, Restricted
stock awards vest 25% after one year of service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next
three years of service, subject to continued employment and other plan terms and conditions. Holders
of restricted stock are not allowed to scll, transfer, pledge, or otherwise encumber their restricted
shares, but such holders are allowed to vote and their shares accrue dividends when and if declared.
The Company may, but is not obligated to, repurchase vested restricted stock from employees at fair
market value upon termination of the recipient's employment.

Expense for restricted stock is recognized over the vesting period. The noncash compensation
expense associated with restricted stock awards was $31,908 in 2010 and $41,825 in 2009. The
following table summarizes restricted stock award activity;

2010 2009
Outstanding balance at beginning of year $ 3,401,558 3,401,558
Granted 560,000 —
Exercised — —
Forfeited — —
Repurchased — —-—
Balance at December 31, 2010 5 3,961,558 3,401,558
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The following table summarizes the nonvested restricted stock activity:

2010 2009
Qutstanding balance at beginning of year 5 641,122 1,384,334
Granted 560,000 —
Vested (488,369) (743,212)
Forfeited — —
Repurchased — —
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 712,753 641,122

At December 31, 2010, 3,248,805 of the outstanding restricted shares were vested. As of
December 31, 2010, there was approximately $320,471 of total unrecognized compensation costs |
related to restricted stock awards. These costs are expected to be recognized over a remaining
vesting period of approximately four years.

(10) Related-Party Transactions

Participation in the Medicare ESRD program requires that treatment at a dialysis ccnter be under the
general supervision of a director who is a physician. The Company has engaged physicians or groups of
physicians to scrve as medical directors for each of its centers. The Company has contracts with
approximately 59 individual physicians and physician groups to provide medical director scrvices. The
compensation of medical directors is negotiated individually and depends in general on local factors such
as competition, the professional qualifications of the physician, their experience and their tasks as well as
the workload at the clinic.,

An ESRD patient generally seeks treatment at a dialysis center ncar his or her home and at which his or her
treating nephrologist has practice privileges. Additionally, many physicians prefer to have their patients
treated at dialysis centers where they or other members of their practice supervise the overall care provided
as medical dircctors to the centers. As a result, and as is typical in the dialysis industry, the primary referral
source for most of the Company’s centers is often the physician or physician group providing medical
director services to the center.

The Company’s medical director agreements generally include covenants not to compete. Also, when the
Company acquires a center from one or tnore physicians, or where one or more physicians owns interests
in centers as co-owners with the Company, these physicians have agreed to refrain from owning interests
in competing centers within a defined geographic area for various time periods. These agreements not to
compete restrict the physicians from owning or providing medical director services to other dialysis
centers. Most of these agreemcents not to compete continue for a period of time beyond cxpiration of the
corresponding medical director agreements,

The Company leases space for 44 of its centers in which physicians and/or employees hold ownership
interests, and subleases space to referring physicians and/or employees at one center. Future minimum
lease payments payable under these leases is approximately $22 million at December 31, 2010, exclusive
of maintenance and other costs, and is subject to escalation. For 2010 and 2009, total lease payments under
these leases were approximately $2.9 million and $2.4 million, respectively. On June 21, 2010, the
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Company entered into a ten year corporate office lease agreement with an entity owned by two of its
employees. The lcase is expected to commence in 2011, The future lease payments payable under this
lease are approximately §1.5 million.

The Company’s York, Pennsylvania dialysis center is leased from a limited liability partnership in which
the Company has a 60% ownership interest with the remaining 40% owned by two doctors one of whom
serves as the medical director for that facility. These doctors are also affiliated with the entity that owns a
40% minonty ownership in the subsidiary that operates the facility.

Some medical directors and other referring physicians own Serics B and Series B-] Preferred stock, which
they purchased from the Company. Some of the Company’s medical directors also own equity interests in
entities that operate the Company’s dialysis centers.

The Company belteves that the leases and equity purchases are no less favorable to the Company and no
more favorable to such physicians than would have been obtained in arin’s-length bargaining between
independent parties.

The Company has one promissory note obligation owed a noncontrolling interest holder in one of its
subsidiaries. The note obligation was in an original amount of $750,000, of which $125,000 and $250,000
was outstanding at Dccember 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, $125,000
of the amount outstanding was classified in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as a current
liabitity. The note bears interest at 7% and principal is due in six annual installments from May I, 2006
through May 1, 2011.

During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company paid a related party affiliated through
common ownership $461,011 and $293,101, respectively, for the usage of an airplane.

A member of the Company’s board of directors provides consulting services ‘primarily rclated to regulatory
and reimbursement matters. The tolal expenses incurred by the Company related to these services were
approximately $100,000 and $108,333 in 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Legislation, Regulations, and Market Conditions

The Company’s dialysis operations are subject to exlensive federal, state, and local povernment
regulations. These regulations require the Company to meet various standards relating to, among other
things, the opcration of dialysis clinics, the provision of quality healthcare for patients, maintenance of
proper ownership and records, quality assurance programs, and occupational, health, safety and
environmental standards, and the provision of accurate reporting and billing to government and private
payment programs. These laws are extremely complex, and in many instances, providers do not have the
benefit of significant regulatory or judicial interpretation as to how to interpret and apply these laws and
regulations in thc normal course of conducting their business. Healthcare providers that do not comply
with these laws and regulations may be subject to civil or criminal penalties, the loss of their licenses, or
restriction in their ability to participate in various federal and state healthcare programs. The Company
endcavors to conduct its business in compliance with applicable laws and repulations.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemcnts

December 3 I, 2010 and 2009

The Company’s dialysis centers are certified (or are pending ccrtification) by the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services, as is required for the receipt of Medicare payments, and are licensed and permitted by
state authorities.

The Medicare and Medicaid Fraud and Abuse Amendments of 1977, as amended, generally refcrred to as
the “anti-kickback statute,” imposes sanctions on those who, among other things, offer, solicit, make or
receive payments in return for referral of a Medicare or Medicaid paticnt for treatment. The federal False
Claims Act imposes penalties on those who, among other things, knowingly present a false or fraudulent
claim for payment to the federal government. Another federal law, commonly referred to as the “Stark
Law,” prohibits physicians, with certain exceptions, from referring Medicare patients to entities with which
the physician has a financial relationship, states have analogous statues. The Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), among other things, includes provisions relating to the privacy
of medical information and prohibits inducements to patients to select a particular healthcare provider.
Congress, states and regulatory agencies continue to consider modifications to federal and state healthcare
laws. The Company’s dialysis centers are also subject to various state hazardous waste and nonhazardous
medical waste disposal laws.

Sanctions for violations of these statutes could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties,
repayments for patient services previously billed, expulsion from govermnment healthcare programs, and
other civil or criminal penalties. Management believes that the Company is in material compliance with
applicable government laws and regulations,

Profit-Sharing Plan

The Company has a savings plan for employees who meet certain criteria that have been established
pursuant to the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan allows employees to
contribute a defined portion of their compcnsation on a tax-deferred basis. Since January 1, 2005, the plan
allows for defined matching Company contributions for eligible employees. The plan was amended
effective January 1, 2006 to allow vesting credit for prior years of service for employees of certain
acquired businesses. For the years ending December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, the Company made
matching contributions to the plan of $386,328 and $391,053.

The Company may also make discretionary profit-sharing contributions to the plan if approved by the
board of directors. No such contributions were made in 2010 or 2009.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company may be subject to claims and suits in the ordinary course of business, including contractual
disputes and professional and gencral liability claims.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

On February 15, 2007, the previous owners of the acquired San Antonio facilities brought suit against the
Company. In the lawsuit, the plaintiffs alleged that the Company had failed to pay amounts due to the
sellers of Rencare Ltd, (Rencare) concerning accounts receivable that arose prior to the close of the
Rencare acquisition. The Company denied plaintiff’s claims and, made counterclaims against plaintiffs and
filed a third-party cross-claim against one of the other sellers of Rencare. In the Company’s counterclaim
and cross-complaint, the Company alleged, among other things, that Sellers breached the representations
and warranties in the applicable Rencare acquisition documents by failing to disclose certain hiabilities. A
trial was held in November 2008 and judgment was entered in favor of plaintiff for $750,000 plus
$300,000 in attorney fees. Both sides appealed and the Company fully prevailed in the appcal. The
appellant court moved that the plaintiff should receive nothing. Plaintiff moved for reconsideration and the
appellant court dismissed their motion. Plaintiffs are seeking further appellant review. At this tine, the
Company cannot determine what will be the ultimate resolution. The Company incurred legal and other
professional fees related to this litigation. These expenses aggregated $27,208 and $286,647 in 2010 and
2009, respectively. In 2010, the Company reversed a $1.1 million reserve related to this litigation that it
recorded in 2003,

In February, 2010, and prior to the Company’s acquisition, DCA received a subpoena from the Office of
Inspector General of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (OIG) with respect to an
investigation relating to EPO utilization at certain DCA elinics. The Company has been fully cooperating
with the inquiry and has produced the requested documents to date. While there is no indication of such at
this time, any negative findings could result in: (a) substantial monetary penalties, (b) excluding certain
facilities from participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs, and (c) the Company incurring legal
expenses and management time, any or all of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
revenues, earnings and cash flows. The Company incurred legal fees related to this investigation of
$389,741 in 2010, subsequent to its aequisition of DCA.

In December 2010, the Company received a Civil Investigative Demand (CID} from the U.S. Attorney for
the District of New Jersey requesting documents relating to laboratory tests performed on patients of the
Company at two of its North Texas clinics. The Company is in the process of gathering the required
documents and performing its own review of such documents. While the Company believes that it is not
the subject of the government’s investigation, the outcomc of this matter is uncertain and the Company has
risk of an adverse outcome that could result in substantial monetary penalties.

The Company has obligations to purchase the third-party interests in several of its joint ventures. These
obligations arc in the form of put provisions in joint venture agreements, and are exercisable at the
third-party owners’ discretion with some timing limitations. If these put provisions are cxercised, the
Company would be required to purchase the third-party owners” interests at fair market value (see note 4).
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The Company rents office space, medical facilities, and medical equipment under lease agreements that are
classificd as operating leases for financial reporting purposes. At December 31, 2010, the future minimum
rental payments vnder noncancelable operating leases with terms of one year or more consist of the

following:
2011 b 9,210,791
2012 8,665,034
2013 7,709,826
2014 6,288,782
2015 5,566,500
Thereafter 12,080,991

Rent expense was $8,129,164 and $6,290,202 for the years ended December3], 2010 and 2009,
respectively. '
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KPMG LLP

Suite 3100

747 North Harwood Street
Dallas, TX 75201-6585

Independent Aunditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
U.S. Renal Care, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur rcsponsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedurcs that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant c¢stimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a rcasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Deccember 31, 2009 and
2008, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has changed its method of
accounting for noncontrolling intercsts in 2009 retrospective to 2008 due to the adoption of new
accounting requirements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, as of Janvary 1, 2009,

KPr e LP

Dallas, Texas
April 21,2010

KPMG LLP, o U.5. lim2ed Esbilly parnership, i B W5
member firm of KPMG Internationa!, & Swiss coopermt va.
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U.S, RENAL CARE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Asscts

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $8,460,232 and $6,589,745
Inventories

Other reccivables

Other current asscts

Total current assels

Property and equipment, net
Amortizable intangibles, net
Investment in affiliate
Goodwill

Qther long-term assets
Deferred taxes

Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders® Equity

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Current portion of leng-term dcbt and capital lease obligations
Current portion of related party notes payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, net of current portion
Related party notes payable

Other long-term liabilities

Deferred tax liability

Preferred stock accrued dividends

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies

U.8. Renal Care, Inc. Equity:

Preferred stock A ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 20,325,000:;
issued and outstanding 12,350,000 and 12,350,000 shares)

Preferred stock B and B-1($0.01 par valuc. Authorized shares
1,600,000; issued and outstanding 1,415,666 and 1,449,666 shares)

Preferred stock C ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 25,000,000;
issued and outstanding 24,500,962 and 24,300,962 shares)

Commeon stock ($0.01 par value, Authorized shares 53,525,000 and
52,525,000; issued and outstanding 6,222,852 and 6,014,102 shares)

Additional paid-in capital

Retained eamings/(accumulated deficit)

Total U.S. Renal Care, Inc. stockholders’ equity

Noncontrolling interests (including redecmable interests with redem ption
values of $23,600,000 and $22,400,000)

Total equity
Total liabilities and equiry

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2009 2008

5 15,325,357 5,414,620
25,500,874 20,986,104
1,369,198 2,416,104
4,863,513 4,334,265
2,333,765 1,340,190
49,792,707 34,491,283
19,251,600 16,731,509
12,241,011 14,848,215
217,670 —
67,922,354 67,559,887
238,961 246,136

906,459 373,701

$ 150,570,762 134,250,731
5 5,675,616 7,328,583
16,485,807 20,000,375
1,447,595 1,525,241
125,000 164,440
23,734,018 29,018,639
62,010,592 53,638,587
125,000 250,000

532,982 042,281

— 3,360,742

14,736,426 10,812,177
101,139,018 97,722,426
123,500 123,500

14,157 14,497

245,010 243,010

62,229 60,141
36,454,222 40,056,300
1,497,694 (14,097,106)
38,396,812 26,400,342
11,034,932 10,127,963
49,431,744 36,528,305

$ 150,570,762 134,250,731
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

Net operating revenues b

Operating expenses;
Patient care costs
General and administrative
Provision for doubtful accounts
Seller litipation settlement
Transaction costs
Depreciation and amortization

Total eperating expenses

Operating income

Interest expense, net

Income before income taxes

Income tax (benefit) provision

Net income

Less net income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Net income (loss) attributable to U.S. Renal Care, Inc.  §

2009 2008
153,164,637 127,567,973
98,842,829 86,674,644
15,601,927 13,828,191
4,585,251 4,339,141
286,647 2,269,203
460,465 791,162
7,957,301 6,679,228
127,734,420 114,581,569
25,430,217 12,986,404
2,923,456 3,999,912
22,506,761 8,986,492
(3,191,190) 2,543,899
25,697,951 6,442,593
10,103,151 8,517,409
15,594,300 (2,074,816)

See accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $§ 25,697,951 6,442,593
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 7,957,301 6,679,228
Lease agreement intangible amortization included in rent (83,399} (138,350)
Provision for doubtful accounts 4,585,251 4,339,141
Deferred income taxes (4,794,034} 1,082,400
Equity investment income (17,646) —
Stock compensation expense 55,096 74,582

Changes in operating assets and liabilitics, net of effect of
acquisitions and divestitures:

Accounts receivable (9,500,021) {9,669,549)
Inventories 1,046,906 (511,064)
Other receivables (529,248) (871,725)
Other current assels (93,041) (436,327)
Other long-term assets 7,176 (20,698)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5,143,239 9,889,017
Other noncurrent liabilities (12,936) {97,278)
Wet cash provided by operating activities 19,176,117 16,761,930
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (386,762) (5,964,131)
Additions of property and equipment, net (7,431,804) (7,530,045)
Payment for noncompete agreement — (350,000)
Investment in affiliate (200,024} —
Net cash used in investing activities {8,018,590) (13,844,176)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt borrowings 8,750,000 12,004,250
Payments on long-term debt and related party notcs payable (600,224) (4,284,519)
Deferred financing costs (7,424) {437,334)
Procecds from capital leases 336,018 251,615
Capital lease payments (799,501) {793,974)
Net proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 316,000 466,000
Procecds from issuance of common stock 29,823 46,631
Repurchase of preferred stock (75,000} —
Contributions from noncontrolling interests 267,750 1,702,911
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (9,463,932} (8,341,814)
Net cash provided {used in} financing activities (1,246,790} 613,766
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 9,510,737 3,531,520
Cash and cash cquivalents at beginning of year 5,414,620 1,883,100
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year b 15,325,357 5,414,620
5 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years cnded December 31, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest b 2,780,464 4,002,642
Cash paid for taxes 1,260,000 1,269,843
Supplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing
activities:
Accruatl of cumulative preferred dividends $ 3,924,249 3,882,015
Capital lease financing 463,783 —_

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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U.S, RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

(1)  Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

{b)

(c)

(@

{e)

Organization and Business

U.S. Renal Care, Inc. (the Company) was formed in Junc 2000 and provides dialysis services to
patients who suffer from chronic kidney failure, also known as end stage renal disease (ESRD).
ESRD is the stage of advanced kidney impairment that requires continual dialysis treatments, or a
kidney transplant, to sustain life. Patients suffering from ESRD generally require dialysis three times
per week for the rest of their lives. The Company primarily provides these services through the
operation of outpatient kidney dialysis clinics. As of December 31, 2009, the Company operated
42 outpatient dialysis clinics in Texas and Arkensas. In addition to its outpatient dialysis center
operations, as of December31, 2009, the Company provides acute dialysis services through
contractual relationships with 13 hospitals and dialysis to paticnts in their homes.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the company and its
wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions havc been climinated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consclidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAF) requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilitics, and the disclosure of
contingent asscts and liabilities, at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Although actual results in subsequent periods will differ from these estimates, such estimates are
developed based upon the best information available to management and management’s best
judgments at the time made. The most significant estimates and assumptions involve revenuc
recognition, provisions for uncollectible accounts, determination of the fair value of assets and
liabilitics acquircd, impairments and valuation adjustments, and accounting for income taxcs.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash and highly liquid investments with a maturity of ninety days or less at date of
purchase. Cash and cash equivalents at times may exceed the FDIC limits. The Company believes no
significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these cash investments.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubiful Accounts

Substantially all of the Company’s accounts receivable are related to providing healthcare scrvices to
its patients and are due from the Medicare program, state Medicaid programs, managed carc health
plans, commercial insurance companies and individual patients. The estimated provision for doubtful
accounts is recorded to the extent it is probable that a portion or all of a patient balance will not be
collected. The Company considers a number of factors in evaluating the collectibility of accounts
receivable including the age of the accounts, collection patierns and any ongoing disputes with
payors.

7 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Amounts Due from Third-Party Payors

The amount duc from third-party payors, which is included in other receivables, represents balances
owed to the Company by the Medicare program for reimbursable bad debts related to Medicare
beneficiaries. These reimburscments arc part of our annual cost report filings and as such, the actual
payments may be dclayed or subsequently adjusted pending review and audit by the Medicare
program fiscal intermediaries.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of pharmaceuticals and dialysis-related supplies and are stated at the
lower of cost or market, Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Market is determined
on the basis of estimated realizable valucs.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property under capital lease
agrcements is stated at the present value of minimum lease payments less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the cstimated useful lives of the assets
or the term of the lease as appropriate. The general range of useful lives is as follows:

Leasehold improvements Life of lease
Furniture and cquipment 5 years
Computers 3years

Capita) lease assels and leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or
the estimated uscful life of the improvement. Property and equipment acquired in acquisitions is
recorded at fair value. The cost of improvements that extend asset lives is capitalized, Other repairs
and maintenance charges are expensed as incurred.

Fully depreciated asscts are rctained in property and depreciation accounts until they are removed
from service. When sold or otherwise disposed of, assets and related depreciation are removed from
the accounts and the nct amounts, less proceeds from disposal, are included in income.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s primary concentration of credit risk exists within accounts receivable, which consist
of amounts owed by various governmental agencies, insurance companies, and private patients.
Receivables from the Medicare program and various state Medicaid programs were approximately
55% and 60% of gross accounts receivable at December31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Concentration of credit risk relating to remaining accounts receivable is limited to some extent by the
diversity of the number of patients and payors.

Amortizable Intangible Assets

Amortizable intangible assets and labilities include noncompetition and similar agreements, lease
agreements, and deferred debt issuance costs. Noncompetition and similar agreements are amortized
over the terms (five to ten years) of the agreements using the straight-line method. Lease agreement

8 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

intangibles for favorable and unfavorable leases arc amortized on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Deferred debt issvance costs are amortized using the effective intercst method as an adjustment to
interest expense over the term of the related debt. In the case of debt repayments prior to the end of
the term, the Company adjusts the amount of deferred financing costs at the date of repayment,
which is ineluded in refinancing charges.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded when the consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of net
tangible assets and identifiable intangible assets acquired. Goodwill and other indefinite lived
intangible assets are not amortized, but are instead tested for impairment at least annually. The
annual evaluation for 2009 and 2008 resulted in no impairment charges.

Impairment of Long-Lived and Indefinite Lived Assets

We evaluate long lived asscts and identifiable intangibles for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that an asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable or the
useful life has changed. When undiscounted future cash flows are not expected to be sufficient to
recover an asset’s carrying amount, a loss is recognized and the asset is written down to its fair
value.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following details our financial instruments where the carrying value and fair value differ,
{amounts in millions):

Fair value at reporting date using

Quoted
prices
in active Significant Signilicant
Carrying markets for other other
value as of identical observable unobservable
December 31, items inputs inputs
Financial instrument 2009 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Senior secured credit
facility 3 59,842 — — 57,412

The estimates of the fair value of our senior secured credit facility are based upon a discounted
present value analysis of future cash flows. Due to the existing uncertainty in the capital and credit
markets, the actual rates that would be obtained to borrow under similar conditions could materially
differ from the estimates we have used.
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U.S. GAAP describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of which the first two are
considcred observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure fair value. The three
levels of inputs are as follows:

. Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

. Level 2 — Inputs other than Level ! that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

. Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are
significant to the fair valuc of the assets or liabilities.

For our other financial instruments, including our cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, accrued expenses and other long-term debt we estimate the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to their short-term maturity.

Net Operating Revenues and Accounts Receivable

Net operating revenue is recognized in the period services are provided. Revenue consists primarily
of reimbursements from Mecdicare, Medicaid and commercial health plans for dialysis services
provided to patients. A usual and customary fee schedule is maintained for our dialysis treatment and
other patient services. However, actual collected revenue is nommally at a discount to this fee
schedule, Contractual adjustments represent the differences between amounts billed for services and
amounts paid by third-party payors.

Qur dialysis facilities are certified to participate in the Medicare program. Revenues reimbursed by
the Medicare program are recognized primarily on a prospective payment system for dialysis
services (ESRD Program). Under the ESRD Program, Medicare reimbursement rates for dialysis
services are set in advance pursuant to Part B of the Medicare Act. An established composite rate set
by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) governs the Medicare reimbursement
available for a designated group of dialysis services, including dialysis treatments, supplies uscd for
such treatments, medications, and certain laboratory costs. The composite rate is subject to regional
differences bascd on various factors, including labor costs. Other ancillary services and itcms,
including EPO and other drugs, arc eligible for separate rcimbursement from the Medicare program
and are not parl of the composite rate.

Medicare presently pays 80% of the established payment rates for dialysis treatment fumished to
patients. The remaining 20% may bc paid by Medicaid if the patient is eligible, from private
insurance funds, or from the patient’s personal funds. If there is no secondary payor to cover the
remaining 20%, and if the Company demonstrates preseribcd coliection efforts, Mcdicare may
reimburse the Company for part of that balance as part of the Company’s annual cost report filings
subject to individual center profitability. As a result, billing and collection of Medicare bad debt
claims are oflen delayed significantly, and final payment is subject to audit.

Medicaid programs are administered by state governments and are partially funded by the federal
government. In addition to providing primary coverage for patients whose income and assets fall
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below state defined levels and are otherwisc insured, Medicaid serves as a supplemental insurance
program for the co-insurance portion not paid by Medicare. Mcdicaid reimbursement varies by state
but is typically reimbursed pursuant to a prospective payment system for dialysis services rendered,

Revenues associated with commercial health plans are estimated based upon patient-specific
contractual terms between the Company and health plans for the patients with which we have formal
agreements, upon commercial health plan coverage terms if known, or otherwise upon historical
collcction experience adjusted for refund and payment adjustment trends, Commercial revenue
recognition invelves substantial judgment. With several commercial insurers, the Company has
multiple contracts with varying payment arrangements, and thesc contracts may include only a
subset of the Company’s dialysis ccnters. In addition, for services provided by noncontracted
centers, final collection may require specific negotiation of a payment amount. Generally, payments
for a dialysis treatment from commercial payors are greater than the corresponding amounts received
from Medicare and Medicaid.

Share-Based Compensation

We recognize compensation expense, for all share-based awards, including stock option grants to
employees, using a fair-value measurement method. Under the fair-value method, the estimated fair
value of awards that are expected to vest is recognized over the requisite. service period, which is
generally the vesting period.

Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for its equity compensation using the intrinsic value-based
method of accounting. The Company did not recognize compensation expense before 2006 because
the exercise price of stock options granted was not less than the estimated value of the undertying
stock on the date of grant. The Company continues to account for equity compensation based shares
granted prior to 2006 using the intrinsic value method until such time as shares are modified,
canceled, or repurchased.

The Company estimates the fair value of awards on the date of grant, using the Black Scholes option
pricing model. The weighted average fair value of options granted during the years ended
December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 was $0.04 per share and was calculated based on the
following assumptions: expected volatility of 28%, expected dividend yield of 0%, expected life of
3.75 years, and risk-free interest rates of [.50% to 3.34%. Expected volatility was derived using data
drawn from two public dialysis companies. The expected life was computed utilizing the simplified
method as permitted by the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin, Share
Based Payment. The expected forfeiture rate is 20% based upon a review of the Company’s recent
history and expectations as segregated between the Company’s board of directors, senior officers,
and other grantees. The risk-free interest rate is bascd on the approximate average yield on five year
United States Treasury Bonds as of the date of grant. There were 195,000 and 550,000 options
granted during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively (see notc 9).

Noncontrolling Interest

In December 2007, the FASBissued an accounting standard, Noncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements (ASC 810), which gives guidance on the presentation and
disclosure of noncontrolling interests (previously known as minority interests) of consolidated
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subsidiaries. This statement requires the noncontrolling interest to be included in the equity section
of the balance sheet, requires disclosure on the face of the consolidated statement of operations of the
amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the consolidated parent and the noncontrolling
interest, and expands disclosures. The disclosure requirements are to be applied prospectively to
fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Classification of such interests have been
recorded retrospectively as noncontrolling intcrests and will appear in stockholders’ equity in our
consolidated balance sheets and presented separately on the statement of operations.

Consolidated income (loss) is reduced (increased) by the proportionate amount of income or loss
accruing to noncontrolling interests. Noncontrolling interest represents the equity interest of
third-party owners in consolidated entities that are not wholly owned.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to the differences between the
financial statement carrying amount of existing asscts and liabilitics and their respective tax bases
and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Beferred tax assets and liabilities are mcasured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The cffect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the cnactment date. A valuation
allowance is established when it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be
realized.

The Company adopted the accounting standard updatc {ASC 740), Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, on January 1, 2009. Previously, the Company had accounted for tax contingencies
under ASC 450, Accounting for Contingencies. As rcquired by ASC 740, the Company recognizes
the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after determining that the relevant tax authority
would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the
more-tikely than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest
bencfit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the
relevant tax authority. At the adoption date, the Company applicd ASC 740 to all tax positions for
which the statue of limitations remained open. As a result of the implementation of ASC 740, the
Company did not recognize an increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits, The amount of
unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2009 was $0.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various states. Tax
regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and
regulations and require significant judgment to apply. With few exceptions, the Company is no
fonger subject to U.S. federal or state or local income tax examinations by tax authorities for the
years before 2006. The Company is currently under examination by the Intemal Revenue Service of
its U.8. income tax returns for 2007. The Company cxpects these examinations to be concluded and
settled in the next 12 months. The Company has no unrccognized tax benefits related to the period
being examined. The Company believes it is reasonably possible that the resolution of this
examination will result in no additional tax payment.
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The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense
and penalties in operating expenses for all periods presented. During the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008, the Company has recognizcd interest and penalties of 30.

The Company’s consolidated LLC and L.P. subsidiaries do not incur federal income taxes. Instead,
their earnings and losses are included in the retuns of, and taxed directly to, the members and
partners of these subsidiaries.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronounce menis

In December 2007, the FASB issued an accounting standard (ASC 805), Business Combinations,
which significantly changes the accounting- for business combinations, including, among other
changes, new accounting concepts in determining the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired,
recording the fair value of contingent considerations and contingencies at acquisition date and
expensing acquisition and restructuring costs. ASC 805 is effective for business combinations which
occur during fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. The Company made no acquisitions in
2009. We expect ASC 805 will have an impact on accounting for business combinations but the
effect will be dependent upon acquisitions at that time.

The Company adopted thc provisions of FASD ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures, as of January 1, 2008 for financial assets and liabilities that are remcasured and reported
at fair value each reporting period. FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that
distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market data cbtained from sources
indepcndent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the
hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions
{(unobscrvable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy}. The adoption of the standard to the
Company’s financial assets did not have any impact on the consolidated financial statcments.

Effective January i, 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 820 relating to fair
valuec measurements and disclosures with respect to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities
that are not permitted or required to be mcasured at fair value on a recurring basis. The adoption had
no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements,

Although the adoption of FASB ASC 820 had no direct impact the Company’s consolidated
financial statements, additional disclosures arc required under FASB ASC 820 indicating the fair
value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine fair value measurcs. The Company
has included appropriate disclosures herein.

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued guidance which divides
nongovernmental U.8. GAAP into authoritative Codifications and guidance that is nonauthoritative.
The Codification is not intended to change U.S. GAAP; however, it does significantly change the
way in which accounting literature is organized and because it completely replaces existing
standards, it will affect the way U.S. GAAP is refercnced by most companies in their financial
statements and accounting policics. The Codification is effective for financial statements issued for
interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009, The adoption of the Codifications did
not have an impact on our consolidated financial statements other than changing references to the
appropriate codifications sections,
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Effective December 31, 2009, the Company adopted FASB ASC 855, Subsequent Events, which
establishes principles and requirements for subsequent events and applies 1o accounting for and
disclosure of subsequent ¢vents not addressed in other applicable generally accepted accounting
principles, The Company evaluated events subsequent to December 31, 2009 and through April 21,
2010, the date on which the financial statements were available to be issued.

Fixed Assets

Property and equipment censists of the following:

December 31
2009 2008

Facility equipment, furniture, and information systems $  22202,152 18,768,243
Leasehold improvements 9,731,329 8,196,592
New center eonstruction in progress 2,829,967 203,156
34,763,448 27,167,991
Less accumnulated depreciation and amortization (15,511,848) (10,436,482)
5 19,251,600 16,731,509

Year ended December 31

2009 2008
Depreciation and amortization expense on property
and equipment $ 5,355,638 4,125,949
Net book value of equipment under capital lcases at Dcccmber 31 was:
December 31
2009 2008
Equipment b 7,312,321 6,168,488
Less accumulated depreciation {4,092,015) (3,056,080)
b 3,220,306 3,112,408

Acquisilions

The Company has acquired various dialysis businesses, as described further below. The assets and
liabilities for all acquisitions were recorded at their estimated fair market values as of the effective
acquisition date based upon the best available information,

Amortizable intangible assets consist primarily of noncompete agreements. Goodwill is recorded when the
consideration paid for an acquisition excceds the fair value of identifiable net tangible assets and
identifiable intangiblc asscts acquired.
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The results of operations for thc acquired companies are included in the Company's financial statements
beginning on the effective acquisition date.

(a)

()

Eumana Home Dialysis Acquisition

On February 1, 2008, the Company acquired an 88% majority interest in the assets and certain
liabilities of Eumana Home Dialysis, Inc. (Eumana), which provides home hemodialysis, acute
hemodialysis, and peritoneal dialysis in patient’s homes and in hospitals in and around Houston,
Texas. The results of operations for these services are included in the Company’s financial
staternents beginning on February 1, 2008,

The Eumana acquisition cost of approximately $6.4 million was funded from the proceeds of a bank
loan (see note 6).

The estimated fair values of the asscts acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are as
follows:

Assets:
Cash $ 575,348
Inventory 52,687
(Other curreny assets 26,166
Fixed assets 1,140,565
Noncompete agreements and
other identifiable intangibles 845,300
Goodwill 4,309,586
Total assets 6,949,652
Liabilities:
Lease apreements (see note 5) (128,492)
Other liabilities (463,848)
Net assets acquired $ 6,357,312
CRC Acquisition

Effective September 1, 2008, the Company purchased 100% of the stock of Clinical Research
Connections, LLC (CRC). CRC is a site management organization that provides coordination and
management of clinical trials for pharmaceutical and medical device companies and contract
research organizations. Services arc provided in Arkansas and Texas. The results of operations for
thesc scrvices are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning on September 1, 2008,

The Company’s initial purchase pricc for CRC consisted of the repayment of an cxisting loan and
certain other credit obligations incurred by CRC prior to the acquisition date that aggregated
$572,245 and are included in accrued expenses below. In addition to the initial purchase price, the
Company will also owe the prior shareholders of CRC an amount (Eamout) equal to the eamnings
before depreciation, amortization, and interest of CRC for the three year period subsequent to
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September 1, 2008 less the initial purchase price. The payments due pursuant to the Eamout will be i
made annually beginning 15 months subsequent to close.

In November 2009, the Company made the first of three earnout payments of $362,467 to prior

shareholders of CRC.
The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are as
follows:
Assets:
Cash h 2,245
Other current assets 16,603
Fixed assets 14,573
Noncompete agreements and
other identifiable intangibles 50,000 :
Goodwill 907,155
Total assets 990,576
Liabilities:
Accounts payable {130,380)
Accrued liabilities (674,764)
Net assets acquired $ 185,432

Noncontrolling Interests

The company controls and therefore consolidates the results of 41 of its 42 facilities. Similar to its
investments in unconsolidated affiliates, the Company engages in the purchase and sale for equity interests
with respect to its consolidated subsidiaries that do not rcsult in a change of control, these transactions are
accounted for as equity fransactions, as they are undertaken among the Company, its consolidated
subsidiaries, and noncontrolling interests, and their cash flow effect is classificd within financing activities.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company was the majority owner in 31 joint ventures. Of the noncontrolling
interests in those 31 joint ventures, 15 have put rights generally at fair value as defined in the agreement
that are either currently exercisable or become exercisable at various future dates. The carrying amount of
these redeemable noncontrolling interests totaled $4.4 mitlion and $3.8 million as compared to redemption
values of $23.6 million and $22.4 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The redemption
value is calculated at the current value of the put payment that would be required to redeem the interest if
the put is exercised regardless of whether such interest is curmrently exercisable. As of December 31, 2009,
$7.8 million of put rights are currently exercisable and the remaining $15.8 million become exercisable in
2010.

During 2009 the company entered into a joint venture relating to dialysis services with a physician in
which the company owns a 40% interest. This is reflected as investment in affiliate in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet.
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Intangible Assets

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, amortizable and indefinitc-lived intangible assets consisted of:

Amortizable intangible assets as follows:

December 31
2009 2008

Noncompetition agreements 5 20,132,544 20,132,544
Lease agreements 76,221 76,221
Deferred debt issuance costs 1,910,489 1,903,064
22,119,254 22,111,829
Less accumulated amortization (9,878,243) (7,263,614)
Net amortizable intangible assets 5 12,241,011 14,848,215

Amortizable intangible liabilities, which are included in other long-term liabilities, consisted of lease
agreements as follows:

December 31
2009 2008
Lease agreements b 1,089,293 1,089,293
Less accumulated amortization (556,311) (447,012)
Net amortizable intangible assets 3 532,982 642,281

Amortization of intangible assets and liabilities over the next five years is as follows:

Noncompetition Deferred debt Lease
agreements issuance costs agreements
2010 $ 2,226,310 366,331 88,696
2011 2,226,310 366,264 88,656
2012 2,166,194 183,132 82,101
2013 ‘ 2,119,921 — 56,301
2014 2,026,763 — 56,801
17 (Continued)
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Changes in the value of goodwill were as follows:

December 31
2009 2008
Balance at January | $ 67,559,887 62,344,166
Goodwill adjustments for prior acquisitions 362,467 (1,020)
Goodwill acquired — 5,216,741
Balance at December 31 b 67,922,354 67,559,887

The fair value of the identiftable intangibles acquired and the amount of goodwill recorded as a result of
acquisitions are determined based upon independent third-party valuations and the Company’s estimates.
Amortization expense for the Company’s intangible asscts relates to the value associated with the
noncompete and lease agreements, The noncompete intangible assets are amortized over the term of the
noncompete agreements executed in connection with the acquisition transactions or the medical
agreements entered into with certain physicians and the lease agreement intangibles are amortized over the
term of the lcase.

Long-Term Debt

Prior to January 1, 2007, the Company entered into a $55 million syndicated credit agreement with CIT
Healthcare LLC, as administrative agent (the CIT Credit Agreement) and two other lenders, for a
$30 miltion secured loan (Term Loan B) and a $25 million revolving credit facility (CIT Revolver).

Borrowings under the CIT Credit Agreement bear interest based upon a spread in excess of the LIBOR or
the U.S. prime rate, as thc benchmark, and based upon thc Company’s leverage ratio. The credit agreement
also provides for an annual unused commitment fee of 0.5% based upon the average revolving credit
eommitment less outstanding borrowings on the revolver and letters of credit issued. As of December 31,
2009 and 2008, borrowings under the CIT Credit Agreement bore interest at 4.25% and 6.63%,
respectively.

The CIT Credit Agreement allows the Company to request up to an additiona! $15 million in revolving
credit commitments at any time during the term of the revolving credit facility up to 180 days prior to its
scheduled termination. The Term Loan B and the CIT Revolver mature on July 5, 2012 and July 5, 2011,
respectively. Quarterly principal payments of 891,000 are due on the Term Loan B. In accordance with the
original terms of the CIT Credit Agreement, the Company was required to make principal repayments
equal to 75% of exccss cash flow, as defined, within 120 days of year end until the total lcverage ratio at
the end of a fiscal year is 2.50 or lower.

In February 2007, the CIT Credit Agreement was amended to provide, among other things, for the
following: (1} the defincd calculation for excess cash flow prepayments atiributable to 2006 and payable
by April 30, 2007 was changed so that the Company will not be required to fund the 2007 prepayment;
(2) permitted capital expenditures were increascd; and (3) total and senior leverage ratios were increased.
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In February 2008, the CIT Credit Agreement was amcnded to allow for the purchase of Eumana Home
Dialysis Inc. (see note 3). The credit agreement was increased $6.4 million to a total of $61.4 million. The
additional $6.4 million is a subsequent Term Loan B commitment and matures on the same date as the
criginal Term Loan B. The scheduled quarterly principal payments on the Term Loan B increased from
$75,000 to $91,000.

In July 2008, the CIT Credit Agreement was amended to provide, among other things, for the following:
(1) distributions in excess of those made to cover third-party owners estimated tax obligations are
permitted assuming the Company is in compliance with its senior leverage ratio; (2)the permitted
acquisition limit was increased; (3)the spread in excess of LIBOR or the US Prime Rate, as the
benchmark, to determine the interest rate the borrowings base was increased; (4) total and senior leverage
ratios were amended; (5) the limits for permitted purchase money debt, capitalized leasce obligations and
capital expenditures were increased; and (6) several definitions were amended.

The CIT Credit Agreement is guarantecd, on a joint and several basis, by each of the Company’s
subsidiaries. Borrowings under the credit agreement are collateralized by most of the Company’s assets,
including accounts receivable, inventory, and fixed assets not secured by other credit facilities. The credit
agreemcent includes various events of default and contains certain restrictions on the operations of the
business, including restrictions on certain cash payments, including capital expenditures, investments and
the payment of dividends, and including covenants pertaining to fixed charge coverage, minimum annual
EBITDA, senior debt leverage and total debt leverage, as well as other customary covenants and events of
defauits. One event of default pursuant to the CIT Credit Agreement is subjcctive as it relates to whether
therc is a material adverse change in (a) the properties, business, prospects, operations, management, or
financial condition of the Company or (b) the ability of the Company to meet its obligations under the
agrecement,

The Company believes it is in compliance with all covenants under the CIT Credit Agreement and has met
all debt payment obligations. At December 31, 2009, approximately $31,000 was unused and available
under the revolving credit facility,

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations consisted of the following:

December 31
2009 2008

Senior secured credit facility:
CIT Tetm Loan B § 34,873,000 35,237,000
CIT Revolver 24,968,762 16,218,762

Notes payable:
Note payable to First Insurance — 58,802
Note payable to Simmons First Bank of Jonesboro 23,532 36,514
Capilal lease obligations 3,592,893 3,612,750
63,458,187 55,163,828
Less current portion {1,447,595) (1,525,241)
$ 62,010,592 53,638,587
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Scheduled maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations at December 31, 2009 were as

follows:

2010 §

2011
2012
2013
2014
Thereafter

Less interest portion at 5.7192% — 8.561%
Total

Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) consisted of the following:

Current:
Federal b
State

Deferred:
Federal
State

L]

Leng-term Capital lease
debt obligations
370,004 1,349,272

25,350,290 1,123,390
34,145,000 561,963
— 453,797

— 261,986

— 646,178
59,865,294 4,396,586
(803,693)

3 3,592,893

2009 2008

678,126 771,194
924,717 690,305

(4,783,401) 1,090,717
(10,632) (8,317)

{3,191,150) 2,543,399

The difference between the expected tax expense based on the federal statutory rate of 34% is primarily
due to the valuation allowance that was previously required due to historical losses and uncertainty of
future taxable income, Texas gross margin tax which is not based on pre-tax income and income tax

attributable to noncontrolling interest.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary differences were as follows:

2009 2008
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued expenses and other liabilities for financial
accounting purposes not currently deductible b 765,594 310,441
Net operating loss carry forwards and contribution limitation 1,345,244 4,626,938
Flow through entities 3,671,996 1,407,357
Property plant and equipment 236,104 176,369
Other 332,312 99,998
Total deferred tax asscts 6,351,250 6,621,103
L.ess valuation allowance — (6,149,048)
Net deferred tax asscts 6,351,250 472,055
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment and intangibles, prineipally due to
differences in depreciation and amortization (25,657) (98,355)
Goodwill (4,514,534) (3,360,742)
_ Total deferrcd tax liabilities (4,540,191) (3,459,097
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) b} 1,811,059 (2,987,042)
The valuation allowance consisted of the following:
December 31
2009 2008
Balance at Janvary 1 3 6,149,048 5,764,526
Increase (decrease) during the year (6,149,048) 354,522
Batance at December 31 5 — 6,149,048

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $1,321,958 and $10,400,000 as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, which expire beginning in the year 2021 if not previously
utilized. The Company has not recorded a valuation allowance for any of its deferred tax assets at
Deccmber 31, 2009 as they expect to generate future taxable income sufficient to realize such deferred tax
assets. The valuation allowancc will be reduced at such time as management is able to determine that the
realization of the deferred tax assets is more tikely than not {o occcur,
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Preferred Stock

Under the Company’s Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, 100,450,000 total shares
are authorized to issue, comprising 53,525,000 shares of common stock and 46,925,000 shares of preferred
stock. Preferred stock is issuable in series under terms and conditions determined by the Company’s beard
of directors.

(a)

()

(¢

(d)

G

Series A Preferred Stock
As of Deccmber 31, 2008 and 2009, there were 12,350,000 shares of Series A Preferred outstanding.

Series B Preferred Stock

The Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock (Series B Preferred) shares were sold, primarily
to related-party physicians, at an original issue price of $1 per share. During 2009 and 2008, the
Company issucd 16,000 shares to a related-party physician at a price of $1.00 per share. As of
December 31, 2009, there were 529,000 shares of Series B Preferred outstanding.

Series B-1 Preferred Stock

During 2009, the Company repurchased 50,000 shares from a related party physician at $1.50 per
share. As of December 31, 2009 there were 886,666 shares of Series B-1 Preferred outstanding.

Series C Preferred Stock

During 2009, the Company issued 200,000 shares at a price of $1.50 per share. As of December 31,
2009, there were 24,500,962 shares of Series C Preferred outstanding.

Dividends

Series A Preferred and Series C Preferred stockholders are entitled to receive cash dividends at the
rate of 8% per annum calculated on the original issue prices. Dividends are cumulative from the date
of original issuance and accrue quarterly. Accumulations of dividends on shares of Series A and
Series C Preferred stock do not bear intcrest and are payable generally at the time of a liquidating
event as defined in the agrcement. Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred, and common
stockholders are entitlcd to receive dividends, when and if declared by the board of directers out of
the Company’s assets legally availablc therefore, so long as all accrued dividends on then
outstanding Series A and Series C Preferred stock have been paid or declared and set apart.

Redemption

Each share of Series A and Series C Preferred stock is redeemable beginning on September 1, 2012,
if approved by 60% of the then-outstanding sharcholders of Series A and Series C Preferred,
Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stock is redeemable, beginning on September 1, 2012 if approved
by 60% of the then-outstanding shares of Series A and Series C Preferred, voting as a single class,
and if also approved by 60% of the then-outstanding shares of Series B and Series B-1 Preferred,
voting as a single class.
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Any such redemption would be payable in three equal annual installments calculated using the sum
of the original issue prices (31 per share for Serics A and $eties B Preferred, and $1.50 for Series C
and Series B-1 Preferred) plus all related accrued and unpaid dividends.

Conversion Rights

Each share of Series A, Series B, Series B-1 and Series C Preferrcd stock is convertible at any time,
at thc option of the holder, into the same number of shares of common stock. Each share of Series A,
Series B, Series B-1, and Series C converts automatically upon a qualified public offering. Upon
such automatic conversion, any related declared and unpaid dividend becomes due.

Liguidation Preference

Upon liquidation or dissolution, and after payment or provision for payment of all debts and
liabilities, stockholders of the Company will receive procecds, 1o the extent available, as follows: (a)
first, to the holders of Series A and Series C Preferred Stock, amounts per share equal to their
original share purchase prices, plus accrued and unpaid dividends (as adjusted for past dividends,
combinations, splits, recapitalizations, and the like); (b) second, to the holders of Series B and Series
B-1 Preferred Stock, amounts per share equal to their original share purchase prices, plus any
accrued and unpaid dividends, (as adjusted for past dividends, combinations, splits, rccapitaiizations,
and the like); (c) third, ratably to the holders of Common Stock, and Series A Preferred Stock and
Series C Preferred Stock on an as-if converted to Common Stock basis until the holders of Series A
and Series C Preferred Stock shall have received, in total including the payment under (a) above, an
amount equal to three (3) times the Series A or Series C original issue price, respectively; and
(d) fourth, to the holders of Common Stock, any remaining available amounts.,

Foting Rights

Each share of Series A and Series C Preferred stock issued and outstanding is entitled to the number
of votes equal to the numbcer of shares of common stock into which it is convertible. For various
defincd events, Series A and Series C Preferred stockholders vote together as a separate class. In
those circumstances, 60% or more of the outstanding Series A and Series C Preferred stockholders
must approve the event.

Each share of common stock is entitled one vote. As long as Series A and Series C Preferred stock is
outstanding, and except for various defined events, Series A and Series C Preferred stockholders
vote together with common stockholders as a single class on an as-if-converted to common stock
basis,

The Scries B and Series B-1 Preferred stockholders have no voting rights and their consent is not
required to take any corporatc action.

A majority of the Company’s stockholders, voting together on an as-if-converted to common stock
basis, can change the number of authorized shares outstanding.
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Other Terms

If Series A and Series C Preferred shares are outstanding, no dividend may be declared, and no
shares shall be redeemed, on Series B or Series B-1 Preferred stock unless ali accrued Series A and
Series C Preferred dividends have been paid and a similar dividend is declared on Series A and
Series C Preferred stock.

All stockholders are obligated to participate in a sale of the Company approved by 60% of the
Series A and Series C Preferred stockholders, voting together as a single class, and the board of
directors.

Series A and Series C Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase any new sccurities on a
proportionate basis, and also have the right of over-allotment if any other Series A or Series C
Preferred shareholder fails to purchase a full preportionate share of the any new securities. Series B
Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred, and common stockholders do not have preemptive rights,

The Company and the Series A and Series B Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase shares
from Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred and commen steckholders who wish to transfer their
shares to a nonpermitted transferee.

Stock Compensation Plans

The Company’s 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2005 SIP) provides stock options and resiricted stock
grants, and other share-based incentives, primarily to employees and directors. In May 2008, the Company
authorized an additional 500,000 shares available for grant. In March 2009, the company authorized an
additional 500,000 shares available for grant. There were 5,400,000 and 4,900,000 shares available for
grant as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, rcspectively, under the amended 2005 SIP,

(a)

Stock Option Plan

Awards granted under the 2005 SIP are for incentive stock options with a five year term, an exercise
price at least equal to the market value on the date of grant, and which vest 25% after one year of
service and then inonthly in equal amounts over the next three years of service. Income for the years
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 included $13,271 and $10,111, respectively, of pretax
compensation costs relatcd to stock options granted. As of December 31, 2009, there was $20,735 of
total unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options. These costs are expecled to be
recognized over a period of approximately four years. At December 31, 2009, the weighted average
remaining contractual life of outstanding options was 1.87 years,
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The table below summarizes activity in the Company’s stock optien plan:

Year ended December 31
2009 2008
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Awards price Awards price
Outstanding at beginning of
year 1,061,692 § 0.14 838,355 3% 0.14
Granted 195,000 0.15 550,000 0.15
Excrcised (208,751) 0.14 (314,892) 0.15
Cancelled (31,875) 0.11 (11,771) 0.14
Cutstanding at end of year 1,016,066 § 0.14 1,061,692 § 0.14
Awards exercisable at
year-end 412,941 % 0.14 245432 % 0.13
(h)  Restricted Stock

The Company issued restricted stock to certain employees in 2007 and in prior years. Restricted
stock awards vest 25% after one ycar of service and then menthly in equal amounts over the next
three years of service, subject to continued employment and other plan terms and conditions. Holders
of restricted stock are not allowed to sell, transfer, pledge, or otherwise cncumber their restricted
sharcs, but such holders are allowed to vote and their shares accrue dividends when and if declared.
The Company may, but is not obligated to, repurchase vested restricted stock from employees al fair
markct value upon termination of the recipient’s employment,

Expense for restricted stock is recognized over the vesting period. The noncash compensation
expense associated with restricted stock awards was $41,825 in 2009 and $64,741 in 2008. The

following table summarizes restricted stock award activity:

2009 2008
Outstanding balance at beginning of year h 3,401,558 3,401,558
Granted — _
Exercised —_ —
Forfeited — —_
Repurchase — —
Balance-at December 31, 2009 3 3,401,558 3,401,558

25

(Continued)

Aftachment 39 181




U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statcments
December 31, 2009 and 2008

The following table summatizes the nonvested restricted stock activity:

2009 2008
Outstanding balance at beginning of year $ 1,384,334 2,331,595
Granted — —
Vested (743,212) {947,261)
Forfeited — —
Repurchase — —
Balance at December 31, 2009 b 641,122 1,384,334

At December 31, 2009, 2,760,436 of the outstanding restricted shares were vested. As of
December 31, 2009, there was approximately $51,379 of total unrecognized compensation costs
related to restricted stock awards. These costs are expected to be recognized over a remaining
vesting period of approximately two years.

(10) Related-Party Transactions

Participation in the Medicare ESRD program requires that treatment at a dialysis center be undcr the
general supervision of a director who is a physician, The Company has engaged physicians or groups of
physicians to serve as medical directors for each of its centers. The Company has contracts with
approximately 27 individual physicians and physician groups to provide medical director services. The
compensation of medical directors is negotiated individually and depends in general on local factors such
as competition, the professional qualifications of the physician, their experience and their tasks as well as
the workload at the clinic.

An ESRD patient generally seeks treatment at a dialysis center near his or her home and at which his or her
treating nephrologist has practice privileges. Additionally, many physicians prefer to have their patients
treated at dialysis centcrs where they or other members of their practice supervise the overall care provided
as medical directors to the centers. As a result, and as is typical in the dialysis industry, the primary referral
source for most of our centers is often the physician or physician group providing medical director services
to the center.

The Company’s medical director agreements generally include covenants not to compete. Also, when the
Company acquires a center from one or more physicians, or where one or more physicians owns interests
in centers as co-owners with us, these physicians have agreed to refrain from owning intcrests in
competing centers within a defined geographic area for various time periods. These agreements not to
compete restrict the physicians from owning or providing medical director services to other dialysis
centers. Most of these agreements not to compete continue for a period of time beyond expiration of the
corresponding medical directer agrecments.

The Company leases spacc for 20 of its centers in which physicians and/or employees hold ownership
interests, and subleases space to referring physicians and/or employees at one center. Future minimum
lease payments payable under these leases is approximately $14 million at December 31, 2009, exclusive
of maintenance and other costs, and is subject to escalation, For 2009 and 2008, total lease payments under
these eases were approximately $2.4 million and $2.4 million, respectively.
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Some medical directors and other referring physicians own Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stock, which
they purchased from the Company or received as partial compensation under a medical director agreement.
Some of the Company’s medical directors also own equity interests in entities that operate the Company’s
dialysis centers. :

The Company believes that lhe leases and equity purchases are no less favorable to us and no more
favorable to such physicians than would have been obtained in arm’s-length bargaining betwcen
independent parties.

The Company has one promissory note obligation owed a noncontrolling interest holder in one of its
subsidiaries. The note obligation was in an original amount of $750,000, of which $250,000 and $375,000
was outstanding at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, $125,000
of the amount outstanding was classified in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as a current
liability. The note bears interest at 7% and principal is due in six annual installments from May 1, 2006
through May 1, 2011. Thc obligations pursuant to these notes are subordinated in terms of repayment to the
Company’s obligations under the CIT Credit Agreement (sce note 6).

The Company also has another promissory note obligation owed to another noncontrolling interest holder.
The amount outstanding on this notc was 30 and $39,440 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, réspectively.
The note was paid off in 2009. The note bore interest at 5% per annum and was subordinated in terms of
repayment to the Company’s obligations under the CIT Credit Agreement (see note 6).

During the ycars ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company paid a related party affiliated through
common ownership $293,101 and $496,059, rcspectively, for the usage of an airplane.

A member of the Company’s board of directors provides consulting services primarily related to regulatory
and reimburscment matters. The total expenses incurred by the Company related 1o these services were
approximately $108,333 and $50,000 in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Company purchased CRC in September 2008 (see note 3}, Three executives of the Company owned a
majority intercst in CRC prior to the acquisition.

Legislation, Regulations, and Market Conditions

The Company’s dialysis operations are subjcct to extensive federal, state, and local government
regulations. These regulations require the Company to meet various standards relating to, among other
things, the operation of dialysis clinics, the provision of quality healthcare for paticnts, maintenance of
proper ownership and records, quality assurance programs, and occupational, health, safety and
environmental standards, and the provision of accurate reporting and billing to government and private
payment programs. These laws are extremely complex, and in many instances, providers do not have the
benefit of significant regulatory or judicial interpretation as to how to interpret and apply these laws and
regulations in the normal course of conducting their business. Healthcare providers that do not comply
with these laws and regulations may be subject to civil or criminal penalties, the loss of their licenses, or
restriction in their ability to participatc in various federal and state healthcare programs. The Company
endeavors to conduct its business in compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
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Our dialysis centers are certified {or are pending certification) by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services, as is required for the rcceipt of Medicare payments, and are licensed and permitted by state
authorities. The Medicare and Medicaid Fraud and Abuse Amendments of 1977, as amended, generally
referred to as the “anti-kickback statute,” imposes sanctions on those who, among other things, offer,
solicit, make or recetve payments in retumn for referral of a Medicare or Medicaid patient for treatment.
The federal False Claims Act imposes penalties on those who, among other things, knowingly present a
false or fraudulent claim for payment to the fcderal government. Another federal law, commonly referred
1o as the “Stark Law,” prohibits physicians, with certain exceptions, from referring Medicare patients to
entities with which the physician has a financial relationship, states have analogous statucs. The Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), among other things, includes provisions
relating to the privacy of medical information and prohibits induccments to patients to select a particutar
healthcare provider. Congress, states and regulatory agencies continue o consider modifications to federal
and state healthcare laws. The Company’s dialysis centers arc also subject to various state hazardous waste
and nonhazardous medical waste disposal laws.

Sanctions for violations of these statutes could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties,
repayments for patient services previously billed, expulsion from government healthcare programs, and
other civil or criminal penalties. Management believes that the Company is in material compliance with
applicable government laws and regulations.

Profit-Sharing Plan

The Company has a savings plan for employees who meet certain criteria that have been established
pursuant to the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, The plan allows employees to
contribute a defined portion of their compensation on a tax-deferred basis. Since January 1, 2005, the plan
allows for defined matching Company contributions for eligible employees. The plan was amended
effective January 1, 2006 to allow vesting credit for prior years of service for employees of certain
acquired businesses. For the years ending December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, the Company made
matching contributions to the plan of $391,053 and $365,496.

The Company may also make discretionary profit-sharing contributions to the plan if approved by the
board of directors, No such contributions were made in 2009 or 2008.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company may be subject to ¢laims and suits in the ordinary course of business, including contractual
disputes and professional and general liability claims.
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On February 15, 2007, the holders of the subordinated note referenced in note 6 brought suit against the
Company. In the lawsuit, the plaintiffs alleged that the Company had failed to pay amounts due to the
sellers of Rencare Ltd. (Rencarc) concemning accounts receivable that arose prior to the close of the
Rencare acquisition. The Company denied plaintiff's claims and, made counterclaims against plaintiffs and
filed a third-party cross-claim against one of the other sellers of Rencare. In the Company’s counterclaim
and cross-complaint, the Company alleged, among other things, that Sellers breached the representations
and warranties in the applicable Rencare acquisition documents by failing to disclose certain liabilities. A
trial was held in November 2008 and judgment was cntered in favor of plaintiff for $750,000 plus
$300,000 in attorney fees. An appeal is pending and the parties are awaiting a ruling from the appellant
court. At this time, the Company cannot determine what will be the ultimate resobution of our appeal. In
addition 1o the judgment, the Company incurred legal and other professional fees related to this litigation.
These expenses aggregated $286,647 and $1,219,203 in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Company has obligations to purchase the third-party interests in several of its joint ventures. These
obligations are in the form of put provisions in joint venture agreements, and are exercisable at the
third-party owners’ discretion with some timing limitations. If these put provisions are exercised, the
Company would be required to purchase the third-party owners’ interests at fair market value (sec note 4).

The Company rents office space, medical facilities, and medical cquipment under leasc agreements that are
classified as operating leases for financial reporting purposes. At December 31, 2009, the future minimum
rental payments under noncancelable operating leases with terms of one year or more consist of the
following:

2010 $ 5,827,058
2011 5,260,414
2012 5,109,728
2013 4,696,231
2014 3,658,621
Thereaficr 9,440,090

Rent expense was $6,200,202 and $5,011,653 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

Subsequent Event

On April 14, 2010, a subsidiary of the company, entcred into a definitive agreement to acquire Dialysis
Corporation of America, Inc. (DCA). Under the terms of the agreement, USRC, through a subsidiary, will
commence a tender offer for all the outstanding common shares of DCA for $11.25 per sharc in cash,
followed by a merger to acquire all remaining outstanding DCA shares at the same cash price paid in the
tender offer. The transaction is valued at approximately $112 million. DCA provides outpatient dialysis,
in-hospital djalysis, acutc and at home dialysis services in Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Ohio,
Pennsylvania, South Carolina and Virginia. The Company has received a commitment letter providing
fully committed debt financing in connection with the transaction from Royal Bank of Canada and equity
financing from certain of its existing shareholders.
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Woells Fergo Equipment Finance, inc.
Wl 733 Marqustte Avenua, Suils 700
FARGY MAC N930B-070

Minneapoiis, MN 55402

Master Lease

Master Lease Mumber 288280 gated as of Nevember 2. 2010
Namez ond Address of Lessas:
UE Renal Care Home Theraples LILC
1313 La Concha Lane
Houston, TX T7054

~Mastor Leaso Provisions
1. LEASE. Lessor hereby bgroos fo foase to Lessos, ant LoSSeS hersby agrees 1o laase friom Lessor, he personal property described in 2 Supplement or
Supplements to this Mastar Lease from dme o tme signed by Lessor and Lesses upon the tarms and conditions sot forth I this Master Lease and in the refated
Supplement (such property together with ail replacements, substifutions, parts, improvements, repsirs, and accessovies, and efl edditions incorporeted herein or
affixed tharefo bemng rafermed (o hereln BS the “Equipment”). Each Supploment shal constitute B Sseparmie lease Incorporating the terms of this Master Leass.
Referances in this Master Lease fo this Loase”, *hereunder” and “herein® shell be construad fo mean 3 Suppiement which inoorperates this Master Lease.
Le3see’s execution of & Supplerment shafl obligate Lessoe to laass the Equipment descrided therein from Lessor, No Supplement shall be binding on Lessor
unless and until sxacuted by Lessor. Anything to tha contrary notwithstanding, Lessor shell have no obligation to accept, exeaute or enter into any Supplerment
of fo acquire or 'ease to Lessee oy equipment. Tite to a¥ Equipment shall af alf imes remain in Lossor.
2. TERM. The term of this Lease shall begin on the rent commencament date shown i the applicabie Supplement and shall continue for the number of
consecutive months from the rent commancement data shown in such Suppiament [the “inftial term”) unlass eardler lerminated by Lessor as provided heroln.
The rent commencament date Is the 15th day of the manth in which all of the Rems of Equipment descrided in tha related Supplement have been deliversd and
accepted by Lessee If such dalivery and acosplance is completed on or before the 15th of such month, and the fent commencement date i5 the lasl day of such
month ¥ such delivery and acoeptance is completed during the balance of such month. in the event Lessoe executes the rated Supplement priof to galivery
and aceeplance of aft kems of Equipment described thersin, Lesses agress tal the rent cammencement data may be iaft biank when Lesseo executes Ihe
related Supplement and hersby suthorizes Lessor to insert the mat commencement date basod upon he dale appesring on the dalivery snd sccepiance
certificata signed by Lesses. .
At tha expiretion of the inltial term, unless Lessee shall heve renewed the Lease or puthased the Equipment from Lessor, as provided for in aach Sugplement, if
Lesses does not raturn to Lassor aif of the Equipmant thet fs the sudject of Suppiement in accordance with paragraph 14 befow, Lesses shafl pay lo Lessoren
amount equel fo ihe monthly basic rental payment the! was in effect during the Jast rmonth of the Intial term for each month for part of any month) as ‘Holdover
Rant”. and shafl comply with ell ather provisions of this Lease, from the first day affer the expiration of the inlaf term unth all such Equipment has been retumed
fo Lessor In gccordance with paragraph 14, provitdad howove!, that nothing contained herein end no payment of Holdover Rart shell relevs Lessee of ity
cbiigation fo ratum e Equipment upon the expiration o eartiar fermmination of the Lease. in addition, Lessas shell pey any appficable selas, use, andior proparty
taxes arfsing from this Lease.
3. RENT. Lesseo shall pay &5 basic rert for the inflial term of this Lease the amourt shown in he rotsted Supplernent o3 Tole! Basic Rent. The Tofa! Basic
Rent shad be payabts in instaliments each in the emount of the basic rental payment sof forth in the related Supplement plus seles and use fax mereon. Lesses
shaid pay sdvance instaliments and sny securlty deposk, each as shown i iha related Supplement, on the date ! is executed by Lessee. Subsequent
instafimants shall ba payable on the first day of each rental payment period shown in the retsted Supplomeant beginring aftar the first rontal payment period;
provided, howsver, that Lessor end Lesses may agres fo eny other peyment schedule, including imeguter payments or balioon payments, in which event thay
shail be set forth In the Supplement. If the sctual cost of the Equipment is more or less then the Total Cost as shown in the Supplement, the emount of sach
instaiiment of rent will ba adirsted up or down 1o provide the 5ame yied o Lessor 88 would have beon ableined if the actual cost had been the ssms as the Tols!
Cost. Adustments of 10% or less may be mad by written notice fiom Lessor fo Lessee, Adustmanls of more than 10% shall be made by exacution of an
amendment o the Supplement refiecting the change in Tale! Cost end basic rental payment,
in addition to bask: rent, which s payabla beginning on the rent commencement dafo, Lesses agreas v pay intenim rent for the perod beginning on the date the
Equipment is delivered and sccephed by Lesses lo the rent commencement dato ot & daiy rata equal o the percentage of Lessar's cost of the Equipment set
forth in such Supplement. Interim ront shafl be peyable on the fent commencement date, Losses ogrops thot if all of the items of Equiprment covered by such
Supplemert have nol bean defivered and acceptsd thersunder befars the date specified as the Cutolf Date in such Supplament, Lessor shall bave no obligation
1o lease the Equipiem lo Lessse end Lessee shajl purchase from Lessor the fems of Equipment then subjett 1o this Leass witfi five gays efter Lessor's :
request to do 50 for a price equal ty Lessor's cost of such Rems plus af eccrued but unpeld infesim rant thoreon, Lessoe shall elsa pay any 8pplicebio sefes and
use Iax pn such sak8.
4. SECURITY DEPOSIT. Lessar may apgly any security depos! toward any abligation of Lessee under any Supplemrent snd shall refumn any unapplied
balence fo Lessee without imterest upan full satisfaction of alf of Lessae's obligations.
5. NO WARRANTIES. Lessas agress that i hes solectod saoh Hem of Equipment based upon its own judgment and disclaims any refiance upon any
slelemnants of represeniations made by Lessor, LESSEE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT: LESSOR IS NOT THE MANUFACYURER OF THE EQUIPMENT NOR
THE MANUFACTURER'S AGENT NOR A DEALER THEREIN, THE EQUIPMENT 1S OF A SIZE, DESIGN, CAPACITY, DESCRIPTION AND MANUFACTURE
SELECTED BY THE LESSEE; LESSEE 5 SATISFIED THAT THE EQUIPMENT IS SUITABLE AND FIT FOR ITS PURPOSES; AND LESSOR HAS NOT
MADE AND DOES NQT MAKE ANY WARRANTY WITH RESPECT TO THE EQUIPMENT, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND LESSOR SPECIFICALLY
DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR OF FITRESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR AS TO THE QUALITY. CONDITION OR
CAPACITY OF THE EQUIPMENT OR THE MATERIALS IN THE EQUIPMENT OR WORKMANSHIP OF THE EQUIPMENT, LESSOR'S TITLE TO THE
EQUIPMENT, OR ANY OTHER REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY WHATSOEVER. LESSOR SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO LESSEE FOR ANY LOSS,
DAMAGE, OR EXPENSE OF ANY KIND OR NATURE CAUSED, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, 8Y ANY EQUIPMENT OR THE USE OR MAINTENANCE
THEREQF OR THE FAILURE OR OPERATION THEREOF, OR THE REPAIR, SERVICE OR ADJUSTMENT THEREOF, OR BY ANY DELAY QR FAILURE
TO PROVIDE ANY SUCH MAINTENANCE, RERPAIRS, SERVICE OR ADJUSTMENT, OR BY ANY INTERRUPTION OF SERVICE ORLOSS OF USE"
THEREOF QR FOR ANY LOSS OF BUSINESS HOWSOEVER CAUSED, LESSOR SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES OF ANY KIND, INCLUDING
ANY LIABILITY FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, ARISING QUT OF THE USE OF QR THE INABILITY TO USE THE EQUIPMENT. o defedt or unfitness

ifnent 8 @ part of the manufacturer or the shipper of the Equipment fo daliver the Equipment or any part theveof to Lasses shall .
refieve Lesgee of fije abligationlto pay rent or any other obligation hereundar, Lessor shof! have no obfigation in respect of the Equipment and shell have no
THIS AGREEMENT INCLUDES THE TERMS ON THE ATTAGHED PAGE(S),

Lessor, s Fafge Equipmord\Hnante, inc. 11.S. Renal Care Home Therapiss, LLC,
Lessee

By T By:

ames D. Shatton, Manager

Pago 1ot 5 . MASTLSLG: muncm:1mma;lunsnmoom1mwnn‘
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obligation to install, erad, test, adjust or service the Equipment. Lessee shall fagk only 1o persons olher than Lessor such as the manufacturer, vendor or camiar
thereof shoutd any item of Equipment for any reason and In any way be defeclive. To the axtent permitted by the manufachurer andar vendor snd provided
Lesses 15 not in default under the Lease, Lessor shall meke available fo Lessee all manufacturer and/br vendpr warrenties with respedt to the Equipment,

6. LESSEE COVENANTS, REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. (a) Affitmative Covenants. Losses shall: (i) pay all shipping and delivery charges ang
ofher expenses incurred in connection with the Equipmant and pay alf fawful Claims, whether for labor, malerials, suppkes, rent or Services, which might or coutd
I unpaict become & tisn on the Equipment; (i) comply with all isws and regulations and rules, afl manutacturer’s inshuctions and wamanty requirements, and with
the conditions and requitsments of il polickes of insurance refeting to the Equinmant and s uss; (i) mart end identify the Equipment with all information and in
sUCh manner as Lessor or its essigns may request from fime to me and roplace promplly any such mankings or identification whish ere remaved, dofaced or
desiroyed; (iv) &t any and af) timas during busingss hours, grant Lessar froa aceess (o enter upon the premises wherein the Equipment shall be focatad or usad
and permit Lessor fo inspect the Equipmert and eff epplicable meintenence recoms; provided, however, that L essor shell have no obiigation to inspect any
Equipment of record's; {v) malntain a Systom of accounts estabished and sdministered in aocordznos with generslly accapied &ccounting principles and
Practices consistently appiisd, and (wl) within thirty (30) days efter ihe eng of sach fiscal quarter, deliver to Lessor a balance sheet as t the end of such quartar
8nd statement of operelions for such quarter, seffing forth in_comperelive fum the comesponding figures for the compareble peviod in tha proceding fiscal yoar,
within ons hundred and tweity (120} days arer the end of asch fiscal year, deliver to Lessor a bafance sheet 65 af he end of such yesr and stsfements of
Dperations, income and refeined semings for such year, with accompanying footnotes, sach selting forth in comparative form the corTesponaing figures for ihe
preceding year, in sach case propared In acoordance with genarally accepted aocounling principles and practices consistantly epplisd and certified by Lessog's
chigf financial officer as faiy presenting the financiel position and results of operelions of Lesses, and, in the case of year end fmancial staterments, certified by
&n Indapentfent accounting firm acceptable to Lessor, ang with masonshia prompinass, fumish Lessor with such other lnformation, finencial or otherwisa,
revafing to Lessee or the Equipment a5 Lessor shall roasonably request..

(b) Negative Covenants. Lessee shall not (i} voluntarily or involuntsrly create, incw, assuma or Suffor 1o exist any marlgage, iien, securty interest, pledyge
or oiter encumbrance or alfechment of any kind whatsoever upon, effecting or with respect to the Equipment or tfs Lease ar any of Lesses's inferast
thersunder. (i) permit the neme of any parson, assodiation or corporetion alher than the Lessor or Lesses to be placed on the Equipment; (1) part with
passassion o coniro! of or suffer or affow to pass out of ifs possession or control any fem of tha Equinment or change the location of the Equipment or any part
thergof from tho oddrass shown in e appicable Suppisment; (iv) ASSIGN OR IN ANY WAY TRANSFER OR DISPOSE OF ALL OR ANY PART OF iTs

" RIGHTS OR OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS LEASE OR ENTER INTO ANY SUBLEASE OF ALl OR ANY PART OF THE EQUIPMENT: (v} changs (8) ils name
ar etidrpss from tat sa! forth above, (D) the stete under whose laws it is orgenized as of the dete hereof. or {c) the type of organization under which #f exists a5 of
the cae hereof unlgss it shatl have ghven Lessor or its 858igns no less than thiny (30} days’ arior wiitten notice of any such proposad chengy; (vi) parmi the sate
or transter of any sheres of its capital stock or of any ownership interest in the Lessee to any person, persons, entlly or entitfas (whether in ong transacgtion orin
mulliple transactions) which resufts in 8 lransfor of & majortly infenest in the ownership andior the control of the Lassoe from the PErSON, porsons, entity or antites
who holt ownership andior control of he Lessee as of the date of this Master Leass; or (vil) consofdate with or marge info or with any other ently, or purchase

of otherwise scquine all or substantially all 0f the assets or stock or other ownership interest of eny person or enlity o 508, transter, leaso or otherwise dispose of
8l or substantially afl of Lessee’s assels o any person or amfy, .

{c) Represenipiions and Warraniies. Lessee mpresents and warrams to Lassor, that effective on the date on which Lossee axecules this Mester Leass
s each Supplement (i) f Lesses is 8 parnership, corporation, kmited babilly company or oiher tegal entlty, the sxecution and dalivery of this Masier Lease
&nd each Supplemnent and ihe parformance of Lasses's obiations hereunder and thersunder have besn duly authonized by aff necessary action on ihe port of
the Lessee and ara not in contraveniion of, and will nol nesult in @ broach of, any of the erms of Lessee’s charior, by-iaws, articies of incorporation or other
organic docurnents or any ioan egreements or indentures of Lessee, or any othes contract, agreement or instrumornt to which Lesses Is a party or by which it i3
bound; (i} the parson signing the Master Leass and each Supplament an behelf of Lessse is duly aulhorized; (i} Lesses’s exad fegal neme as it 8ppaars on is
charter or other organic documents, indluding as to punctuation and capitatization, and its principal plece of business o chiof exscutive ofce are a5 sef forth n
the heading of this Master Lease;-(iv) Lessee Is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing undar ihe laws of the slate of is Incorporation or formation
end is duly quatified and authorized to transact busingss in, and is In good standing under the iaws of, aach other stale In which the Equipment is or wi ba
focetedi(v) there nas been no changs in the name of the Lesses, or the name undar whith Lessas conducts business within the ane year preceding he date
hereof except as previously roported in wiiting to Lassor, (vi) Lessee has not moved s principel plsce of business or chief precutive office, or has nof changed
tha jurisalction of its organization with the one year preceding the date harpof excep! 85 praviously reportad o Lessor in witing, (vii) this Master Lease and each
Supptement constiute o fegal, valid and binding abligation of Lesses, enforcesbls egainst Lesses in accordance with it terms; (vili) all information provided by

Lessoe {o Lessor in connection with this Lease & tnte end comed; (ix) the Equipment wif be used primerily for business purposas as opposed to parsonal, family

oF household purposes; end (x) Mere are no suits pending or threatenad against Lessee or any guarentor which, # docided advarsely, might materialy edversely
affect Lessee's or such guarertar’s financial condition, the value, wlitily or remeining useful ife of the Equipment, the rights intended to be afforted to Lessor
heveundor or undsr any guerantce or the abilly of Lassse or any quaranfor to perform its obligations under the Lepse or any document defivered in connedtion
wiih the Leass!

7. TAXES. Lessee shafl promplly pay witen dus, and indemnty and hold Lassar harmigss, an an after-ox basis, from, elf sales, uso, propery, excise and
othar taxes end el (icense amd registration feas now or hereafter imposed by any governmental body or agency upon the Equipment or its use, purchass,
ownership, delivery, leasing, possession, slorage, operation, maimtenance, Apair, retum or other disposition of the Equipment, or for bfing or rogisterng the
Equipmeant, or upon the income or ofher proceeds receded with respodt to the Equipment or this Lease o tho rontals heraunder, provided, however, that Lessoe
shal not be required to pay taxes en or mreasured by the nat Incoms of Lessor. Lassee shall prepare and file eff tax retums refaling to taxes for which Lessee is
responsibia hereundsr which [essee is permitted o fila undsr the tews of the applicabie taxing jurtsdiction. Lipon the expiration or earfiar termination of the

Lassa, Lessea shall pey bo Lessor any suth laxes accrued or assessed but nat pst due ang payable.

8. INDEMNITY. Lessee hereby agrees to mcemnify and hold Lessor hamriess {on an aflerdax basis) from and against eny and il claims, fosses, labiitios
fingluding negfigonce, tort and strict liabilty}, damagas, judgments, ubligations, aclions, suits, and all legal procgedings, and eny and &if casts end expensas in
connaction thereith (including attomays’ f2as} erising ou, or in any manner conmedled with, or resulting diretdly or indirectly from, the Equipmen!, inchiding,
without timitation, the manufacture, purchase, leass, financing, selection, ownership, dalivery, rejaction, non-delvery, transpartelion, possession, LS, storage,
opevation, condifon, mainfenance, repalr, return or other disposition of the Equipment or with this Leass, Inciuding without timitetion, ciaims for Injury te or death
of persons and for damege to property, whether arising undsr the doctrine of strict liability, by operalion of law or othanwise, and fo give Lessor prompt notioe of

BRYy such oigim or liability.

9. ASSIGNMENT. Lossor may seff or assign any or sif of its intarest in this Loase or 5ol or grant a sesurtty inferest in alf arany part of the Equipment, without

nolice o or the consent of Lessee. Lassee agrees nof to asser! agains! any assignee of Lassor eny setoff, revoupment, caim, counlertisim or dafonse Lessee

Mmay have sgainst Lessor or any person oiher than such assignes. Lesseg agrecs that if X recotves writen nodice of en assignmenl from Lessor, it will pey eff

Rent and other paymeonds payable under each Supplsment to such assignes or as instructed by Lessor or the aswgnee Identfied in the notice received from

Lessor, An assignee of Lessor shell have all rights of Lessor undoer the applicable Leasg, ko tha extent assigned, saparetely exercisablg by such assignee

fndependently of Lassor or any assignee with respect to other leases. Upon any such assignment and oxcopt 8s may otherwise be provided thersin af
references in this Masler Lease to Lessor.shel inclede such gssignee.

10. EQUIPMENT PERSCNALTY. The Equipment shell remain persenal property mgardiess of i attachment to really, and Lessee agmeas fo take Such action
8t #s expanse as mey be recescary to prevent any third perly from acquiting any interast in the Equipment as a resull of its attachment to realty. i requested by

Lessor with respect 10 any item of the Equipment, Lossoe wi ablain and oeliver to Lassor waivers of mterest or fens in recondable form, satisfactory to Lessor,

from all persons cleiming any interest i the real propery on of in which such ficm of the Equipment is Installed or located.

11. USE AND MAINTENANCE. Lessee will uss the Equipment with due cars and only for the purpose for which & is infended. Lessee wil, by quatified

personnel, use, maintain, repair, modify (to the extent permitted or required horein) in accomiance with prudent prastices (but in no evert jess than the same
axtant to which Lesseg mamtams other similar equipment owned of feased by it) and for the Ppurposa for which such Equipment was designed, in compliance with

Insurence policies, manufaciurer's specified maintenance progrems, warranlies end applicable laws, and shell keep the Equipment in gs good repair, condiion
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and working order as when onginelly received by Lesses, ordinary wear end tear extepted and will fumish and replace aff perts of the Equipment as may fom
time to time becoms wom oul, lost, stolen, destroyed or dameged or unfit for usa., all af its expense.. Lessee shal, at is axpense, maks ell modificalions and
improvoments to the Equipment roquired by taw. Lessee may, at s sole cost and expenss, make any modiications fo the Equipment, proviged that such
modifications (a) 8 readily removeble without causing damage to the Equipment, (b do nol reduce the value, Vtidy, markelabilty or remaining ussful ife of the
Equipment, and {c) s of & kind thal customariy &re Made by lassess or purchesers of equipment similar o the Equipment ANl parts, modifications and
improvements fo tho Equipment shall, when instafled or made, immediately become the property of Lessor and part of the Equipment for all purposes; provided,
that any modification not required by law shell if requested by Lessor be removed by Lesses and any damags to the Equipment resuling from such removel
shall be repeired prior 1o the retum of ihe Equipment to the Lessor. The Equisment shak not be used cutside of the United States without Lessor's prior wiitisn
consent.

12 LOSS OR DAMAGE. No loss or damnage to the Equipment or any parl therecf shal effec! eny obigation of Lasses undar this Legss, which shal continug in
hull force and affect. Losses shall advise Lessor in writing within five (3) days of any idem of Equipmeont becoming lost, stolen or damaged snd of the
circumstances and extent of such damage. In the ovent any ftom of Equiprmant shall become los, stofen, destroyed, damaged! beyoend repair or remdered
permanentiy unfit for use for anty reason, of in the evenl of condemnation or saizure of any ilom of Equipmont, Lesses shall pomplly pay Lassor, within ten (10)
-days ofter domand by Lessor, Bn smount equel fo the greater of the falr market value of such Hems or the Lessor's Loss as definod in peragreph 18 betow.

Upan payment of such amount to Losswr, such dem shall bacome the properly of Lessee, Lessor will transfer to Lassae, without recourse or warranly, el of
Lessor's night, tile end intarest tharain, the ront with respact fo such item shell leminate, and the basic rentel payments on tho remaining fems shall bo mduced
accordingty, Lesses shall pay eny salas and use taxes dus on such fransfer, Any insuranree or condemnebion proceed's receivad shall be paild lo Lessar and
credited to Lessoe’s obifgation under this paregraph and [ assor shail ba entitfed fo any surpes. Whenevor the Equipmant Is damaged end such darmege can be
repeired, Lestes ghall, af its exponse, pramptly effoct such repairs o5 Lessor shall deemn necessary for compliance with parsgraph 11 above. Proceeds of
insurance shall bo paid to Lessor with rospect to such reparoble damsgs o the Equipment and shall, st the election of Lessor, be appiied either to the repeir of
the Equipmant by baymant by Lessor directly to the pary completing the repstrs, of to the reimbursement of Lesses for ihe cost of such nepairs; provided,
however, that Lessor shelf have no obiigation to make such payment or eny part therof untll rece(pt of such pvidence as Lessor shall geem safisfactory that
such repairs heve boan completed and further provided that Lessor may spply such proceeds fo the payment of any ren! or other sum due or to become due
herounter if sl tho time such proceed's ang received by Lessor there shat! heve occumed eny Event of Dafsuft or any avent which with lnpss of ime or notics, or
both, would becorme an Event of Defaull.

13, INSURANCE. Lesses shall oblain and maintain on ar with respedt to the Equipment at ity own exponsa {a) comprehonsive general labiity insurance
insuring against iability for boaily infury, and roperty demage with & minimurm limit of §1 milion combined siagle tmit per ocourrence and (3} physical damage
insuranca insuning egainst lpss or demege fo the Equipment in an amount not less than the full rep/lacement value of the Equipment. Lassee shaf! fumish Lessor
with 8 cartificate of insurence avidancing the issuance of & policy or podicies fo Lesses in at least the minimum amounts required harein naming Lassor as an
additional insured thereunder for the liebility coverage and as loss payee for the property demage covarage. Each such policy shall be in such form and with
such insurers as may be satisfaciory to Lossor, and shalf contaln a glause specifying thet no ection or misrepresentotion by Lessap shall invalidate such paficy
and & clause requiring the insurer to give to Lassor at leost thirfy (30) days’ prioe wrilten notico of (T} tha cancediation of sonerrawal of such palicy or (7} any
amendmont fo the terms of such policy if such amendment would cause tha policy no fonger to confortn to he palicy requirements stated in this paregraph; and
ten (10) 0ays priar nolice of cancelistion for non-payment of premium. Lessee shall deliver, annually and &t any timeé that thare is a change in insurence carier,
to Lessor evidence salisfactory fo Lessor of the requined insurance coverape. Lossas haroby 85signs fo Lessor the procoods of &if such insurence and direcs
any mswer fo make payments diracty to Lessor, Lassor shal) ba under no duly fo escartain the existence of or to examine any such poiicy or fo advise Lesses
in the evant any such policy shall not comply with the requirements hereof.

14, RETURN OF THE EQUIPMENT. Upon the expiration or earlier terminelion of this Lease by Lessor, Lassee will inmediately dediver the Equipment to and in
the miannar desghated by the Lassor in the same condition &3 when dafivered 10 Lessce fully capeble of parforming atf functions for which it was orfginaity
gesigned (or as upgraded during the Laase Temm), ordinary wear end tegr axcapled, and in compfience with any additional refum conditions set forth in the
spplcabia Supplement, at such location within the continanlal Unfted Stales es Lessor shalf designate. Lexsee shell pay elf frensportalion and other expenses
relsting to such defivery. Lassee shall eranga for the tisassembly and packing of the Equipment, fogether with all parls end aieces and then reassembly
(inchuding, if nocessary, repalr and overhaul) by an authorized representative of the manufacturer. Without limiting the generaity of the foregaing, returted
Equipment shall be in such condftion fe immediataly qualy for (7} the manutacturer's (or other cuthorized senvice representstive’s) then aveilable service contradd
or warranty, and (if} aif applizable licensas or permits necessary for its operation for #s infended purposes and to comply with aff specifications and mquirements
of applicabie federsl, stale end local laws. The Egquipment shall ba returned with eff related malntenance logs, operating manuals and ather relaled materals and
all such maltarials wil! be undamaged and contain all pages. Upon Lessor's mquest, Lossee shall, st Lessea's sple expense, provide storage acceplabia o
Lessor for a parod of up to 90 days from the dale of retum and will assist Lessor in altempting to remarked the Equipment, inctuding display end demonsiration of
the Equipment to prospeciive purchasers or lessees, and allowing L assor o condudt any publfic or private safa or auction on Lessea’s promises..

15: ADDITIONAL ACTION; EXPENSES. Lossoe will prompity axocute snd daliver fo Lessor such Jurther documents and faka such further action os £essor
may regquest in order to camy out more sffectively the Infent and purpose of this Lesss, including the execution and delivery of 6ppropriate financing staiemerns fo
proted fully Lessor's inferest hereunder In acoordence with the Uniform Commertial Code or other epplicabie law. Lessor and any essignes of Lessoris
authorzed to file one or more Uniforn Commerdial Code finencing statements withourt the sighature of Lessee or signed by Lessar or any assignes of Lessof o5
aftormey-in-fact for Lessee. Lessee hereby grents lo Lessar @ power of aftorney In Lessee’s hame, fo apply for a certificals of title for any fem of Equipment that
18 required to be titled under the laws of any jurisdiction where the Equipment fs or may be used snbr to trensfer ite ihereto upon the exaise by Lessor of s
remadies upon an Event of Defaufl by Lassee undar this Lease. Lessge acknowledyes that Lessor moy incur out-0f-pocke! casts and axpenses in conmection
with Ihe transactions contormplsted by this Leass, end accordingly agreas fo pay (of reimburss Lassarfor} tha ressonable costs and expenses refated & (a) fiing
any financing, confinuation or termination steternents, (b) any litle and lien ssarches with respect to this Lease and the Equipment, () documendary stemp taxes
relating to the Lease, and (d) procuring cartified charter documents and good standing certificates of Lassaa and any guarantor of Lesses's obligations
hereundor. Lessee will do whetever may be necessary fo hove & stetement of the inleres! of Lossor 8nd any ossignee of Lossor in the Equipment nofed on any
cartificalo of tile relating fo the Equipment and witt deliver said cerificate fo Lessor. If Lessee fails to perform or comply with eny of #ts agreemerts, Lessor may
perform or comply with such egreemants in its own neme or in Lesses’s name a5 altomey-i-fact and the amounl of eny paymenis snd exponses of Lessor
incumed in connoction with such perfommence or comiience, together with inferest theneon at the rafe provided below, shall be deemed romt payanie by Lessoe
upon domand.

1? LATE CHARGES. If any payment, whether for rent ar otherwiss, is nat peld when dus, Lessor may imposs e late charge of 5% of the amound past due (or
tha maximum amount permitted by applicebie ew if lasy). Payments thersafler recelved shall be appl¥ed first o dedinguent instafments and then fo curment
instaliments.

17. DEFAULT. Each of the follawing events shall constitute en "Event of Defeult* hereunder. () Lessae shali f2il to pay when due eny instaliment of inferim
rent, basic rent or any other amount due hareunder, (b) any cerdificate, statament, representabion, wamanty or financial or crodit information heretofore or
hereafter matie or furnished by or on beheif of Lessae or any gusranior of any of Lessee’s obfigetions hereunder proves fo have been faise or misteading i eny
materis! respect of omilted any malarial fad, contingem or unliquitiated fabifity or cleim egainst Lesses or gny such guerantor, (¢} Lesses shail fall to observe or
perform any other egreement to be observed or performad by Lesses herunder and the continuance thareo! for 10 calendar days fillowing written notice
thareo! by Lassor fo Lesses; (d) Lesses or any guarantor of this Lease or eny periner of Lessee # Lessee is a partnorship shall caase daing businass as a going
concem, maka an assignmen for the benef of credifors, become insolvent, or engage in any dissofution or fiquidation pmceedings; (e) Lessee or any quarantor
of this Lease or any partner of Lossee if Lesson is a partnership shall voluntarily file, or hava fled against it involuntenly, a palition for iquidation, reorganizanon,
adjustment of debt, or simitar ralief under the foderal Bankruptey Cods or any other present or futune federal o stata bankauplcy or insolvency law, or a tusies,
receiver, o fiquidator shall be appointed of & or of all or a substantiot part of ds assets; (1} Lassee or any guarentor of any of Lessee's obligations herounder shall
ba in breach of or in defeult in the payment or performance of eny material obligation ,under any credit egreement, conditional Setes contract, lease or other
contratt, howsoaver asing; (g} any individual Lessee, guarantor of ifis Leass, or partner of Lessee if Lessen is @ partnevship shall dis; (h) en event of default
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shall ococur under any other obligation Lesses or eny guarsnior of Lassee’s abligalions heroundsr owes fo Lessor, (i) an event of default shall occur under any
ingehtedness Lasses may now or herealler owe to any affiiate of Lessor; or (j} Lesses, or any guaranior of this Lease shall suffar an adverss materia! change in
#s financlal condition from the dato hereof, and as a result thoreof Lessor deons oW or eny of the Equipment to be insecum.

18, REMEDIES, Lessorand Lessge agres thet Lassar's damages suffered by reason of en Evertt of Defauft are uncertein and ot capeble of axect
measurement al the ime this Lease is oxecuted because the value of the Equipmant at the expiralion of this Lease Is urcerteln, and therefore thoy egroa thet for
purposes of this peragraph 18 “Lessor's Losa” as of any dale shalf be the sum of the following: (1) the amount of all rent and other amounts payable by Lessoe
hereunder due but unpaid a5 of such data phes (2] the amount of alf unpald rent for the balance of the term of this Lense nat yel due as of such date (ncuding
any renewal or purchase options which Lesses has conlracted to pay) discounted from the raspective dates instafiment payments would be due Bt the Discount
Reale as dafined below plus (3} 10% of the cost of the Equipment thet is subjec! to this Lesss as of such dale (provided however, thal with regard to any
Supplomeont that expressly sets forth a "Final Purchase Payment” othor than 10% of the cost of the Equipmsnt, then the amount of such Final Purchase Payment
shall be subshituted in place of the 10% in this ciause *(3)" for the purpese of calculating Lossar's Loss with regerd to such Supplement } “Discount Rate” moans
{i) the rate set forth for the Treasury Constant Maturities having tho closest term to (but not longer then) the ongina! tarm of the applicable Supplement, as set
forth in the Federal Reserve Board H.15 Roleass (Selected inferest Refes) as of the Rent Commencement Date applcabie to suvch Supplement, (i} the rate set
forth for the Treasury Constert Msturities having the closast term to (but not longer than)} the remaining term of the epolicable Supplement, as sai forth in tha
Feders! Reserve Bosrd H.15 Rolgase (Selected Intorest Rates) as of the date of calculation of Lessor's Loss applicable to such Supplement, or (i} 3%,
whichover is fowes!. !f & rete rafemed [0 in the preceding ciauses “(i)" or *[i]" is not published in such publication referencad hersinabove, such reto shall be
taken fram g reputeble sourcy selected by Lassor,

Upon the ogcurrence of an Evert of Delault and at any lime thersafter, Lessor may exsicise any gne or more of tha remedios Isted below as Lassor In fs
sole discretion may lawfully elact, providad, however, thet upon the occiwmence of an Event of Default specifiod in paregraph 17(e), 6n emount equel o Lessors
Loss as of the date of such ocourronce sheil eutomalically bocomo and be immediately due and payable without notice or demand of eny kind. , The exercisa of
any ona remedy thall not ba deemad an efection of suth remedy or praciude the exsrcise of any other remedy, and such remedies may be exercised
concumantly or caparately burt anly to the exient necassary o permit Lessor to recover smounls for which Leases is Hable hersuntier.

8) Lessor may, by writhen notice to Lessse, torminale this Lease as lo any or a¥ of the Equipment subject horolo and declare an amount equal to Lassar's
Loss as of the dale of such notice to be immediately due end payable, 85 liguidated damages and not 23 a penalty, and the sama shall thareypon be and
become immethately due end payable without furthar notice or demand, and all ights of Lessae to use the Equipment shell termingto but Lesses shall be and
remaln Geble as provited in this paragreph 18. Lessee shall at its expenss promplly delivar the Equipment fo Lessor at a location or kcations within the
continentel Uniad States designalad by Lessor. Lessormay aise enter upan the promises whem the Equipment is jocated end take itmediate possession of
and ramove the same with or without instftuting legal proceedings.

B) Lessor mey proceed by eppropriale court action to enforce performance by Lessea of the opplicable covenants of this Lasse or fo recovor, for breach of this
Laass, Lessor's Loss as of the dete Lessor's Loss s decfered due and peyeble hersunder, provided, howsver, that upon recovery of Lessor's Loss fom Lessss
In eny such action without having to repossess and dispose of the Equinman, Lessor shall tmnsfer tho Equipmerd to Lessse at {18 then focation upon payment of
any sddifanal amount duo under dauses (e}, () end (g) below.

¢} Inthe event Lassor repossessas the Equipment, Lessor shall efther relain e Equipment In full satisfaction of Lesses’s obligelion hersunder or sef of lease
aach ftem of Equipment in suth menner end upon such termrs 85 Lessor may in its sole discretion dstenmine. The proceeds of oy such salo or jease shall ba
appiied to reimixirse Lessor for Lessor's Loss and any addifianel amount due under clauses (d) end fe) below. Lassor shail bo entiied fo any surpius and
Lessoo shall rermain liabl for any deficlency. For purposes of this subparagraph, the proceeds of any loase of &l or any part of the Equipment by Lessor shall be
the smouwnt reasanably assigned by Lessor as the cost of such Equipment in datermining the rent under such lease.

d}  Lessor mey setoff and apply against any Rant or other sums due hereundar eny sums of money held by Lessor or any afiliee of Lessor for Lesses;

&}  Lessor mey recover interest on the unpeld balance of Lessor's Loss plus any smounts recoverable under clauses (f) end (g) of this paragraph 18 from the
date It becomes payable untd fully paid at the rate of the lesser of 12% per annum or the highest rate permitted by fow. :

f) o eddition to any other recovery permitted hereunder or undar applicabls law, Lessor may retgver from Lesses an amount that will fslly compenssle Lessor
Ior any iosg of or damage o Lessor's residual interast in the Bquipment.

g} Lossor may exercise any other dght or remedy aveilable fo it by law or by Egreement, end may In any evont revover lagal fees and other costs snd
expenses incurred by ryason of an Event of Defaut! or the exertise of any remedy hereumder, inciuding exponsss of repassession, repair, storage,

transportation, and disposilion of the Equipment. Any paymunt received by Lessor mey ba applied to unpald obligations as Lessor in its soke discretion
defermines. . B

# any Suppterent is deemed et any time to be & lease Infended as security, Lessea grants Lossor e security inferest in the Equipment 1o secure Its
obiigations under such Supplement, al other Supplaments and all other ingebfedness at Bny ime owing by Lesses fo Lessor. Lessos egrees that upon the
oocurrence of an Event of Default, in eddition to 8N of the cther rights end remedies availebie to Lessor hereunter, Lessor shall have all of the rights and
remodies of 8 secured parly undar the Uniform Commertlal Code,

No express or implied walver by Lessor of any bmech of Lessen's obligetions horeunder shali canstitite @ watver of any other breech of Lesses's
obligations hareundey,

19, NOTICES. Any nolice hereumder to Lassee or Lessor shalf ba in wriling and shell ba deemed to have been given when delivered personally or deposifed
with & nationally-recognized ovemight courior service or in the United States malls, postage prepaid, sddressed o reciprent af S address set forth above or at
Sueh other sddress as may be st karown fo the sender.

20 NET LEASE AND UNCONDITIONAL OBLIGATION. This Leaso is 8 complatefy net leess end Lesses's obligation to pay rent end afl iher smounts
payabis by Lasses heraunder is absolule, unconditiane! end lrevocable, and shall be paid without any abslement, reduction, satoff or defense of any kind.

21.  NON-CANCELABLE LEASE, This Lease carmol ba canceled or lerminated except as expressly provided harein.

22, SURVIVAL OF INDEMNITIES. Lasses's obligations under paragraphs 7, 8 and 18 shall survive lermination or expiration of this Leese.

23,  TAXINDEMNITY. Lassor's loss of, ar loss of the rights to ¢laim, or recaplure of, ell or any part of the federal or state income fax benafits Lessor
anficipated as o rosult of entering into this Lease and owning fie Equipment is referred to herein as 8 “Loss”. f for any reeson this Leass is not a frue lease for
fedornl or stete intome fax purposes, or if far sny reasan (even though this Lease may be 8 true kess) Lessar is not entitfed o depreciate e Equipment for
fadare) or state income tax purpases in the manner that Lessar anticipatad whan enfering into tis Leass, and as o result Lessor suffers 8 Loss, then Lessee
&grens to pay Lessor, as additfonal basic rond, 8 lunp-summ amount which, after the peyment of el federal, state end focal incoms taxes on the receipt of such
omouni, end using the same assumpltions o5 ta tox benefits and other matters Lessor used in originatly eveluating end prcing this Leass, wilfl in the reasonable
opinfon of Lessor meintein Lessor's nol afterdax rate of retum with respect (o this Leasa at the same lovel # wouwid have been ¥ such Loss hed not occurred. The
Lessor makes no rapresantation with raspect to the income tex consequencos of this Laase or the Egquipment. Lossor wil notify Lessee of any claim that may
give rise to indemnlty hereunder. Lessor shell make s reesonabdle effort fo conlast any suth ciaim but shall have no oblfgation to contest such claim beyond the
adminisirative level of the Internal Ravenue Service or oiter texing authority, In any avent, Lassor shall controf sH aspects of eny settiement and confest.
Lessss agrees to pay the lepsi faas and ather oul-of-pecket expenses intumed by Lessor in defending any such caim even £ Lossor's defonse is Succossiul,
Notwithstending the foregoing, Lessee shell kave no abligations to indemnify Lessor for any Loss caussd Solely by (a) a casually to the Equipment i Lessae
pays the emount Lessee is required to pay as a result of such casually, (b) Lessor's sale of the Equipent other than an account of an Evearit of Default
hereunder, (c) failure of Lessor fo have sufficiont income to utfize s snticioated tax benefils of fo timaly cialm such tax bensfils, and (d) & change in fex faw
{icluding tax retas) effective efter the Legsn begins. For purpases of this paragraph 23, the term "Lessor” shefl incivde sny member of an affliated group of
which Lassor is {or may becoms) & member if ponsolidated fex rotums ere filed for such gffifated group for foderal income tax purposes. Lesspe's indemnily
obigatians under this paragraph 23 shell survive ferminotion of this Loese.

24, COUNTERPARTS, There shall be ane orginal of the Master Lease and of sech Suppfoment and It shall be marked "Original.* To the extent that any
Supplement constilutes chatte! paper (as that lerm is defined by the Uniform Commercial Code), a securly interast may only be craalsd in the Supplemsnt
markod “Crigingl.”
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25 NON-WAIVER. No course of degling belwasn Lagsor and Lassee of any defdy or omission on the port of Lessor in exercising any nights hereunder
shall oparale s & waiver of any Hghts of Lessor. A waiver on any ane occasion shall not be construed es a ber to or waiver of any right or remady on any
frure occasion. No walver o consent shall be binding upon Lessor umess 1t Is in writing and signed by Lessor. To the extent permitted by appficable law,
Lessee hereby walves the benefit and advartage of, and covonents not to assert sgainst Lessor, any valuafion, Inquisition, stay, appreisement, extonsion or
redempiion laws now axisting or which may hereafier exist which, but for this provision, might be epplicabie to any sale or re-leasing made under the
Judgment, ordor or decree of any court or under the powers of sale and re-leasing conferred by this Lease or ofherwise. To the extent pemnitted by
appliceble law, Lassee heveby waives any and all rights and remadies conferred upon & Lessee by Arlicle 2A-508 through 2A-522 of the Uniform
Commerdial Code, includimg bul not limited to Lessea’s righls to: (i} cancel this Leass; (i) rapudiate this Leass; (W) reject the Equipment; (iv} revoke
scoeptance of the Equipment; (v} recover demsges from Lessor for any broaches of warranty or for any other reason; (vi) claim a security interest in the
Equipmant In Lesson's possession or contral for any reason; (i) deduct all or any part of any cisimed damages resulting from Lessor's default, i any; under
this Leass; {vifi) accepl partist dalivory of the Equipment; (ix) ‘cover” by making eny purchase or laase of or coniract to purchase or lesse Equipment in
substtution of Equipment klentiffed fo this Leasse; (k) recover any genarel, special, incidental, or consequential damages, for any reason whatsoever, and (xi)
spocific parformencs, replevin, detinue, soquastration, dalm, delivery or the like for eny Equipment identified to this Loase. To the axten! panmitted by -
applicablo law, Lassee a/so heraby waives any rights now or horoafter conformed by statute or otherwise which may roquire Lessor to s, lagss of othaerwise
use any Equipment in mitigation of Lessor's damages as sot forth in paragraph 18 or which may otherwise {imR or modily any of Lessor rights or ramedios
under paregraph 18.

26 IDJ?ﬂ.'s.‘CELLAI.I'\J.EO‘US. This Maslgr Lease end relsted Supplemenl(s) constifite the entine agreement botween Lessor and Lessee and mey be modiffad
only by a wrilten insirument sigried by Lessor and Lessee. Any provision of this Lease whith is unenforceabla in any jurisdiction shal, as to such
Jjurisdiction, be ineffective fo the extent of such unenforcesbility without invaiidaling the rernaining provisions of this Lease, and any such unenforceabiity in
any jurisdiction shall not render unenforceable such provision in eny other jurisdiction, Paragraph headings sra for convenience only, are not part of this
Leases and shall not ba deemed to effect the maaning or construction of any of tive prowsions hereof In the event there is mora then one Lesses named in
this Mastar Lagse or it 6riy Supplement, the abligetions of sach shall be joint and several. Lessor may in s sole discretion, eccept 8 photocopy,
electronically fransmithed fecsimila or other reproduction of this Mester Loasa endfor 6 Supplament (e *Counterpant”) as ihe binding end effactive record of
this Mastor Lease andfr & Supplement whether or not an ink signed copy hereof or thereaf is glso received by Lessor from Lasses, provided, howsever, that
if Lessor accapts a Counterpart as the binding end effective record of this Master Leass or & Supplement, the Gounlerpart acknowledpad in willing by
Lessor shall constiute the record herecf or thereof. Lessae agrees thet 8 Counterpart of this Master Lease or 8 Supplemenl received by Lassor, shall, when
acknowladged In writing by Lessor, constifute an original document for the purposes of establishing the provisions heveof end thereof and shall be legally
admissibie undor the best evitencs rule and binding on and enforceable against Lessee. if Lessor accopts @ Counterpart of a Supplemont as the binding
end effective record thercol only such Counterpart acknowledged in wiiting by Lessor shall be marked “Oniginel” and (o the extant thet 8 Supplement
constifutes chettel paper, a secusity interest may ontly ba created in the Supplement that bears Lessor's ink signed acknowledgement and is marked
*Originel,” This Lease sheltin all respects ba governed by, and construed In eccontsnce with, ihe substenlive laws of the state of Minresota. LESSEE
HEREBY WANVES ANY RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL WITH RESFPECT TQ ANY MATTER ARISING UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS LEASE. TIME
IS OF THE ESSENCE WITH RESPECT TO THE OBLIGATIONS OF LESSEE UNDER THIS LEASE.

Ver. 0809
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Wells Fargo Equipment Finance, inc. .
733 Marquette Avenue, Sulta 760 ’ Amendment to
- MAC N9306-070 Master Lease

Minneapolis, MN 55402

Wells Fargo Equipment Finance, Inc. {"Lessor’) and U.S. Renal Care Home Theraples LLC ("Lesses”) hercby
amend the Master Lease Number 288280 dated as of November 2, 2010 (the “Lease” as follows:

.

Section 6(a)(vi) is amended by deleting it and replacing it in its entirely with the following: “keep
accurate and complete raconds partaining to Borrower's business and financial condition and submit
to Lender such quarterly and annual raports concarning Bormower's bus:ness and financial condition
Lender may from time to time masonabfy request”

Section 15 is amendsd by replacing words ‘Lessee wilf promptly execute and deliver to Lessor” with
"Lessee wilf exectie and deliver to Lessor within ten (10} days of Lessor’s request”

Section 17(a) is amended by inserting “within (5) five business days of before the words “when due”
Section 17(c) is amended by deleting “ten (10) calendar days"” and replacing #t with “20 calendar days”.

Section 17(e) is amended by inserting "and, if such petition is involuntary, the same shall not be
dismissed within 30 calendar days of its filing”

New clauses (k), (I} and (m) are hereby added as additional Events of Defautt in Section 17 of the
Agreement to read as follows:

"(k) an event of default shalt occur after giving effect to any provided cure period, of Lessea under
that certain Credit Agreement deted as of May 24, 2010 among Lesses as Borrower, the
Guarantors and Lenders identifled thereinBank of America, N.A., as Syndication Agent, and Royal
Bank of Canada, as Administrative Agent and as Collateral Agenf as such Cradit Agreement may
be amended from time fo time (the “Cradit Agreement®); (1) fallure of Lessee to maintain at afl times
a minimum Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio as defined and set forth in the Credit Agreement; (i)
failurg to cerlify in witing to Lessor within sixty (60) days of the end of each fiscal querter as io
those malters pertaining fo financisl statements and Events of Default stated in the form for such
certification aftached hereto as Exhibit A.”

Except as modifisd herein, the terms and conditions of the Lease remain the same and continus in full force and
offact. In the avent of a conflict between the terms of the Lease and this Amendmsnt, the terms of this
Amendment shalf preva¥l,

Dated: November 2, 2010

LESSOR: LESSEE:

_Wells Fargo hment Fimg Q. U.S. Renal Care Home Therapies, LLC

By:

. Shelton, Manager

_ Rovised U § Renal Care Inc smondment to ML {v2) {2).doc

Attachment 39 491




_ Exhibit A
To Amendment {o Master Lease datad as of November 2, 2010

To: Walls Fargo Equipment Finance, inc.
733 Mamjuelia Avenue
Suite 700
Minneapolis, MN 55402
Attn: Senior Lending Manager; Healthcare

Re: Quarterty Compliance Certification of U.S. Renal Care Home Therapies, LLC ("Lesses”)

The undersfgned Lessee hereby certifies to Wells Fargo Equiprient Finence, inc. ('Lessbr‘) that (a) the
financial statement of Lesses dated as of June 30, 2010, hereicfors or concurmantly herewith delivered by
Lessea to Lessor, is true and comect, and has been prepared in accordance with generelly accepted accounting
principals, and (b) as of tha date heredf, there exists no default or defined Event of Defaull under any loan

agreement, promissory nofe or other document in effect with respect to any credit accommodation granted by
Lessor to Lessee.

Dated: November 2, 2010
LESSEE:
U.S. Rapal Cera Homa Thepapias, LLC

Page2 of 2
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Wolls Fargo ipmont Finance, Inc.
WELLS 733 Mm;?;ﬂffmpf:, Suite :m?oe Amendment to
FARGE) MAC NB306-070 .

Minreapolis, MN 55402 Master Lease

Wetts Fargo Equipment Finance, Inc. ("Lessor end U.S. Renal Care Home Therapios, LLC ("Lessee”) hereby
amend the Master Lease Number 288280 dated as of November 2, 2010 (the “Lease”) as follows:

1. Seclion 6(a)(vi) Is amendsd by dbleting it and repiacing it in #ts entirely with the following: “keep
accurale and comglete records pertaining to Bormower’s business and financial condition and submit
to Lander such quarterly and annual reporls conceming Bomrower's business and financial condition
Lender may from time to time reasonably request;”

2. Section 15 is amended by replacing words “Lessee will promplly execute and deliver to Lessor” with
‘L esseo will execute and deliver (0 Lessor withint ten (10) deys of Lessor's request”

3. Section 17(a} is amended by insering “within (5) five business days of” before the words “when due”.
4. Section 17(c) Is amended by delsting “ten [10) t:afa:ndar days” and replacing it with "20 calendar days”.

5. Section 17(s) is amended by insering “and, if such petition is involuntary, the same shell not be
dismissed within 30 calendar days of its filing”

6. New clauses (k) (l).and (m) are hersby sdded as additional Events of Default in Section 17 of the
Agresment to read as follows:

“(k) an avent of defaull shall ocour afler giving effect to any provided cure period, of Lesses under
that certain Credit Agreement dated as of July 5, 2006 among Lesses as Bomower, the Guaraniors
and Lendsrs identifisd therein, CapitalSource Finance LLC, as Syndicetion Agent, and CIT
Healthcare LLC, as Adminisirative Agent and as:Issuing Bank, as such Credit Agresment may be
amended from time to time; (i) failure of Lessee to maintain at alt limes a minimum Fixed Charge
Coverage Retio (as defined below) of 1.20; (m) failure to cerllfy in wriling fo Lessor within sixty (60}
days of the end of each fiscal quarfer as to those matters pertaining to financial siatements and
Events of Default stated in the form for such certification attached hereto as Exhibit A. “Fixed
Charge Coverage Ralio” is definsd as set forth iri the altached Exhibit B, without regard to whether’
aither of the two agreements from which the text of Exhibit B was laken is subsequenlly modified or
terminated.” .

Except 8s modifled herein, the terms and conditions of the Lease remain the same and continue in full force and

effect. In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Lease and this Amendment, the terms of this
Amendment shall prevail. -

Dated: Novempe

2, 2010
LESSOR: | LESSEE:

Wells Fargo j / g, Ing. U.S. Renal Care Home Therepies, LLC

U S Renal Care inc {ale for cirh dmant to ML-doc
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Wedls Fargo Equipment Finance, Inc. SUPP lement to Master Lease

MWELLE 733 Marquolte Avenue, Suite 700 Agreement of Sala
FARLS) MAC Ng306-070
Mhnespolis, MN 55402

Supplament Number 0288280400 dsted as of Novembar 2, 2010
o

Mastor Laase Number 268280 dated as of November 2, 2010
Name snd Atdrass of Lessee:

US Renal Care Home Therapios LLGC

1313 La Concha Lane

Houston, TX 77054

Notice: Lessor reserves the right to withdraw the terms of this Supplement and issue a modified Supplement without notice
to Lesses if Lassor Is rot in raceipt of a fully executed original or facsimile of this document within five (5) business days of
the date of this Supplemsnt. However, in that event, ng such modifications will b binding on Lesses unless and until Losses
exocutas the modifled document containing all such modifications.

This is a Supplement to the Master Lease Identified abova belween Lossor and Lesses (the "Master Lease”), Upon the execution and
dalivary by Lessor end Lassee of this Supplement, Lessor hereby agmees lo lease o Lesses, and Lessea hereby agrees {o feese from
Lassor, the egquipment descnibed below upan the terms and condittons of this Supplement and the Master Lease. Alf terms and
conditions of the Master Lease shall remain in full force and effect excepd {o the extent modifiod by this Supplement. This Supplement
- and the Mastor Lease es it refates to this Supplement ere hereinafter referred to a5 the "Lease”,

Equipment Description:

The Equipmemt described on Schedule A attached hereto and made a part hereof

After Lessea signs this Lease, Lessse euthonzas Lassor to insart any missing information or change any inaccurate informetion (such
as the model year of the Equipment or its seral number or VIN) info this Equipment Description.

Equipment Location: 1313 La Concha Lene, Houston, TX 77054

SUMMARY OF PAYMENT TERMS

initial Term (Months): 80 Total Cost:  §$108,892.77
Paymert Frequancy. Monthly Total Basic Rent $123,592.80
Basic Rental Payment. $2,059.88 plus spplicable salas and use | Interim Rent Daily Rate: .014%
tax ’

Number of Instaliments: 60 Cutoff Date: December 16, 2070
Advance Payments: First dus on signing this Lease Security Deposit._N/A

Additional Provislons: Tolal Finance Charges: §14,700.03

End of Term Agreement:

1. In aodition o paying the Total Basic Rent when and as dug under the Loass, Lessee agrees fo pay Lessar $1.00 on the expiration
dale of the initial term of the Lease (the "Final Purchase Fayment?).

2. Upon receipt of the Total Basic Rent end the Final Purchase FPaymenf by Lessor, the Equipmsnt shall be deemed transferred to
Lasses at its then location. Upon request by Lesses, Lassor will deliver a bill of sale transforring the Equipment to Lessse. Lessor
harsby wamanls that af the time of transfer the Equipmuert will be free of ell securily inlerests and other lisns created by Lessor or in
favor of persons cialming through Lessar, LESSOR MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTY WITH RESPECT TO THE EQUIPMENT,
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED. AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY AND OF FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPQOSE AND ANY LIABILITY FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF OR THE
INABILITY TO USE THE EQUIPMENT.

THIS AGREEMENT INCLUDES THE TERMS ON THE ATTACHED FPAGE(S).

Lessor: jWalls Fango WC&, fnc. U.S. Renal Care Home Therapies, LLC,
Le
By f
VY -

e

3l, 201D

Rent Commencement Delo

Pege 1ot 2 SUPSALE CANNCOT 10302010 1332 Z637E0-400 01263 108311
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3. Failure to pay the Final Purchase Payment whon due shall constitute an "Evertt of Default* under the Lease.

4. Lasses agress fo pay all safes and use taxes arfsing on account of the sais of the Equipment fo Lessse.

Lessor makes no representation with raspect (0 the ingome tax consaquences of the fransaction evidenced by this Leesa. Lassor will trest
the isase as a sale regartiess of how the Lgase is lreated by Lessee.

Modification (o Master Lease: To be consistent with this Suppismen! the Master Lease is amended as folfows:

1.

2.

The second paragraph of paragraph 2 (relaling tv automatic extension) is hereby delefed.
The third sentenca of paragraph 12 covering casuatly (o the Equipment is amended lo read as follows:

In the avent any item of Equipment shall become last, stolen, destroyed, dameged beyond repair, or renderad
pammanently uriit for use for any reason, or in the event of condemnation or seizure of any fem of Equipment, Lesses
shall prompty pay Lassor an emournt equal fo Lessor's Loss 85 defined in paragraph 18 with respect bo such itam at the
time of payment based on the proportion that the original cost of such item bears to the Total Cost of af tems of

Equipmont.

The sixth sentence of parsgraph 12 i amendsd to read "Any insurance or condemnation proceeds recolad shel be cradited fo

Lesses's obligation under this paragraph end Lessee shall be entitfod [0 any surplus.”

Puaragraph 14 and 23 are deleted in their entirely.

;?1: thrd s?ntence of paragraph 18(c) is amended fo read Lessee shall be entitied {o any suiplus and shell remain ligble for eny
eficiency.

Clause (a} of the first sentence of paragraph 13 Is amandsd fo read as follows: “(a) comprehensive genaral liability insurance
Insuring against lisbility for bodfly Infury and property damage with a minimum fimit of $2,000,000.00 combined singte limit per
ocourence and”.

ver. 1109
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NI Vvoils Fargo Equipment Finance, inc. Schedule A
IOV 733 Mamuelie Averue
Sulte 700

Minnesapofis, MN 55402

Conlrac! No. 280280100 dated as of Novombar 2, 2010
Lessea: US Renat! Core Home Theraples, LLC

Equipment Description: Dialysis, Computer and Computer Software systems equipment
together with ail options, attachments and accossories as mors fully described on the foflowing Vendor Invoices

Asset |D Description Date Asset Class ID  Vendor ID Check & Involce #
10260 Red Pull Tight Lock 7 12/16/09 EQUIPMENT METRO MEDICAL 7816 70814600
(22.00) 70866301
7946 773474-01
(881,20}
8189
(281.68)
10259 EPROM for upgrade to CRRT 12/15/09 EQUIPMENT FRESENIUS USA 770 84485260
102682 18 X 72 Adj. Shelf 01/08/10 EQUIPMENT {NTERMETRO 7800 10278213
10264 2008 K Diatysis, Machine 02110410 EQUIPMENT FRESENIUS USA 7958 84583144
10266 Marcor F80t RO System 03/1810 EQUIPMENT MAR COR 7942 0000159306
10297 90XL Meter KIt-CT 05/25/10 EQUIPMENT MESA LABS 8247 0383636-IN

Equipment Originally located at: 1313 La Concha Lane
Houston, TX 77054

Dated: November 2, 2010

Lessoe: UJS Ronal Caro Home Therapies, LLC

By:
. Shefton, Manager

Page 1 of 1
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ATTACHMENT 40

FINANCIAL VIABILITY WAIVER

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios because all project capital
expenditures are completely funded through internal resources.

1891453-1

Attachment 40 497




ATTACHMENT 41

VIABILITY

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios because all project capital
expenditures are completely funded through internal resources as indicated in Attachment 40,

1891453-1
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements
See Attached Certification

B. Conditions of Debt Financing
See Attached Certification

C. Rcasonableness of Project Costs

The applicant shall document that the estimated project costs are reasonable and shall
document compliance with the following:

1) Preplanning costs — Costs do not exceed 1.8% of construction and modernization
contracts plus contingencies plus equipment costs.

2) Total costs for site survey, soil investigation fees and site preparation — This
criterion is not applicable as there are no site survey, soil investigation fees or site
preparation costs associated with this project.

3) Construction and modernization costs — As indicated in Section 1120 Appendix
A HFSRB staff will review the cost per square foot data submitted in the
application, to determine compliance with the latest available cost standards of the
RSMeans publication.

4) Contingencies — This criterion is not applicable as Applicant does not anticipate the
need for Contingencies associated with this project.

5) New construction or modernization fees — This criterion is not applicable as there
are no construction and modernization fees associated with this project.

6) The costs of all capitalized equipment not included in construction contracts do
not exceed the standards for equipment. The anticipated Movable or Other
Equipment cost is $436,924. On the basis of 13 stations, the calculated as a per
station cost is $33,609. The corresponding standard listed in 77 Ill. Admin. Code
1120.APPENDIX is $39,945 for 2008, adjusting for inflation using the RS Means
rate of .05% increases this standard to $40,004 for 2011 ($39,945 x 1.0005 x
1.0005 x 1.0005). The anticipated per station equipment cost of $33,609 is
consistent with both the 2008 and 2011 standard and is thus in compliance.

7) Building acquisition, net interest expense, and other estimated costs — There are
no Building acquisition, net interest expense, and other related costs associated
with this project as Applicant is proposing to used leased space for the provision
of dialysis services.

1891453-1
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&) Cost Complexity Index (to be applied to hospitals only) — This criterion is
inapplicable as the Project is related to the establishment of In-Center

Hemodialysis services.

D. Projected Operating Costs

Projected Operating Costs Total Cost | Treatments | Cost/Trmt
Labor $744,352 9,246 $ 80.51
Medical supplies $194,787 0,246 $ 21.07
Medications $653,127 9,246 $ 59.82
Medical Director fees $75,000 9,246 $ 811
Management Fee $213,196 9,246 $ 23.06
Other $272,176 9,246 $ 29.44

Total Projected Operating Costs* $2,052,638 9,246 $ 222.00

*Excludes Bad Debt

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs
Total Cost | Treatments | Cost/Trmt
Total Effect of the Project on Capital Cost $200,424 9,246 $ 21.68

1891453-1
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77 IIl. Admin. Code § 1120.310(a) Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

USRC Bolingbrook, LL.C

In accordance with 77 1ll. Admin. Code 1120.140, I attest that the total estimated project costs and
related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents, including investment securities,
unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and funded depreciation.

W
By:

Its: Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day of
May 2011

D e ot

Signature of Notary
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Its: President and Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day of
May 2011

Tacdivond

Signature of Notary
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77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.310(b) Conditions of Debt Financing

USRC Bolingbrook, LLC

In accordance with 77 IIl. Admin. Code 1120.140, 1 attest that the conditions of debt financing are
reasonable in that entering into a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation of existing
investments which would be required for the applicant to construct a dialysis facility. Should the
applicant be required to pay off the lease in full, its existing investments and capital retained could
be converted to cash or used to retire the outstanding lease obligations within a sixty (60) day

period.

BT Il g e

Its: Manager Its: President and Manager
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day of Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day of
May 2011 May 2011
\AMW o\ L X
Signature of Notary Signature of Notary
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77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.310(a) Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements
USRC Alliance, LLC
In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code 1120.140, I attest that the total estimated project costs and

related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents, including investment securities,
unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and funded depreciation.

By:%zﬂ"\‘f

Its: Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day

of , 2011
‘ED& Yook

Signature of Notary

\\\\\\“"l""”””

By: Www DW\-—

Its: President and Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day

of May, 2011
Jmf, Q‘\ RNV

¥

Signature of Nétary
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77 11l. Admin. Code § 1120.310(b) Conditions of Debt Financing

USRC Alliance, LL.C

In accordance with 77 11l. Admin. Code 1120.140, | attest that the conditions of debt financing are
reasonable in that entering into a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation of existing
investments which would be required for the applicant to construct a dialysis facility. Should the
applicant be required to pay off the lease in full, its existing investments and capital retained could
be converted to cash or used to retire the outstanding lease obligations within a sixty (60} day
period.

By: %"7‘9 N /&W{)&"’ //1/1? /QM,

Its: Manager

1ts: President and Manager

Notarization:
Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day
of May, 2011 Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day

of May, 2011
\gmﬁ Jesod \YQ W
Signature of Notary 1 [r

Signature of Notary
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77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.310(a) Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code 1120.140, I attest that the total estimated project
costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents, including investment
securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and funded depreciation.

Its: President and Manager

by & ET

Its; Manager

Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this _19_“' day Subscribed and sworn to me this ﬂ day

of May 2011 of May , 2011
I &‘OJO\JJT ‘/S/L&/ M
Signature of Notary Signature of Notary
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-

U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

sixty (60) day period.

by ey

/

Its: Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day
of May , 2011

\JQ/)/“ / Av-»\k

Slgnature of Notary
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77 1ll. Admin. Code § 1120.310{(b) Conditions of Debt Financing

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code 1120.140, I attest that the conditions of debt
financing are reasonable in that entering into a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation
of existing investments which would be required for the applicant to construct a dialysis facility.
Should the applicant be required to pay off the lease in full, its existing investments and capital
retained could be converted to cash or used to retire the outstanding lease obligations within a

o MEgh W [

Its: President and Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day
of May ., 2011

%/‘ %@/\J

Signature of Notary
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ATTACHMENT 44

SAFETY NET IMPACT

This criterion is required only for Substantive and Discontinuation projects. As the proposed
project is non-Substantive and for the establishment of a category of service, this criterion is
inapplicable to the proposed project.

1891453-1
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ATTACHMENT 44

CHARITY CARE

Payor Mix Year 1 Year 2 Year 3
Biled Govt Patients 29 57 59
Billed Commercial Patients 1 6 8
Billed Non Govt Low Patients 0 0 0

Total Patients 30 63 67

Charity Care Information Year 1 Year 2 Year 3
Net Revenue 352 705 2,199,835 3,045,660
Bad Debt/ Charity Care 9,876 61,595 85,278
Ratio of Bad Debt to Net Revenue 0.028 0.028 0.028
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APPENDIX 1
PATIENT REFERRAL LETTERS
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May 16, 2011

Mr. Dale Galassie
Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board

525 W. Jefferson St., 2" Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Galassie:

We are writing in support of the certificate of need application for the proposed U.S.
Renal Care Bolingbrook Dialysis clinic.

We currently refer patients to several facilities depending on the location and availability
of the dialysis facility, included as Appendix A is a list of those facilities. Based on our
records, in the past three years, we have referred for dialysis 80 patients in 2010, 86
patients in 2009 and 55 patients in 2008. These referrals are a component of the dialysis
volumes as reported to the Renal Network by the dialysis facilities. Included as
Appendix B is the patient origin information by facilities for the years 2008, 2009 and
2010.

With regard to new patients referred for dialysis, for the year 2010, we have referred 66
new patients for hemodialysis. These referrals are a component of the dialysis volumes
as reported to the Renal Network by the dialysis facilities. Included as Appendix C is a
patient count by facility and zip code of newly referred patients.

Based upon a review of our 1,057 Pre-ESRD (Chronic Kidney Disease) patients that
currently are in CKD Stage 3, 4, and 5, we anticipate referring 26.7% of those patients for
dialysis within 2 years. Of those patients, we anticipate referring 106 ESRD patients,
who live in DuPage and Will Counties, to U.S. Renal Care Bolingbrook Dialysis for
dialysis within 2 years after completion of the facility.

We respectfully ask the Board to approve the U.S. Renal Care Bolingbrook Dialysis CON
application to provide in center hemodialysis services for this growing ESRD population
in DuPage and Will Counties. Thank you for your consideration.

We attest to the fact that to the best of our knowledge, all the information contaimed in
this letter is true and correct and that the projected referrals in this document were not
used to support any other CON application.
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Respectfully,

Signature: gi'\/\u,. [a‘ ((-;‘_ZVJ
Name: Anis A Rauf D.OU
Title: Nephrologist

Signature: ‘[_/L_V lj!& Zléz

Name; Mohammed S. Ahmed D.O.

Title: Nephrologist

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN TO before me

this } Lday of A# 204 y
) day of ALY / OFFICIAL SEALY
\oran, JACK SARTORE
L (g | W MeTAHY PUBUC, STATEOF ILLINOIS
i J . a & COMMISSION EXPIRES 3f26/2013
Notdsy Public

Appendix 1




APPENDIX A — REFERRAL FACILITIES

Dialysis Center -~ -

Advanced Home Dialysis
Advanced Home Therapies
Affiliated Dialysis, Westmont
Community Nursing Home Naperville
jDaVita Alton _
Fairview Baptist Nursing Home Dialysis
FMC Bartlet

FMC Berwyn

FMC Blue Island

FMC Bolingbrook
FMC Bridgeport

FMC Burbank

FMC Crestwood

FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center
FMC Elk Grove

FMC Evergreen Park

FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis

FMC Mokena

FMC Naperville Dialysis Center

FMC Naperville North Dialysis Center
FMC Neomedica West
FMC Orland Park

FMC Oswego

FMC Palos

FMC Plainfield

IFMC Roseland 7
FMC South Suburban
FMC Tinley Park
FMC University Program
FMC Villa Park Dialysis
FMC Westchester _
FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center

Fox Valley Dialysis

Good Samaritan Inpatient Hospital

Gotleib Hospital Dialysis

Hinsdale Inpatient Hospital

Loyola Dialysis Maywood

Maple Avenue Kidney Center
Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home
Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home
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. - Dialysis Center . ..
Meadowbrook Naperville Nursing Home
Mt Sinai Hosp Med Ctr Renal Unit
Neph Inc. Mishawaka

Otttawa Dialysis Center

RML Specialty Hospital Dialysis
Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit
Tri Cities Dialysis

UIC Downtown
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APPENDIX B — REFERRAL FACILITIES PATIENT ORIGIN

[T "Year Dialysis Center Zip Patients )
2008 Advanced Home Dialysis 60440 1
2008 Community Nursing Home Naperville 603532 1
2008 Community Nursing Home Naperville 60563 1
2008 FMC Berwyn 60402 2
2008 FMC Berwyn 60501 1
2008 FMC Blue Island 60406 1
2008 FMC Bolingbrook 604359 1
2008 FMC Bolingbrook 60440 4
2008 FMC Bolingbrook 60586 1
2008 FMC Bolingbrook 60644 1
2008 FMC Bolingbrook 60625 1
2008 FMC Bridgeport 60616 1
2008 FMC Burbank 60501 1
2008 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60137 1
2008 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60148 1
2008 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60544 1
2008 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60559 1
2008 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60563 1
2008 FMC Evergreen Park 60805 1
2008 FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis 60108 1
2008 FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis 60139 1
2008 FMC Mokena 60491 1
2008 FMC Naperville Dialysis Center 60565 1
2008 FMC Naperville Dialysis Center 83301 1
2008 FMC Naperville North Dialysis Center 60440 1
2008 FMC Naperville North Dialysis Center 60544 1
2008 FMC Palos 60415 1
2008 FMC Villa Park Dialysis 60148 2
2008 FMC Westchester 60525 1
2008 FMC Westchester 60546 1
2008 FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60458 1
2008 FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60527 4
2008 Good Samaritan Inpatient Hospital 60644 1
2008 Loyola Dialysis Maywood 60521 1
2008 Maple Avenue Kidney Center 60526 1
2008 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60046 1
2008 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60151 1
2008 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60435 1
2008 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60440 2
2008 Meadowhrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60445 1
2008 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60451 1
2008 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60478 1
2008 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60482 1
2008 Otttawa Dialysis Center 60428 1
2008 RML Specialty Hospital Dialysis 60108 1
2008 Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit 60433 1
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R

2008 Total 55
2009 Advanced Home Therapies 60517 1
2009 Advanced Home Therapies 60521 1
2009 Advanced Home Therapies 60559 1
2009 Community Nursing Home Naperville 60563 1
2009 DaVita Alten 62002 1
2008 Fairview Baptist Nursing Home Dialysis 60516 1
2009 Fairview Baptist Nursing Home Dialysis 60525 1
2009 FMC Blue Island 60472 1
2009 FMC Biue island 60827 1
2009 FMC Bolingbrook 60439 1
2009 FMC Bolingbrook 60517 1
2009 FMC Bolingbrook 60440 3
2009 FMC Bolingbrook 60446 1
2009 FMC Bolingbrook 60544 1
2009 FMC Bolingbrook 60586 1
2009 FMC Bolingbrook 60901 1
2009 FMC Burbank 60455 1
2009 FMC Burbank 60457 1
2009 FMC Burbank 60458 4
2009 FMC Burbank 60629 1
2009 FMC Crestwood 60445 2
2009 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60148 3
2009 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60164 1
2009 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60181 1
2009 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60193 1
2009 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60515 1
2009 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60516 2
2009 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60517 1
2009 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60644 1
2009 FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis 60139 2
2009 FMC Naperville Dialysis Center 60440 1
2009 FMC Naperville Dialysis Center 60490 1
2009 FMC Naperville Dialysis Center 60521 1
2009 FMC Naperville Dialysis Center 60643 1
2009 FMC Napervilie North Dialysis Center 60446 1
2009 FMC Neomedica West 60625 1
2009 FMC Oswego 60543 1
2009 FMC Roseland 60628 1
2009 FMC South Suburban 60475 1
2009 FMC Tinley Park 60452 1
2009 FMC University Program 60440 1
2009 FMC Villa Park Dialysis 60101 1
2009 FMC Westchester 60482 1
2009 FMC westchester 60525 1
2009 FMC Westchester 60526 3
2009 FMC Westchester 60534 1
2009 FMC Westchester 60638 1
2009 FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 58784 1
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2009 FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60446 1
2009 FMC Wiliowbrook Dialysis Center 60458 1
2009 FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60459 1
2009 FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60514 1
2009 FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60527 2
2009 Fox Valley Dialysis 60506 2
2009 Loyola Dialysis Maywocd 60130 1
2009 Loyola Dialysis Maywood 60162 1
2009 Maple Avenue Kidney Center 60513 1
2009 Maple Avenue Kidney Center 60638 1
2009 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 53168 1
2009 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60431 1
2009 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60435 1
2009 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60440 2
2009 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60446 1
2009 Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home 60608 1
2009 Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home 60636 1
2009 Meadowbrook Naperville Nursing Home 60440 1
2009 Neph Inc. Mishawaka 46628 1
2009 RML Specialty Hospital Dialysis 60617 1
2009 Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit 60403 1
2009 Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit 60431 1
2009 Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit 60446 1
2009 Total 86
2010 Advanced Home Therapies 60137 1
2010 Advanced Home Therapies 60148 1
2010 Advanced Home Therapies 60527 1
2010 Affiliated Dialysis, Westmont 60542 1
2010 Community Nursing Home Naperville 60505 1
2010 Fairview Baptist Nursing Home Dialysis 60148 1
2010 FMC Bartlet 60107 1
2010 FMC Berwyn 60402 1
2010 FMC Berwyn 60629 1
2010 FMC Bolingbrook 60101 1
2010 FMC Bolingbrook 60585 1
2010 FMC Bolingbrook 60403 2
2010 FMC Bolingbrook 60440 7
2010 FMC Bolingbrook 60441 1
2010 FMC Bolingbrook 60442 1
2010 FMC Bolingbrook " 80506 1
2010 FMC Burbank 60453 1
2010 FMC Burbank 60458 1
2010 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60148 1
2010 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60515 1
2010 FMC Elk Grove 60143 1
2010 FMC Elk Grove 60191 1
2010 FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis 60101 1
2010 FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis 60103 1
2010 FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis 60108 g8
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2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010 Total
Grand Total

FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis

FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis

FMC Orland Park

FMC Orland Park

FMC Plainfield

FMC Villa Park Dialysis

FMC Villa Park Dialysis

FMC Villa Park Dialysis

FMC Westchester

FMC Westchester

FMC Westchester

FMC Westchester

FMC Westchester

FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center

FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center

FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center

FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center

FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center

FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center
Gotleib Hospital Dialysis

Hinsdale Inpatient Hospital
Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home
Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home
Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home
Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home
Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home
Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home
Mt Sinai Hosp Med Ctr Renal Unit

RML Specialty Hospital Dialysis

RML Specialty Hospital Dialysis

Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit
Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit

Tri Cities Dialysis

UIC Downtown

60191
60613
60462
60491
60544
60126
60148
60523
60137
60402
60513
60525
60526
60513
60516
60517
60521
60559
60561
60131
60173
54981
60126
60645
60463
60525
60651
60623
60628
60901
60432
60435
60174
60440

co
O_L_L[\)_l-\-_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_L_L—l_L—L—LN—lN_L_L_L_L_L.h,_L_L_L_L_L
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APPENDIX C - NEW REFERRALS

[ Dialysis Center 1" Zip | Patients |
_Advanced Home Therapies - 60137 1
Commumty Nursing Home Naperwlle . 60505 1.
FMC Bartlet _ 60107 1

" FMC Berwyn 60402 1
FMC Berwyn 60629 | 1
FMC Bohngbrook 60403_, 2
' FMC Bolingbrook - 60440 6

: FMC Bolingbrook 60441 1L
" FMC Bolingbrook 7 60442 1
| FMC Bolingbrook 60506 1

_FMC Burbank . 60453 e

: FMC Burbank 60458 1
FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 605615 1
 FMC Elk Grove 60143 1.
FMC Elk Grove N 60191 1
: FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis =~ _ 60101 1
| FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis , 60103 1

. FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis 60108 , .8,

| FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis 60191 A

. FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis 60613 A

| FMC Orland Park _ 60462 A

- FMC Orland Park . 60491 1

- FMC Villa Park Dialysis , 60126 4.
FMC Villa Park Dialysis 60148 o
FMC Villa Park Dialysis 60523 1

- FMC Westchester 60137 o1
FMC Westchester 60525 1
i FMC Westchester 60526 l
- FMC Willowbrook D|aly3|s Center 60513 2

. EMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60516 1

" FMC Wilowbrook Dialysis Center 60517 N

| FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60559 1.

| FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60561 1
. Gotleib Hospital Dialysis 60131 1

‘ Hinsdale Inpatient Hosp|tai 60173 1
 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursmg Home 54981 1
Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60126 1
Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60645 1

. Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home 60463 1
Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home 60525 1
_Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home 60651 1.
Mt Sinai Hosp Med Ctr Renal Unit 60623 1

. RML Specialty Hospital Dialysis . _ . 60628 A

_RML Specialty Hospital Dialysis 60901 1
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' Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit . 60432
- Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit . 60435
TriCitesDialysis 60174

_UICDowntown . _ 60440

- = N e
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APPENDIX 2
MAPQUEST MAPS OF FACILITIES

18914531

Appendix 2




9z L X007 UBQINGNS Z0¥09 uAvuag OOEL-bBY-80L ANUB3AY WBJIBH YINOS 1092 [r0000S  TESZ-bT uAvuag - Jw4 20T
2z L 4000 ueqNQNS 65109 juequng 205 YILL M TI8P SOBTOOS  T¥9Z-+T JuBQsng - $323AU35 S1sAjet] JWH 50T
A 9 3002 §ES09 oBeys 39218 PIES 153 TOZ9 Aempi - 24E) jEDIPARY SMUASALY OT2
[41 L 300D 75109 Wied puepp peoy a8uesne) ' GSTET sisAjeld yiegd sofed /T2
trz £ a8ednQ 9z109 15NYW|3 £08R-ZT9-0E9  PROY 1{BA3S00Y g PEON NIOA $ZHT0NS  ZIS2-bT W14 B[HIA 904 OFT
Fal L ‘@de4nq 6ET09 SIY3(3H epPUBIS SZOB-858-DFT 3nUAAY YHON DZ§ £EHTO0S LT9Z-91 $yEIeH ajepuaY - Jwd STT
T ya UMmQ:n_ 8r10s Emn_.tn.._ Jalg ._m.u.._tn_m Ov6T EmnEO._ 2ie) |EJpaly Snjuasalq L1%4
0z L 300 ueqINgns HSTO9 I93S3YANSAIM Thirb-ZSE-S0L PROY oM 0DPZ SLS0005  0Z52-8T ARNSAPISIM - DNS THT
a1 L 98edna £7509 X004GMO[IIM AemyBin AtaBupy OOE9 ZTLTO0S  Z€9Z-t1 HOQIGMO||IA4 O SB3IAIIS SISAERIO DINY 29T
61 L aBedng 51509 A0JO SIBUMO] TTST-98E-0F9 anuany puelydiH SZBE vFTTO0S  E0SZT-bT J9Ua) s|SAfeI A0ID SIIWMOG - NS 60T
4 6 I TE209 vodyo anuany UDJLIoY) 0501 Hodx207 3487 [RI|pA SNIUBSAL pTZ
q1 6 I ZEH09 uo__o_. 19341 _._Dmxum_. 1Se3 17 pE [s]g=1i-51 [epa Snjuasaly OET
ST L A00D UBGINQNS 99509 afruadeN T/TZ-LTZ-0E9 aauQ Buipleds 00T SZ90005S  EVST-PT ajpruaden - W4 £21
vz 6 M 0r09 %oouqBuljog £6¢5-9EZ-80L peoy uolBuiey 62€ SZPIOOS 509241 Aociquieg Jwd 79T
fias L adedng £9509 afjtuaden ANuUAAY YIS 1SIAN BTS Yuon-afjiasaden Jo 34D [ePS sniuasald BT
L1 6 HIM SEPO9 1BHOr 0BES-TvL-S18 122015 ePIBUC TZTZ 0BROO0S  £55Z-bT yyeaq ung o1
62 5 It SEPDS WIOF OPZ6-62L-ST8 peoy uolBuss3 TS0T ZZ6000S  STSE-bT 153 121UBT) [PUDY SSOX) JaaliS 69
21 6 A% PS09 plAyuie|d PEOY W4 UOIES 1S3 006LT PIRRUIR|d JO I2)UID 1EINPRW SNINBSIIY £0T
92 g auEN Y0509 e0INY TITT-T08-0£9 3AUQ PJOKAIRM O0ET BL0TO0S  8952-bT Ja1ua)) SIsA(eI) Adjjea x4 6T
SNOWLVLS WSH ALNNOD apood|z Aan INOH4TIIL ssalppy dewy ONHdA! 3YDIQ3N aweN AN

.

Appendix 2




Driving Directions from 396 Remington Blvd, Bolingbrook, Illinois to 1300 Waterford D... Page t of |

Notes

mapgquest "

Trip to:

1300 Waterford Dr
Aurora, IL 60504-5502
14.04 miles

22 minutes

o

=R L
I
i :E Na
‘e E@ip i 2,
0,

erville i
A5 W

e e

B pIEUBO

F

— I200m =3 M ’ A £
= =, i . ok porL o N — iR
i % =z P e e e A i w = {55011 MapQuost - Poitions €205 NAY.

Al rights reserved. Use subject tg License/Capyright

Direclions and raps are informationat only. We make no warmanties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppiiers shall not be liable o you for any loss or delay resulting from your use of
MapQuest. Your use of MapQuesi means you agree 1o our Terms of Use

htip://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.bb68ba91d8c67c3c7110b433 3/15/2011
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Driving Directions from 396 Remington Blvd, Bolingbrook, Illinois to 24900 W Caton Fa... Page 1 of 1

Trip to:

24900 W Caton Farm Rd
Plainfield, IL 60586

13.20 miles

22 minutes

. 1 X
Falrment- —.'1|

All righis reserved, Use subject to Licensel ight

Direclions and maps arc irformational onty, Wa make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expediliousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall nol be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from your uso of
MapQuest. Your use of MapQues! means you agree to our Jerms of Use

http://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.b8736dd42aa682d4274da4f4 4/11/2011
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Driving Directions from 396 Remington Blvd, Bolingbrook, illinois to 1051 Essington R...  Page ] of 1

Notes

mapquest’ m*

Trip to:

1051 Essington Rd
Joliet, 1L 60435-2801
14.37 miles

23 minutes

4 oen
Romeoville -
G i o
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) | SIS Naes, | ¥
R it M .
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LR EREY

k) }
1 s
2 W Dl\!iﬁion; Lo

4

= Y
Py BT ?Eg'u',“, v

i

All rights reserved. Lise subject fo Licensef jght

Directions and maps are informational onfy. We make no wamanties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss or delay resutting from your use of
MapQuesl. Your use of MapCues! means you agree lo our Terms of Use

http://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.ae8ecbdcd4ffdd50dceaceld 3/15/2011
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Driving Directions from 396 Remington Blvd, Bolingbrook, Illineis to 2121 Oneida St, J...  Page | of 1

Notes

mapquest m>

Trip to:

2121 Oneida St

Joliet, IL 60435-6544

13.38 miles :

24 minutes e

i, "'1.-5":!-4. N

A

oy s200m
7o " 3600t - :g
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